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Mr. LI Yang
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Mr. XIE Jun

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. CHAN King Tak
Ms. KWONG Yin Ping, Yvonne (FCG, HKFCG)
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Mr. HUANG Xianzhi

(resigned with effect from 20 January 2023)
Mr. LIU Weiliang

(appointed with effect from 20 January 2023)
Ms. KWONG Yin Ping, Yvonne

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

COMPANY'’S WEBSITE

www.zhenrodc.com

STOCK CODE
06158

CAYMAN ISLANDS REGISTERED OFFICE,
PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER AGENT

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-9008, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

3/F, Building 7, Hongqiao Zhenro Center
666 Shenhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 3201, 32/F, China Resources Building
No. 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board, I hereby present to you the results and business
review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and its outlook
for 2024.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue of the Group was
RMB38,774.9 million; the loss was RMB9,485.6 million; and the loss
attributable to owners of the parent was RMB8,467.9 million. The Board
does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2023.

MARKET AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The year of 2023 continued to be an extraordinary year for the real estate
after 2022. As the economy was in the recovery stage, the national economy
underwent a process of uneven development and tortuous progress.
Moreover, it encountered various difficulties and challenges such as
insufficient effective demand, excess capacity in some industries, weak
social expectations, numerous hidden risks, blockages in the domestic
circulation, and the rising complexity, severity and uncertainty of the
external environment. Demand for buying residential housing remained
weak, reflecting a continuing decline in willingness of home buying.
Following the year of 2022, the real estate market experienced a negative
growth in general, and withstood tremendous operating and financial

pressure in 2023.

The Group’s operations and liquidity were significantly impacted by the
changes in the external environment. Despite the complicated external
pressures and challenges, the Group dared to face adversity through
“surmounting difficulties one after another and opening a new development
chapter”, focusing on the core task of “ensuring delivery”. More than
43,600 new homes were delivered in 2023. The Group was committed to
stabilising production and operations, restoring market confidence and

promoting a virtuous circle of enterprises.
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Chairman’s Statement

To this end, the Group endeavoured to overcome various adverse factors
and pressures from the external environment so as to ensure the smooth
implementation of the project works, persisted in creating high quality
products to meet customer needs, meanwhile, bolstered customers’
confidence and established corporate reputation. Furthermore, in order to
address liquidity issues, the Group has continued to implement liquidity
management and cost saving measures since 2022, including seeking
financing extension and exemption, accelerating sales and cash collection,
continuing to streamline the corporate organisational structure, and
reducing non-core business operation and administrative expenses. The
Group has been actively working with its legal advisor and financial
advisers on its offshore holistic liability management solutions to assist it
with a holistic restructuring of its offshore indebtedness, in order to achieve
a long-term sustainable capital structure, resolve its liquidity issue and
stabilise the Group’s operations, taking into account the interest of all its
stakeholders.

OUTLOOK
Looking ahead to 2024, the Group will uphold the philosophy of “ensuring

delivery, improving quality, preserving value and stabilising operation”,
and channel all efforts to guarantee the orderly commencement of business
activities, adhere to its original intention, maintain strategic focus, and
achieve breakthroughs and seek new development space on the basis of
sound operation. With the release of a series of supportive policies by the
central government which puts strong emphasis on “giving equal treatment
to meet the reasonable financing needs of different ownership of real estate
enterprises” and “relaxing the policy of purchase limits for the real estate
properties in various regions”, it is expected that the real estate market will
gradually become stabilised. The Group will seize the opportunity from
the gradual recovery of the economy and the real estate market by
increasing marketing efforts and improving the sales quality, so as to

further improve the outcome of asset value recovery.

The Group will adhere to the operating principles of “safety, health, and
sustainability”, strengthen financial risk management, optimise asset
structure and strictly control operating costs to ensure the financial
stability the Group. In addition, the Group will continue to improve
product and service quality to meet the housing needs of its customers. The
Group will also enhance its internal management system and build an
efficient team in an effort to lay a solid talent foundation for the Group’s

sustainable development.
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APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I would like to express our sincere
appreciation to all shareholders, investors, business partners and customers
for their support, and all employees for their dedication and hard work.
The Company will continue to uphold our core value of “prosperity from
integrity” and achieve stable and sustainable development while bringing

value to shareholders, investors and other stakeholders of the Company.

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
LIU Weiliang
Chairman of the Board

Shanghai, PRC
28 March 2024
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Contracted Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (“Year 2023”), the Group, together
with its joint ventures and associated companies, recorded contracted sales
of RMB15,385.3 million, representing a 54.0% year-over-year decrease
from 2022; total contracted gross floor area (“GFA”) sold amounted to
approximately 1.0 million sq.m., representing a 51.8% year-over-year
decrease from 2022. Contracted average selling price (“ASP”) for Year
2023 was RMB14,986 per sq.m., whilst that for the year ended 31
December 2022 (“Year 2022”) was RMB15,718 per sq.m..

The following table sets forth the geographic breakdown of the contracted
sales of the Group, together with its joint ventures and associated
companies, in 2023.

Geokk HRHE HHTY GeokE
S i B &iE Aok
% of
Contracted Contracted Contracted Contracted
GFA Sold Sales ASP Sales
AR #oL~
Tk ARBTIT RV S %
sq.m. RMB’000 RMB/sq.m. %
E=MAHE Yangtze River Delta Region 418,349 6,541,723 15,637 42.5
Ik 7Y 5 b I Western Taiwan Straits Region 217,638 3,116,769 14,321 20.3
TR 15 i 1 1 Bohai Rim Region 80,245 1,479,373 18,436 9.6
e 7 [ Central China Region 125,499 1,269,825 10,118 8.3
2 7Y Hh W Western China Region 103,536 1,607,623 15,527 10.4
k= A Pearl River Delta Region 81,372 1,369,978 16,836 8.9
25t Total 1,026,639 15,385,291 14,986 100.0
SBOCFFR 7
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Revenue Recognized from Sales of Properties

Revenue recognized from sales of properties increased by 50.3% from
RMB25,707.6 million for Year 2022 to RMB38,648.3 million for Year
2023, primarily due to an increase in GFA being delivered. The Group’s
recognized ASP from sales of properties for Year 2023 was RMB15,433 per
sq.m., representing a 26.7% increase from RMB12,183 per sq.m. for Year
2022, primarily due to the increase in the proportion of properties with
higher selling price being delivered in Year 2023.

During the Year 2023, the properties delivered by the Group included
Nanjing Hongyang Riverside Joy Mansion, Nanjing Zhenro Riverbank
Mansion, Nanjing Zhenro Begonia Mansion, Suzhou Poly Zhenro Oriental
Mansion, Changsha Riverside Zhenro Pinnacle, Xi’an Zhenro Pinnacle and

others.

The following table sets forth the geographic breakdown of the revenue

recognized from sales of properties of the Group for the periods indicated:

ik /Y Y &
Recognized Revenue

from Sales of Properties

1l 50 s 4 %
CLE s | o b & fF 48 2 4 1 B B ¥ 34 4 ]
% of Recognized Revenue
from Sale of Properties Total GFA Delivered Recognized ASP

TROEE CRECTHE DROEHE DR SRS DR SRIZgE CF D4

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

AR¥L ANR#1/

AR¥ETL NRETL % % VLS Tk Tk Tk

RMB’000 RMB’000 % % sq.m. sgm.  RMBISq.m.  RMB/Sq.m.

REZAME Yangtze River Delta Region 20,405,330 14,328,391 52.8 55.8 1,156,372 896,002 17,646 15,991

TEWETE L E Western Taiwan Straits Region 8,297,508 9,281,489 21.5 36.1 570,774 1,009,997 14,537 9,190

TR 1 0 [ Bohai Rim Region - 1,763 = 0.0 = 930 = 1,897

e oh iy [ Central China Region 6,184,660 233,879 16.0 0.9 482,727 33,283 12,812 7,027

HEPG b [ Western China Region 3,760,833 1,057,251 9.7 4.1 294,372 103,740 12,776 10,191

= R Pearl River Delta Region = 804,840 S 3.1 S 66,254 S 12,148

At Total 38,648,331 25,707,613 100.0 100.0 2,504,245 2,110,206 15,433 12,183
ISRt ESREARAR
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Management Discussion and,Analysis

Completed Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale represent completed properties remaining unsold at
the end of each financial period and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost of properties held for sale is determined by an
apportionment of related costs incurred attributable to the unsold
properties.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had completed properties held for sale
of RMB29,801.2 million, representing a 200.9% increase from
RMB9,904.2 million as at 31 December 2022. The increase was primarily
due to an increase in GFA for completed properties by the Group in 2023.
The Group has obtained the construction completion certificates in respect
of all completed properties held for sale.

Properties Under Development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion. Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, capitalized interests and other
costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period and net realizable value. Upon completion, the

properties are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had properties under development of
RMB64,430.2 million, representing a 43.2% decrease from
RMB113,364.4 million as at 31 December 2022. The decrease was
primarily due to an increase in completed properties and a decrease in the

number of projects developed by the Group in 2023.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

Rental Income

The Group’s rental income for Year 2023 was RMB77.5 million,
representing a 13.9% decrease from RMB90.0 million for Year 2022.

Rental income in Year 2023 fell due to poor overall market conditions.

Investment Properties

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 11 investment properties with a
total GFA of 684,476 sq.m. Out of the investment properties portfolio of
the Group, 8 investment properties with a total GFA of 429,429 sq.m. had

commenced leasing.

SBOCFFR (;
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LAND BANK

In 2023, the Group did not replenish any land parcel. As at 31 December
2023, the Group, together with its joint ventures and associated
companies, had a land bank with an aggregate GFA of 12.98 million sq.m..
Please refer to the “Land Bank” section of this annual report for details of
the land bank.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by 49.7% from RMB25,895.5 million for
Year 2022 to RMB38,774.9 million for Year 2023, which was primarily
attributable to an increase in GFA being delivered. The following table
sets forth the Group’s revenue for each of the components, the percentage

of total revenue represented and the relevant changes for the years

BE St A ) o indicated.
TR =R TR TR
2023 2022
Al K8l £3 A B8 A
W 2 ALl I 45 HAa [F] Lt 5 8]
% of Total % of Total Year-over-
Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue  Year Change
AR % ARWTIT % %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % %
LY XK= Sales of properties 38,648,331 99.7 25,707,613 99.3 50.3
LI XiTN=1 Property lease 77,529 0.2 90,013 0.3 (13.9)
B LA IRF© Management consulting
services") 42,851 0.1 85,565 0.3 (49.9)
By ay e Sales of goods 6,224 0.0 12,287 0.1 (49.3)
Ha Gt Total 38,774,935 100.0 25,895,478 100.0 49.7
Ff 2% - Note:
(1) FTEAFEmESESE S BENFURLE (1) Primarily includes revenue generated from provision of design consultation services to

=7 B AR BCF Rk wh AR S BT W o

o 5 A
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joint ventures, associated companies and third parties.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales primarily represents the costs directly incurred for
the property development activities as well as leasing operations and
management consulting services. The principal components of cost of sales
for property development include cost of properties sold, which represents
direct construction costs, land use right costs and capitalized interest costs
on related borrowings for the purpose of property development during the
period of construction.
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The Group’s cost of sales increased by 51.6% from RMB24,146.1 million
for Year 2022 to RMB36,596.2 million for Year 2023, primarily due to an
increase in GFA being delivered by the Group during Year 2023.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s gross profit increased by 24.5%
from RMB1,749.3 million for Year 2022 to RMB2,178.7 million for Year
2023. Gross profit margin for Year 2023 decreased by 1.2 percentage
points to 5.6% from 6.8% for Year 2022.

Other Income and Gains

The Group’s other income and gains primarily consist of interest income,
government grants, commercial compensation and others. Interest income
primarily consists of interest income on bank deposits. Commercial
compensation primarily represents forfeited deposits received from certain
potential customers who did not subsequently enter into sales contracts
with the Group and penalties received from certain customers due to their

breach of sales or pre-sales contracts.

Other income and gains decreased by 67.6% from RMB254.1 million for
Year 2022 to RMB82.2 million for Year 2023, primarily due to the
decrease in interest income, absence of gain on disposal of join ventures and

associates and gain on repurchase of senior notes during Year 2023.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of advertising,
marketing and business development expenses, sales and marketing staff
costs, office expenses, fees paid to third-party sales agents, rental and other

expenses relating to sales of properties and property leasing services.

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses decreased by 5.5% from
RMB976.2 million for Year 2022 to RMB923.0 million for Year 2023,
primarily due to the enhanced control over selling and distribution
expenses with the overall reduction of sales and marketing campaigns by
the Group during Year 2023.

—Bo=FFR W W
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses primarily consist of management and
administrative staff costs, entertainment expenses, office and meeting
expenses, stamp duties and other taxes, rental costs, depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, professional fees, travelling expenses, bank
charges, listing expenses and other general office expenses and

miscellaneous expenses.

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by 29.1% from RMB924.8
million for Year 2022 to RMB655.9 million for Year 2023, primarily
because the Group streamlined its organizational structure and enhanced

cost control over its administrative items during Year 2023.

Other Expenses

Other expenses decreased by 48.5% from RMB8,920.8 million for Year
2022 to RMB4,594.6 million for Year 2023, which mainly include foreign
exchange loss, net, of RMB160.9 million (Year 2022: RMB432.5 million)
and the impairment losses recognized for properties under development
and completed properties held for sale of RMB4,375.9 million (Year 2022:
RMB8,395.5 million) as a result of a decline in the overall housing demand
and lower selling prices of projects held by the Group.

Impairment losses on financial assets, net, decreased by 22.4% from
RMB1,838.2 million for Year 2022 to RMB1,426.4 million for Year
2023.

Fair Value Losses on Investment Properties

The Group develops and holds certain commercial properties on a long-
term basis for rental income or capital appreciation. Under the impact of
the unfavourable macro market environment, there was a decrease in the
fair value of investment properties as a result of the decline in demand for
commercial property. For Year 2023, the Group recorded fair value losses
on investment properties of RMB644.4 million, as compared with fair
value losses on investment properties of RMB410.6 million for Year 2022.



il A

il R A T A A SR AT e A £ i A
BB 32 (0 BR A B BH 8% P ) SR B AL
FE) -

ALEEWREE AR T AFENA
R ¥1,3703 8 8 J0 3 ngs.on E — &
SAEEMANR25880F Wt T EE
B A =% = AR R R B AL R
JITEL o

VA B 2 4 56 B W 85 4 W) i 4R

ARAEM N T F AN EL S AE
s N R s 2m 8o Btk %
CREEMEAS S B SEREBARKE29.9
HEL FEEHRAELCEL Y E
HOH > R R R B o

A SR T T T AR R A B A )
B NR 14078 #oT > B =%~
AR T B A B s W R 4R N R 2256
HEoT TR MRS R Yk
BH WD KA R R

Fie 15 B B >¢

P 15 B S5 A S 0 o G 22 B
o 4 3 19 B (i 3 7 78 B2 ) -3
8 1B -

AL NGB S % AR
ANR®1,77578 &b 729% % % —
SAEEM ARSI E ML T EREH
A A AR S U A A ZE T AR B
DT

M )i 1R

MR b ST > AREEGR R SR
BB A NR 94856 H 8 ¥t —
FOFENERSANREI1461728
Bt -

\\/
\\_// BB R

Management Discussion and,Analysis

Finance Costs

Finance costs primarily consist of interest expenses for bank and other
borrowings net of capitalized interest relating to properties under

development.

The Group’s finance costs increased by 88.9% from RMB1,370.3 million
for Year 2022 to RMB2,588.9 million for Year 2023, primarily due to a

lower capitalization rate for interest on borrowings in 2023.

Share of Losses of Joint Ventures and Associated Companies

The Group’s share of losses of joint ventures was RMB28.2 million for
Year 2023, compared with the share of losses of RMB29.9 million for Year
2022, primarily due to decrease in the number of properties delivered by

and the decline in profit margin for joint ventures.

The Group’s share of losses of associated companies was RMB149.7 million
for Year 2023, compared with the share of losses of RMB225.6 million for
Year 2022, primarily due to the decrease in the number of properties

delivered by and the decline in profit margin for associated companies.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses represent corporate income tax (“CIT”) and land

appreciation tax payable by the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

The Group’s income tax expenses decreased by 72.9% from RMB1,775.7
million for Year 2022 to RMB481.3 million for Year 2023, primarily due
to a decrease in the Group’s CIT for Year 2023.

Loss for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s loss for Year 2023 was
RMB9,485.6 million, compared with a loss of RMB14,617.2 million for
Year 2022.

SBOCFFR W:B
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

The industry in which the Group engages is a capital-intensive industry.
The Group has met, and expects to continue meeting, its operating capital,
capital expenditure and other capital needs with proceeds from pre-sale and
sale of properties, loans from commercial banks, proceeds from corporate
debts or other securities offerings, and capital injections from shareholders.
The Group’s need for short-term liquid capital is mainly associated with
loan repayments and capital needs for operation, and the Group’s short-
term liquid capital comes from cash balance, proceeds from pre-sale and
sale of properties and new financings. The Group’s need for long-term
liquid capital is associated with capital allocated for new property

development projects and repayment of long-term borrowings.

Cash Positions

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and bank balances of
RMBS5,035.6 million (31 December 2022: RMB9,249.7 million), which
included cash and cash equivalents of RMB1,717.0 million (31 December
2022: RMB3,270.1 million), pledged deposits of RMB131.4 million (31
December 2022: RMB86.9 million) and restricted cash of RMB3,187.3
million (31 December 2022: RMB5,892.8 million).

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total outstanding bank and other
borrowings of RMB29,000.5 million (31 December 2022: RMB30,883.6
million), corporate bond with carrying amounts of RMB4,953.7 million (31
December 2022: RMB4,695.4 million), senior notes with carrying
amounts of RMB24,162.2 million (31 December 2022: RMB23,859.5
million) and senior perpetual capital securities (the “PCS”) with carrying
amounts of RMB1,391.9 million (31 December 2022: RMBI1,311.8
million). The Group’s borrowings are denominated in Renminbi, Hong
Kong dollars and US dollars.
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The following table sets forth the Group’s total borrowings as at the dates

HAgH - indicated:
wH+=H=+—8H
As at 31 December
2023 2022
AR¥ T A RHF i
RMB’000 RMB’000
EIJ ﬁﬂ K Current borrowings:

Fr48 sk — A L3 Bank borrowings — secured 242,189 126,303
ﬁﬁ T8 3K — S L A7 Bank borrowings — unsecured 478,877 379,536
At £ 2k — A Other borrowings — secured 2,674,189 2,715,432

HoAth {3 — 4 HE AT Other borrowings — unsecured = 109,696
j} o JE B HA A 2k B HE R 4 Plus: current portion of non-current borrowings

e - A H Bank borrowings — secured 17,423,140 16,448,535

1T 8 3K — S L7 Bank borrowings — unsecured 1,345,892 1,675,221
ﬁﬁﬁ G il Other borrowings — secured 3,670,561 4,246,357
BB IE N Al Senior notes and Corporate bonds 25,349,985 28,554,931
KA E AR S (M FE) PCS (Note) 1,391,908 1,311,845
B 3 £ 2k A AE Total current borrowings 52,576,741 55,567,856
3F El] LER R Non-current borrowings:

Tk — A L3 Bank borrowings — secured 2,022,481 4,587,247
,E\ﬁﬁ R G E Tl Other borrowings — secured 1,143,150 595,270
ANGIR Corporate bonds 3,765,969
IF Bl HA {2 4 40 Total non-current borrowings 6,931,600 5,182,517
H Gt Total 59,508,341 60,750,373

MiEE: MZFZZF—-AMWHA> KRAFALN
A7 fii 188 8 1 LA
B K EAHSE WEF
TR ZHAZ T H KB EALE
R M R R AR o AT BH O —

R 5 Kk A

PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL,

LR > WS BT S B R A
4‘1’55‘6 TRk EERE A

FlE B 85y IR | — & o

—m—

=

Note: On 4 January 2022, the Company announced its exercise of option under the PCS to
redeem the PCS in full. As at 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual
report, the redemption had not taken place. Please refer to the section headed “NON-

INTEREST AND/OR DISTRIBUTION OF

CERTAIN SENIOR NOTES AND PCS” below for further details.
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The following table sets forth the maturity profiles of the Group’s total

borrowings as at the dates indicated:

Rt+_H=+—H

As at 31 December
2023 2022
AR¥ T A RHF i
RMB’000 RMB’000
AN —ENE R Repayable within one year 52,576,741 55,567,856
JHN S AR E R Repayable in the second year 2,496,231 1,486,947
JHN = & HAENEE Repayable within three to five years 4,435,369 3,589,570
AN AL FEE Repayable more than five years - 106,000
st Total 59,508,341 60,750,373

& E ik Charge on Assets

Mo E T ZES A= —H o AREME
)& A A R A AN R 1920H
oUW R K (L F
+-A=+—H: AR¥2105H &) -
HE W A N R 165.8 5 & It B )
HE(CE___HFT_HA=+—H: A
RW17408 #ot) ~ lRMEE X & AR
627730 BoUREYE (CF F+
“HA=+—H: AR%7,0083H & JT)
WR T (E & N R %33,0195 8 & oo 1Y B 3
P ECEFET+ A=+ —H:
NRHs6,7081 H #o0) MRTEHEZS AR
M11,2609 B EREHR B E B Ty ¥
(F -+ -"HA=+—H: AR
1,5799H B IL) » ZEEMHEGCEH - 1F
£y AR 2 T AT I A K HE R

"I é ERHERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s asset portfolio which included
property, plant and equipment with carrying value of RMB192.9 million (31
December 2022: RMB210.5 million), right-of-use assets with carrying
value of RMB165.8 million (31 December 2022: RMB174.6 million),
investment properties with carrying value of approximately RMBG6,277.3
million (31 December 2022: RMB7,008.3 million), properties under
development with carrying value of RMB33,019.5 million (31 December
2022: RMB56,708.1 million) and completed properties held for sale with
carrying value of RMB11,260.9 million (31 December 2022: RMB1,579.9

million) were pledged as security for the Group’s secured borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISKS

The Group primarily operates its business in the PRC. The currency in
which the Group denominates and settles substantially all of its
transactions is Renminbi. Any depreciation of Renminbi would adversely
affect the value of any dividends the Group pays to shareholders outside of
the PRC. The Group had cash at banks denominated in foreign currencies,
which exposed the Group to foreign exchange risk. The Group currently
does not engage in hedging activities designed or intended to manage
foreign exchange rate risk. The Group will continue to monitor foreign
exchange changes to best preserve the Group’s cash value. The Group is
also exposed to interest rate risk for changes in market interest rates which
would have impact on the Group’s bank and other borrowings. The Group
currently does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge interest

rate risk.

In 2023, pre-sale of properties by Chinese property developers continued to
decrease and financing continued to be difficult, which had adversely
impacted the Group’s ability to obtain financing from the capital markets
and other sources, and significantly curtailed the funding available to the
Group to address its upcoming debt maturities. The Group has
implemented a wide range of liquidity management and cost saving
measures including without limitation, seeking extensions and waivers
regarding its financings, seeking disposal of assets, accelerating sales and
cash collection, streamlining corporate structure, as well as reducing non-
core business operations and administrative expenses so long as such
measures do not affect the Group’s delivery efforts and normal operations.
The Company has also commenced the implementation of its holistic
management solutions for its offshore indebtedness (the “Offshore

Holistic Liability Management Solutions”).

Details of financial risk management is set out in Note 43 to the financial

statements.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The Group’s current ratio was 0.97 as at 31 December 2023 (31 December
2022: 1.0). The Group’s net gearing ratio (defined as total borrowings less
cash and bank balances divided by total equity as at 31 December 2023)
was 885.5% as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: 294.6%).

—Bo=FFR W 7
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Mortgage Guarantees

The Group provides mortgage guarantees to banks in respect of the
mortgage loans they provided to the Group’s customers in order to secure
the repayment obligations of such customers. The mortgage guarantees are
issued from the date of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and released
upon the earlier of (i) the transfer of the relevant real estate ownership
certificates to the customers, or (ii) the settlement of mortgage loans by the
customers. If a purchaser defaults on the mortgage loan, the Group is
typically required to repurchase the underlying property by paying off the
mortgage loan. If it fails to do so, the mortgagee banks will auction the
underlying property and recover the balance from the Group if the

outstanding loan amount exceeds the net foreclosure sale proceeds.

As at 31 December 2023, the material contingent liabilities incurred for
the Group’s provision of guarantees to financial institutions in respect of
the mortgage loans they provided to the Group’s customers were
RMB29,210.5 million (31 December 2022: RMB40,128.8 million).

The Directors confirm that the Group has not encountered defaults by
purchasers in which it provided mortgage guarantees that, in aggregate,
had a material adverse effect on the financial condition and results of

operations of the Group.

Other Financial Guarantees

As at 31 December 2023, the guarantees given to banks and other
institutions in connection with borrowings made to the related companies
and a third party by the Group were RMB2,886.9 million (31 December
2022: RMB4,464.4 million).

Legal Contingents

The Group may be involved in lawsuits and other proceedings in its
ordinary course of business from time to time. The Group considers that as
at the date of this annual report, no liabilities resulting from these
proceedings will have a material adverse effect on business, financial

condition or results of operations of the Group.

Commitments

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s capital commitment contracted but
yet provided for was RMB9,329.1 million (31 December 2022:
RMB23,072.1 million).
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS AND
ARRANGEMENTS

Except for the contingent liabilities disclosed above and the matters
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto, as
at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any outstanding loan capital
issued or agreed to be issued, bank overdrafts, loans, debt securities,
borrowings or other similar indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances (other
than normal trade bills), acceptance credits, debentures, mortgages,
charges, finance leases or hire purchase commitments, guarantees or other

material contingent liabilities.

NON-PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL, INTEREST
AND/OR DISTRIBUTION OF CERTAIN SENIOR
NOTES AND PCS

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 10 April
2022, 31 May 2022, 30 June 2022, 3 August 2022, 30 August 2022, 9
November 2022, 12 December 2022, 6 March 2023, 14 March 2023, 31
March 2023, 5 May 2023, 15 September 2023, 6 March 2024 and 12
April 2024.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company had not made payment
of the outstanding principal and/or the accrued distribution and/or the
accrued interest that were due for the securities as set out in the following
table:

3 A D

Payment Status

TR RN H B AR B 7.125% 0 B R

(ZF - ARWKERE)
7.125% Senior Notes due June 2022
(the “2021 RMB Notes”)

AR H B A R 5.989% 118 e R

((ZFZ—FNAER)
5.98% Senior Notes due April 2022
(the “April 2021 Notes”)

“EC=FIARE R 3% BRI
(ZRZBEAAER]D
8.3% Senior Notes due September 2023
(the “June 2020 Notes”)

AT 3 )R 1 8 AR 4 AR 10,020,000 7C M AT B,

Did not make payment for outstanding principal of
RMB10,020,000 and accrued interest that were due

I AT B ] R AE 3R AR 42 23,361,000 32 JC K HE A ALE,

Did not make payment for outstanding principal of
US$23,361,000 and accrued interest that were due

R ST B R 1 4 7R 42 200,000,000 3 T8 K HE A FILE.
Did not make payment for outstanding principal of

US$200,000,000 and accrued interest that were due

TEC=FFR
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Payment Status

TERCPUEZ A FIAA R
R RBERAFERD
8.35% Senior Notes due March 2024
(the “May 2020 Notes”)

.8.35% W 18 Jc 2 4%

ZF AR A FI A B 7.875% ) BB S SR IR
(ZZZFE—AZRK)
7.875% Senior Notes due April 2024
(the “January 2020 Notes”)

CZECIEIA B R 719 M E R
(R ANAER]D
7.1% Senior Notes due September 2024
(the “June 2021 Notes”)

“ERCHFETHABMEE735% 0 ER R
(R RENAFER]D
7.35% Senior Notes due February 2025
(the “September 2020 Notes”)

TR =R ABEEE.15% B R E R
ZF—hLE+—HERED
9.15% Senior Notes due May 2023
(the “November 2019 Notes”)

“ERHENAABBER
(ZZ—-hAE+ARRE)
8.7% Senior Notes due August 2022
(the “October 2019 Notes”)

.8.79 19 1 55

TERIRFE—HEMER6.63% M B
(e e R 3

6.63% Senior Notes due January 2026
(the “January 2021 Notes”)

CEIANENANABBERCTe N ELER
(R TAZER]D

6.7% Senior Notes due August 2026
(the “February 2021 Notes”)

TR THEIAFIHE R 650% K BT R
([ZEZZ—HILHFERED
6.50% Senior Notes due September 2022
(the “September 2021 Notes”)

ERHERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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R S B R A 1B R 42 200,000,000 5 70 B E AT FE,

Did not make payment for outstanding principal of
US$200,000,000 and accrued interest that were due

A A B R A 3 AR 462 290,000,000 35 TG K E AT R

Did not make payment for outstanding principal of
US$290,000,000 and accrued interest that were due

R ST EI 9 E AL RIS

Did not make payment for accrued interest that were due

R ST B HE AT A B

Did not make payment for accrued interest that were due

ST A B B R A 1B K 42 300,000,000 3 76 M E A S

Did not make payment for outstanding principal of
US$300,000,000 and accrued interest that were due

K AT B A R AE 35 AR 42 29,777,000 35 7T K HE A IS,

Did not make payment for outstanding principal of
US$29,777,000 and accrued interest that were due

R SCA E 0 A AR

Did not make payment for accrued interest that were due

R SR 2 RE AT ALE

Did not make payment for accrued interest that were due

A AT F R 18 18 AR 42 31,239,000 3 7T B ME A FLE,

Did not make payment for outstanding principal of
US$31,239,000 and accrued interest that were due
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Payment Status

KA BT I
PCS

TR EAFEZHA B R 8.0% B L 1R
([ZEZ_HE=ZHFERED

8.0% Senior Notes due March 2023
(the “March 2022 Notes”)

TR T EAR = H AR R 8.09% 1 50 B
([ZFEZ_FE=HARWETER]

8.0% Senior Notes due March 2023
(the “March 2022 RMB Notes”)

“EC-FARWER _F 4N
AE®H —F-NWE+AEZER-F
—AEJLA SR R BRI B R A R AR
AR G T 30 K T KR 9 T T IR ST A AT
FEHEHE - F - —F ANRMEERE -
“EFNARE —F-NLFE+HA
SRR T FNLARBRETRERY
HAF e SR> MBS R A ST H
VRS 06 5 5% ot A A 3 e AR % ) P R
AT 10 JFC Al 4 5 SRR KKk A E A R R MK
AT Ao 52 LA AT

R S B R A8 1B AR 42 200,000,000 3 I6 B E AT 4 TR

Did not make payment for outstanding principal of
US$200,000,000 and accrued distribution that were due

R STAT B R 5 4 A 728,623,000 35 7T K JE A+ 1B

Did not make payment for outstanding principal of
US$728,623,000 and accrued interest that were due

I S A B B R A R AR 4 N R 51,589,980,000 JC K ME A A B,

Did not make payment for outstanding principal of
RMB1,589,980,000 and accrued interest that were due

2021 RMB Notes, April 2021 Notes, October 2019 Notes and September
2021 Notes: Failure to pay the outstanding principal at maturity, and
accrued interest upon expiration of the 30-day grace period, both
constituted events of default under the 2021 RMB Notes, the April 2021
Notes, the October 2019 Notes and the September 2021 Notes. However,
the non-payment under the respective senior notes has not triggered, and
will not trigger, any cross-default under the terms of other senior notes and
the PCS issued by the Company.
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June 2020 Notes, May 2020 Notes, January 2020 Notes, June 2021 Notes,
September 2020 Notes, November 2019 Notes, January 2021 Notes,
February 2021 Notes, the PCS, March 2022 Notes and March 2022 RMB
Notes: Failure to pay the outstanding principal at maturity, and accrued
distribution and/or accrued interest upon expiration of the respective grace
periods, both constituted events of default under the PCS and respective
senior notes (as the case may be). If an event of default has occurred (such as
30-day grace period lapses) and is continuing, the trustee or holders of at
least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the PCS and/or relevant senior
notes then outstanding may, by written notice to the Company and to the
trustee, declare the principal of, premium, if any, and accrued and unpaid
distribution and/or interest on the relevant PCS and senior notes to be
immediately due and payable (the “Acceleration Notice”). As at 31
December 2023 and up to the date of approval of this annual report, the
Company has not received any Acceleration Notice as a result of the non-

payment under the respective PCS and/or senior notes.

THE OFFSHORE HOLISTIC LIABILITY
MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 30
August 2022, 9 November 2022, 12 December 2022, 6 March 2023, 14
March 2023, 31 March 2023, 5 May 2023, 10 August 2023, 15 September
2023, 1 November 2023, 2 January 2024, 25 January 2024, 31 January
2024 and 11 April 2024.
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Management Discussion and,Analysis

The Company has been working actively with its advisers to advance its
Offshore Holistic Liability Management Solutions. On 1 November 2023,
the Company entered into a restructuring term sheet (the “Term Sheet”)
with the members of an ad hoc group of creditors comprising certain
holders of the Company’s offshore notes (“AHG”). The Term Sheet forms
the basis of the agreement between the Company and the AHG and is
subject to contract. The Company and the AHG agreed and undertook to
work together in good faith and use commercially reasonable endeavours to
(a) agree further detailed terms in a restructuring support agreement (the
“RSA”), which shall supersede the Term Sheet, and (b) subsequently
conclude further agreements as necessary to effect the Offshore Holistic
Liability Management Solutions, such that they are consistent in all

material respects with the Term Sheet.
On 2 January 2024, the Group and the AHG entered into the RSA.

By 5:00 p.m. Hong Kong time on 24 January 2024, creditors holding over
79% of the existing offshore debts have acceded to the RSA.

The Company is working diligently towards the implementation of the
Offshore Holistic Liability Management Solutions with the support from

the creditors.

However, in light of the recent volatility of the property industry and the
financial results for the year ended 31 December 2023, and given that the
successful implementation of the Offshore Holistic Liability Management
Solutions will depend on a number of factors beyond the Group’s control,
the Company requires more time to consider whether the commercial
terms as currently presented in the RSA remains the appropriate solution
to the Group’s offshore indebtedness in order to secure a sustainable and
viable business for the Company in the long-term. The Company’s
management is of the view that the prudent course of action, which is in
the best interests of all the Company’s creditors, would be to postpone the
implementation of the Scheme. As such, the Company has sought leave
from the Court to vacate the hearing fixed for 2 May 2024. For further
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 11 April
2024.

The Company will make further announcement(s) on the progress of the

Offshore Holistic Liability Management Solutions as and when appropriate.
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DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT
VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 21 June
2023.

On 21 June 2023, Nanjing Zhengnai Real Estate Development Co., Led.* (F§
HIEREEBRAR/AA) (“Nanjing Zhengnai”, a subsidiary of the
Company), Hubei Changjiang Industrial Carrier Investment Development
Co., Led.* (MILRILERBWE B EMEARAA) (‘Hubei
Changjiang”), Shanghai Yixia Enterprise Development Co., Led.* ([
WE{E%%E%F@Q}E), Nanjing Zhengqi Real Estate Development
Co., Led.* (B BB EEBEARAF) (“Nanjing Zhengqi”),
Nanjing Changtou Zhengbang Real Estate Co., Led.* (F§ =4 IEFRH
F AP/ F]), Nanjing Changtou Zhengli Decoration Engineering Co.,
Led.* (R R IIEF| 266 TREAFR/AF) and Zhenro Properties
Holdings Company Limited* (IF4&H07E 2 B A FR/A 7], formerly known
as IEZEHLERE A A RN F]) (“Zhenro Properties Holdings”)
entered into an agreement, pursuant to which Nanjing Zhengnai agreed to
dispose of, and Hubei Changjiang agreed to purchase, the sale equity
interest, representing 80% of the equity interest of Nanjing Zhengqi, and
the benefit of the sale loan, representing the amount outstanding and
owing by Nanjing Zhengqi to Nanjing Zhengnai, for a consideration of
RMB75,000,000, which has been paid by Hubei Changjiang to Nanjing
Zhengnai in cash (the “Nanjing Zhengqi Disposal”).

Completion of the Nanjing Zhengqi Disposal took place in the second half
of 2023. Upon completion of the Nanjing Zhengqi Disposal, the Group no
longer held any interest in Nanjing Zhengqi and Nanjing Zhengqi ceased
to be accounted as a subsidiary of the Company.

For details regarding the Nanjing Zhengqi Disposal, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 21 June 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there was no material acquisition or disposal of

subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates by the Company in 2023.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE
GROUP

During Year 2023, there was no significant investment held by the Group.
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Management Discussion and,Analysis

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group currently has no plan to make any significant investment or

acquisition of capital assets.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 515 employees (31
December 2022: 736 employees).

The Group recruits skilled and qualified personnel in local markets
through various channels, such as recruiting firms, internal referrals and
advertisement on the Internet. The Group values employees who
demonstrate loyalty to their work and who values corporate culture, as well
as those with relevant working experience. The Group’s future
development, to a considerable extent, depends on its ability to identify,
hire, train and retain suitable employees, including management personnel,
with relevant professional skills. Therefore, the Group has established
systematic training programs for employees based on their positions and

expertise.

The Group enters into labor contracts with all employees and offers
employees competitive remuneration packages that include basic salaries,
discretionary bonuses and performance-based payments. The Company has
also adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).

Under the applicable PRC laws and regulations, the Group is subject to
social insurance contribution plans. The Group also participates in a
pension scheme under the rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “MPF
Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Save for the matters as disclosed under the section headed “THE
OFFSHORE HOLISTIC LIABILITY MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS”
above, no material events were undertaken by the Group subsequent to 31

December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 5 July
2019, 7 August 2020 and 29 September 2020.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

In July 2019, pursuant to a facility agreement (the “2019 Facility
Agreement”) entered into between, among others, the Company as
borrower, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company as original
guarantors, Hang Seng Bank Limited, China Minsheng Banking Corp.,
Ltd., Hong Kong Branch, The Bank of East Asia, Limited, Goldman Sachs
(Asia) L.L.C. and BNP Paribas, acting through its Hong Kong Branch,
collectively as original lenders, dual-currency term loan facilities in the
amount of HK$234,000,000 and US$90,000,000 (totaling approximately
US$120,000,000) (the “2019 Loan Facilities”, each a “2019 Loan
Facility”) were made available to the Company for a term of 36 months
from the date of the 2019 Facility Agreement.

As provided in the 2019 Facility Agreement, if Mr. OU Zongrong, Mr.
OU Guogiang and Mr. OU Guowei collectively (a) do not or cease to,
directly or indirectly, own at least 51% of the beneficial shareholding in
the Company, carrying at least 51% of the voting right in the Company, of
which at least 45% beneficial shareholding must, at any time on or after
the first date of utilisation of the 2019 Loan Facility, be free from any
security; (b) are not or cease to be the single largest shareholder of the
Company; and/or (c) do not or cease to have management control over the
Company, the commitments under the 2019 Loan Facilities may be
cancelled and all amounts outstanding together with accrued interest and
all other amounts accrued under the 2019 Loan Facilities may become

immediately due and payable.

In August 2020, a facility agreement (the “2020 Facility Agreement”)
was entered into between, among others, the Company as borrower, certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company as the original guarantors, Bank
of China (Hong Kong) Limited, CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited, Hang
Seng Bank Limited and certain other financial institutions, collectively as
lenders, whereby dual-currency term loan facilities in the amount of
HK$273,000,000 and US$106,000,000 (totaling approximately
US$141,000,000) were made available to the Company for a term of 36
months from the date of the first utilisation of the loan facility. In
September 2020, Chong Hing Bank Limited (as lender) acceded to the
2020 Facility Agreement in accordance with the terms of the 2020 Facility
Agreement (the “Accession”). Following the execution of the Accession,
the total amount of loan facilities made available to the Company under
the 2020 Facility Agreement was approximately US$161,000,000 (the “2020
Loan Facilities”, each a “2020 Loan Facility”).
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Management Discussion and,Analysis

As provided in the 2020 Facility Agreement, if (i) Mr. OU Zongrong, Mr.
OU Guogiang and Mr. OU Guowei (collectively, the “Relevant Persons”)
collectively (a) do not or cease to, directly or indirectly, own at least 51%
of the beneficial shareholding in the Company, carrying at least 51% of the
voting right in the Company, of which at least 45% of the beneficial
shareholding must, at all times from the date of the 2020 Facility
Agreement for so long as any liability is outstanding or any commitment is
in force, be free from any security; (b) are not or cease to be the single
largest shareholder of the Company; and/or (c¢) do not or cease to have
management control over the Company; and/or (ii) the chairman of the
Company is not any of Mr. HUANG Xianzhi, Mr. LIU Weiliang (being an
existing executive Director) or Mr. CHAN Wai Kin or any of the Relevant
Persons, the commitments under the loan facilities may be cancelled and
all amounts outstanding together with accrued interest and all other
amounts accrued under the loan facilities may become immediately due
and payable.

As at 31 December 2023 and as at the date of approval of this annual
report, the Company had not made payment of the outstanding principal
and/or the accrued interest that were due for the 2019 Loan Facilities and
the 2020 Loan Facilities, which constituted an event of default under the
2019 Loan Facilities and the 2020 Loan Facilities. In light of this, the
Company has commenced the implementation for the Offshore Holistic
Liability Management Solutions, details of which are set out in the section
headed “THE OFFSHORE HOLISTIC LIABILITY MANAGEMENT
SOLUTIONS” above.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December 2023, the
Directors are not aware of any circumstances that would trigger the
disclosure requirement under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing
Rules.
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Properties Developed by the Group's Subsidiaries

1 SAGES N

2 RS

3 L ERSRR

4 BMESREL %

5 RAEREEH

6 BNBEN L E

7 SR IE 58 B8 L T 5
8 BMERHES RS LR
9 BN IES TR

0 RHBERER

11 PR EA B R P

12 A A IE SR B
13 HARERHILR
14 MR ERH %
15 B EERI RN
16 (R LAPR
17 ¢ IE SR A
18 F A R 7
19 AR BRI
2 HRERBUR A

21 HRERMRN
b)) 5 I 4 R

3 P LS BRI
2% pi A IE ST 2

2 EEEN ERR
26 T 2

27 TR re b A
2 T I 5 R
29 BT AT
30 BMERWE RN

28

Shanghai Honggiao Zhenro Mansion
Shanghai Zhenro Royal Kingdom
Shanghai Zhenro Yuelong Mansion
Suzhou Zhenro Wind Mansion
Zhangjiagang Tangsong Cloud Garden
Suzhou Riverside Four Seasons Garden
Suzhou Zhenro Riverside Garden
Suzhou Poly Zhenro Oriental Mansion
Suzhou Zhenro West to The Moon

Hangzhou Heting Xiging Mansion

Nanjing Zhento Aoti Nanchen Pinnacle

Nanjing Zhento Splendid Land

Nanjing Zhenro Riverside Wonderland
Nanjing Zhenro Royal Fame

Nanjing Zhento Riverside Violet Pinnacle
Nanjing Times Tianyue

Nanjing Zhenro River Mansion

Nanjing South Riverside Peak

Nanjing Zhento East Mansion

Nanjing Zhento Joy City Mansion

Nanjing Zhenro Waterfront Mansion

Nanjing Zhenro Mist Mansion

Nanjing Zhenro Begonia Mansion

Nanjing Zhento Riverbank Mansion

Nanjing Hongyang Riverside Joy Mansion
Chuzhou Zhenro Mansion

Chuzhou Time Elegance Garden

Chuzhou Zhenro Splendid Mansion
Sugian Zhongwu Zhenro Mansion

Xuzhou Yunlonghu Zhenro Mansion

ESESEERAR
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Bl

City

I Shanghai
| 16 Shanghai
| ¥ Shanghai
B MSuzhou
B M Suzhou
# M Suzhou
B MSuzhou
B MSuzhou
# M Suzhou

1t M Hangzhou

i 7 Nanjing

T ¥ Nanjing
T 5 Nanjing
i % Nanjing
B 3 Nanjing
T % Nanjing
i 7 Nanjing
1 5% Nanjing
T ¥ Nanjing

T 7 Nanjing

T 7 Nanjing

i 7 Nanjing

i 7 Nanjing

4 3 Nanjing

1 3 Nanjing
T Chuzhou
1 M Chuzhou
M Chuzhou
15 B Sugian

1% M Xuzhou

REMENES LERITRO

Interest Attributable

to the Group

100.00%
90.25%
90.25%
52.25%
49.29%
47.95%
32.30%
47.50%
83.75%

96.15%

26.14%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
20.00%
36.67%
20.50%
100.00%

49.00%

51.00%

100.00%

75.02%

51.01%

51.00%
40.00%
50.10%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%

Primary
Intended Use"”

R/RE

R/RE

RIRE

RRE

RRE
RIRE
R/RE
RE/S&O
R/RE/S&O
R/RE
R/RE

R

R

R/IRE

R/RE

R/RE

RRE

R/RE
R/RE

R

o
(FIixk)
Site Area

(sq.m.)

82,362
110,022
19,393
45,742
76,416
64,382
49,502
103,259
31,176

30,764

31,902

105,353
71,345
84,546
83,048
44,787
32,622
26,829
84,929

11,561

36,292

34,696

63,074

40,522

65,227
80,867
55,719
92,170
112,213

55,719

THRA EB/ERHETAY

(AR E )
Land Cost Actual/Estimated
(RMB10,000) Completion Date
256,000 2022107
136,038 2016/05
67,897 2023/03
108,550 2021110
105,138 2022110
75,933 2024106
70,886 2022/11
240,495 2023/11
58,694 2023/06
89,412 202410
323,000 2023/12
210,000 2019/01
152,000 2018/12
312,000 2019/05
340,000 2022105
170,000 2022/11
152,000 2022105
114,000 2021/06
144,000 2023/04
51,000 2022104
145,000 2022/04
138,000 2022112
250,000 2022112
246,000 2022/12
258,000 2022112
41,300 2021103
22,250 2022106
112,400 202512
130,616 2023/06
60,113 2022/12

ER 1
(F75 %)
Land Bank”

(sq.m.)

115,123
25,209
11310
12,203
18,885
58,070
2,007
215,850
17,689

81,664

122,851

6,445
936

2
180,794
156931
15,866
5,637
148,745

3,733

30,874

18,789

44,362

13,950

68,326
8,953
12,981
158,868
212,745

45,382
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Project Address

South to Nijiajiao Road, West to Lianmin Road, North to Xuhe Road, Qingpu District, Shanghai, PRC

Lane 1211, Fuyuan Road, Baoshan District, Shanghai, PRC

North to Chezhan River, West to Bai'an Road, South to Yadan Road, East to Dikuai Boundary, Jiading District, Shanghai, PRC

Building 1, No.2 Jianye Road, Gaoxin Technology Industrial Park, Economic and Technological Development Zone, Changshu, Jiangsu Province, PRC
North to Zhangyang Avenue, Jingkai District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

North to Mudan Road, East to Wendu Road, Wangting Town, Xiangcheng District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

South to Libo Road, West to Xiangshanbei Road, Taihu National Tourism Resort, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

West to Fuchunjiang Road, North to Penglai Road, Kaifa District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

West to Muguang River, North to Xijingiao Road, Mudu Town, Wuzhong District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

North to Park Green Space, West to Congwen Road, South to Heting Street, East to Xinggang Road, Lin'an Economic Development District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province, PRC

North to Honghua Road, West to Zhidong First Road, South to Yingtian Street, East to Chengtian Avenue, Qigiao District, Nanbu New Town,
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Zhenro Splendid Land, No.2 of Wangjiang Road, Pukou District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Zhenro Riverside Wonderland, No.99 of Zhennanhe Road, Pukou District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

No.27-1 of Hexi South Road, Jianye District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Crosstoad of Wuhou Street and Yecheng Road, Jianye District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

No.18, Yongsheng Road, Jiangning District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Crossroad of Zhuquan West Road and Jiangmiao Road, Pukou District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Crossroad of Daishan Middle Road and Daishan North Road, Xishanqiao Street, Yuhuatai District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC
North to Pinggang Road, West to Huayuan Road, Longtan New Town, Qixia District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

North to Guangxigeng Street, West to Yingjiang Road, South to Guihuadao Road, East to Guihua Kindergarten and Community Center, Jiangbei New
District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Parcel East to Jiangbei Expressway, North to Qilihe Sub-District, Jiangbei New District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

North to Guihua Qilin Road, West to Guihua Jinger Road, South to Guihua Weiwu Road, East to Guihua Jingsan Road, Qilin Street, Jiangning
District, Xianlin Street, Qixia District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

East to Kangan Road, South to Yingjiang Road, Pukou District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

North to Fangjiaying Road, West to Fangjiaying No.784, South to Fangjiaying No. 80, East to Chenghe North Road, Gulou District, Nanjing, Jiangsu
Province, PRC

Parcel East to Kangjian Road, South to Yingjiang Road, Jiangpu Street, Pukou District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC
Northeast to the Crosstoad of Zuiweng East Road and Yangming South Road, Nangiao District, Chuzhou, Anhui Province, PRC
Southeast to the Crossroad of Renhe Road and Jingzi Road, Chuzhou, Anhui Province, PRC

Northeast to the Crossroad of Qingliu Road and Dingyuan Road, Chuzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Economic and Technological Development Zone, Sugian, Jiangsu Province, PRC

South to Pengcheng Happy Valley, West to Yudai Avenue, Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC
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Land Bank
B8 TRA B/ HRATHY ER 1
% HHAR i AEMENES FERINRY Pk (ARWERD) (F75 %)
Interest Attributable Primary  Site Area Land Cost Actual/Estimated Land Bank”
# Project Names City tothe Group  Intended Use” (sq.m.) (RMB10,000) Completion Date (sq.m.)
31 AR 1907 Hefei City 1907 4 IE Hefei 25.00% RRE 111380 180,500 201912 20,505
32 BIEIL S E 40T - 1R 5 Hefei Beicheng Zhenro Mansion ~ Feng Garden 5 M Hefei 100.00% R/RE 50,857 71,709 2022/06 34,867
33 A ML IR IE 4 7 - B4 Hefei Beicheng Zhenro Mansion — Ya Garden A I Hefei 100.00% R/RE 30,488 42,988 2022103 20,568
34 AR IE 4 - S Hefei Beicheng Zhenro Mansion —Song Garden 43 I Hefei 100.00% RIRE 43,324 61,087 2022111 33,009
35 ARBERELR Hefei Jade Zhenro Mansion A I Hefei 100.00% RRE 58464 111,374 2022/09 45,003
36 ABTEEMBEEARR  Hefei Zhenro Cifi Zhengwu Future A IE Hefei 55.00% RRE 107,128 161,978 2023/10 78579
37 AEEER 4 B BRI Lwan Councry Garden Zhenro North Phoenix 73 % Lu'an 34.38% RRE 199,748 111,500 2023106 289,963

Mansion
38 BREEMIEZR Fuyang Yingzhou Zhenro Mansion B B Fuyang 100.00% RRE 192371 124,112 2024106 312,165
& = £ /1 i Yangtze River Delta Region Sub-total 2,620,199 5445570 2,649,951

39 0 39 IE S I Zhengzhou Chengnan Zhenro Mansion M Zhengzhou 97.90% R 198941 90,000 2023/07 385,898
40 PO IE 48 60 T K Mk 034 Zhengzhou Zhenro Yushou Mansion Tianyue 23# ] Zhengzhou 26.01% R 49,924 47279 2024106 195,309
4 WM EABE K M24%  Zhengshou Zhenro Yushou Mansion Tianyue 244 5 JH Zhengzhou 26.01% R 54,041 51,069 202211 158,858
1Y) BN ESBE N K254 Zhengzhou Zhenro Yushou Mansion Tianjing 254 5l Zhengzhou 26.01% R/RE 62477 59,041 2023/05 221,365
4 REBH R Wuhan Panlong Zhenro Mansion H 1 Wuhan 100.00% RRE 49251 92,210 2022112 23,29
4 KA BRR AT Wuhan Zhenro Yuelong Mansion 4 Wuhan 100.00% RRE 33331 44335 2023/03 131,986
45 REFLHERNZ Wuhan Zhenro Propitious Peak % Wuhan 49.66% RIRE 15,478 63,566 2022112 68,903
46 REEENRA Wuhan Zhenro Yuejing Mansion R Wuhan 100.00% RRE 2739 60,560 2023/06 90,754
47 B B R Wuhan Caidian Yuelong Mansion East B Wuhan 100.00% R/RE 34,012 44,470 2023/06 118,011
48 RUERME DL Changsha Zhenro Fortune Center 1 Changsha 100.00% RRE 145,220 45,040 202112 64,756
49 RUERBLEMA Changsha Riverside Zhenro Pinnacle R Changsha 100.00% RRES&O 107,493 83,000 2022/10 163,662
50 RUEEHEEM A Changsha Meixi Zhenro Pinnacle W Changsha 100.00% RRES&O 20275 76,781 2022112 86,096
51 R RRERR Changsha Zhongliang Zhenro Mansion 1 Changsha 51.00% R/RE 80,802 119,250 2023/12 240,625
150 Nt Central China Region Sub-total 878,036 876,601 1,949,519
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Land Bank

Project Address

Northwest corner of the Crosstoad of Guiyang Road and Sichuan Road, Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC

Northeast corner of the Crossroad of Yangmiao Road and Cihuai Road, Changfeng County, Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC
Northeast corner of the Crossroad of Cihuai Road and Fuyang North Road, Changfeng County, Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC
Northeast corner of the Crossroad of Fuyang North Road and Jihe Road, Changfeng County, Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC
Northeast corner of the Crosstoad of Feicui Road and Xianxia Road, Feixi County, Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC

Southeast to the Crossroad of Dengta Road and Chuangxin Avenue, Shangpai Town, Feixi County, Hefei, Anhui, PRC

Crossroad of Qingxi Road and Xingguang Avenue, Lu'an, Anhui Province, PRC

East to Chengquan Road, South to Sanging Road, Chengnan New District, Fuyang, Anhui Province, PRC
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Daxue South Road auxiliary road (East side), Guihua Third Road (Southsside), Longhu Town, Xinzheng, Zhengzhou, Henan Province, PRC
West to Jingyi Road, South to Xiangyun Road, Longhu Town, Xinzheng, Zhengzhou, Henan Province, PRC

West to Jingyi Road, North to Weisan Road, Longhu Town, Xinzheng, Zhengzhou, Henan Province, PRC

West to Guihua Road, North to Xianghe Road, Longhu Town, Xinzheng, Zhengzhou, Henan Province, PRC

South to Houhu Avenue, East to Panlong Avenue, Panlongcheng Economic Development District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC

West to the Crossroad of Gaofu Street and Tiancheng Road, Caidian Street, Caidian District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC

East to Baoxi Road, North to Gaoxinsan Road, West to Zhiquan Road, South to Shendunwu Road, Donghu New Technology Development District,
‘Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC

South to Kangli Street, East to Liufang Road, West to Guanggu Second Road, North to Kangmei Road, Donghu New Technology Development District,
Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC

West to the Crossroad of Gaofu Avenue and Tiancheng Road, Caidian Street, Caidian District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC

Southwest corner of the Crossroad of Gaotanglingjiedaojiayuan North Road and Weiluoke Road, Wangcheng District, Changsha, Hunan Province, PRC
Southeast to the Crossroad of Yinshan Road and Gushan Road, Yuelu District, Changsha, Hunan Province, PRC

Parcel F-19, Meixi Lake Area, Yuelu District, Changsha, Hunan Province, PRC

South to Liangtang Road, Xingsha Street, Changsha County, Changsha, Hunan Province, PRC
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BT B TRA B/ HRATHY ER ]

% HHAR Wi REMENES LERINEY  (Fik)  (ARWERD) (F75 %)
Interest Attributable Primary  Site Area Land Cost Actual/Estimated Land Bank”

# Project Names City tothe Group  Intended Use” (sq.m.) (RMB10,000) Completion Date (sq.m.)
52 [iEE 3R 5 Xan Beichen Tianyue North 7% Xan 34.00% R/RE 53,117 85,830 2024107 187,138
53 AR Kl Xian Beichen Tianyue South % X'an 34.00% RRE 41900 68,000 2024/01 148,748
54 R EENF Xi'an Zhento Mansion % Xan 100.00% RES&O 39,322 32,440 2022108 45943
55 FBEELXMA (BE)  XiaoZhenro Pinnacle (West) 7% Xi'an 93.49% RRES&O 36042 72,400 2023/04 143,026
56 FRCE R A I 4 0 = 4 Chengdu Guihu Zhenro Mansion Phase 2 i Chengdu 100.00% R 20179 32232 2022/10 17,304
57 AT EABMIT  ChengduDujiangyan Zhenro Yuelong Mansion i, # Chengdu 100.00% RRE 48140 31,712 2022/10 127,832
58 AR 56 Chengdu Run Mansion i # Chengdu 100.00% R 29403 90,561 2023106 97,307
59 R E R E Chengdu Spring Rural Fields i # Chengdu 65.00% R 24639 4377 2022/12 7,540
60 BEHE RN Chongging Yuexi Zhenro Mansion B Chongging 100.00% R 88177 82,000 2023/03 41,760
61 BREELHERTE Chongqing Zhenro Langji Yuejiang Mansion B Chongging 51.00% R/RE 46,757 51,400 2023/06 133,829
15 # /17 it Western China Region Sub-total 427,676 551,012 950,426

[3) EMER A Fuzhou Guanlan Mansion {7 M Fuzhou 51.00% R 19505 32,500 2024/01 57,54
6 MR Fuzhou Begonia Mansion H M Fuzhou 100.00% RRE 46429 74,000 2024111 118,173
6 BMRELE Fuzhou Jingxiu Mansion 78 M Fuzhou 100.00% R 24964 33,200 2023/10 54,148
5] BNERRE L Fuzhou Zhenro Forcune Center {7 M Fuzhou 100.00% RRES&O 113,33 127,700 201712 71371
66 M EZE R Fuzhou Zhenro Mansion 1 M Fuzhou 100.00% RRESO 66874 191,000 201912 600
67 BNESERE=TER Fuzhou Zhento Mawei Sanjiang Habitat 7 M Fuzhou 100.00% R 36,014 47,760 2024/08 54,199
68 MR IE B & b~ Fuzhou Mawei Zhenro Fortune Cencer Phase 1§ JHl Fuzhou 100.00% RRE 67,032 85,665 2019/08 18,436
69 BMELZHE Fuzhou Zhenro Seascape Wonderland 1M Fuzhou 26.50% RRE 33,436 74,700 2022005 28,836
70 & L IE 280 Fuzhou Riverview Zhento Mansion H M Fuzhou 80.00% RRE 110,191 289,000 2023103 191,017
7 BN ESENEIL Fuzhou Zhenro Begonia Riverview 7 M Fuzhou 100.00% RIRE 3973 67,200 2023/05 82,081
7 TR E BRI Fuzhou Zhenro Yuerong Mansion F H Fuzhou 100.00% RRE 61510 189,300 2021/12 55,792
I} BMEREMAEUTFER  FuzhouZhenro Jucheng Jinshan Communicy M Fuzhou 70.00% R 1L116 45,700 2022105 6,336
74 o M 888 A Fuzhou Hubin Mansion 1 M Fuzhou 34.00% RRE 42420 90,800 2022111 17,832
7 N BE 28 0255 Fuzhou Yurong Zhenro Mansion 02 H M Fuzhou 100.00% RRE 68,079 100,800 2020111 9,792
76 TN EBIE 035 Fuzhou Yurong Zhento Mansion 03 18 M Fuzhou 100.00% R 64,728 90,000 202112 22,763
77 BRI Pingtan Zhenro Mansion Yuexi # M Fuzhou 100.00% R/RE 66,560 110,000 202011 90,487
78 BMERETERERR Xiamen Zhenro Zhonglinag Tianzhu Run Mansion & "] Xiamen 51.00% R/RE 19978 188,000 2023/12 86,479
79 88 I 48 Xiamen Lianfa Zhenro Mansion 8 M Xiamen 51.00% RIRE 19,209 157,000 2023/12 73,700
80 i M e IF 48 Y Xiamen Zhongliang Zhenro Mansion i ] Xiamen 40.80% RIRE 17,228 100,000 2022111 16,195
81 8 M % IE 4R Xiamen Xiang'an Zhenro Mansion % M Xiamen 100.00% RRE 27,59 117,000 2023/09 116,420
82 WHEEME PO Putian Zhenro Fortune Center # H Putian 100.00% RRESKO 199,941 91,600 2022108 280,894
83 78 M IE 4 75 % iy Putian Zhenro Litchi Garden # M Putian 100.00% RRE 35,268 1,721 2010/06 819
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Project Address

West to Lehua First Road, South to Jinghewan First Road, East to Lehua Second Road, Jinghe New Town, Xi'an, Shaanxi Province, PRC

West to Lehua First Road, North to Jinghewan Second Road, East to Lehua Second Road, Jinghe New Town, Xi'an, Shaanxi Province, PRC
Northeast corner of the Crossroad of Ethuan North Road (East part) and Yongqing Road, Xi'an, Shaanxi Province, PRC

Southwest corner and Southeast corner of the Crossroad of Yujing Road and Yongcheng Road, Xi'an, Shaanxi Province, PRC

Wugui Village, Guihu Street (Former:Xindu Street), Xindu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, PRC

Caihong Community, Xingfu Street, Dujiangyan, Sichuan Province, PRC

Group 3, 4 of Wafang Village, Cugiao Street, Group 7 of Banbianjie Village, Jitougiao Street, Wuhou District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, PRC
Sth Agricultural Cooperative, Baohua Village, Tuanjie Town, Pidu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, PRC

East to Heyuan Road, North to Fenghe Road, Shuitu Park Area, Liangjiang New District, Chongqing, PRC

Parcel F9-10, F Sub-district, Dadukouzutuan, Dadukou District, Chongging, PRC
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North to Linjiang Souh Road, East to Yingbin Road, Yinggian Street, Changle District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
Rongdong Village, Zhugi Township, Minhou County, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

South to Raocheng Express Way, Tangxie Village, Xindian Town, Jing an District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

No. 18, Xinbao Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou County, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

East to Zhandong Road, West to Guishan Road, Jin'an District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

Yanshan West Road (North side), Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

North to Shanggqi Road, East to Junzhu Road, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

Southwest to Shangqi Road, Northeast to Zhongjialan Bay, Southeast to Luoxing West Road, Mawei, Fujian Province, PRC
Southwest to Shangqi Road, Northeast to Zhongjialan Bay, Southeast to Luoxing West Road, Mawei, Fujian Province, PRC
Changjiang Village, Ganzhe Street, Minhou County, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

Parcel 1, Reconstruction of the old house in the submarine dangerous land block, East to Liuyi Road, Jing an District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

Maipu Comprehensive Development Lot 1 on the East side of Hongwanbei Road, Northside of Jinting Community

phase 2, the South side of Jintang Road, Cangshan District, Fuzhou City, Fujian Province, PRC

East to South Railway Station, South to Yongnan Road, Cangshan District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
Yufeng Village, Dongliu Village, Longshan Street, Fuging, Fujian Province, PRC

Yufeng Village, Yutang Village, Longshan Street, Fuging, Fujian Province, PRC

Southsside of Chengyi Road (Former: Tiandashan North Road), West side of Xinggang Middle Road (Former:Jinjing Second Road), Pingtan County,

Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

West to the Crossroad of Jimei Avenue and Jimei North Avenue, Jimei New Town Sub-district, Xiamen, Fujian Province, PRC

West to the Crossroad of Duiying Middle Road and Duiying North Road, Jimei New Town Sub-district, Jimei District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, PRC
South to the Corner of Wenju Road and Bojian Road, Daxuecheng Sub-district, Jimei District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, PRC

Northeast to the Crossroad of Shamei Road and Xiang'an South Road, Lianhe Sub-district, Xiang an District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, PRC

Adjacent to Mulanxi, Crosstoad of Liyuan Road and Tianfei Road, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC

South to North Avenue, Licheng District, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC
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BT B TRA B/ HRATHY ER 1

% HHAR i AEMENES FERINRY Pk (ARWERD) (F75 %)
Interest Attributable Primary  Site Area Land Cost Actual/Estimated Land Bank”

# Project Names City tothe Group  Intended Use” (sq.m.) (RMB10,000) Completion Date (sq.m.)
84 #HESH 50 Putian Zhento Times Plaza # M Putian 100.00% RRE 118943 1,721 2008/11 41,768
85 BHELHAHE Putian Zhenro Royal Family i Ml Putian 100.00% RRE 42431 1,721 2016/10 4,663
86 BHERARER Putian Zhenro Habitat # Hl Putian 100.00% R 79,698 98,000 2023/06 83,655
87 R I A Putian Yuxi Zhenro Mansion # I Putian 100.00% R 16,116 26,600 2022108 5,052
88 HHABESARK =8 Putian Jiuxi Zhenro Mansion Phase 3 # M Putian 100.00% RRE 57,959 122,600 2023/03 182,394
89 i hnEd Putian Hanjiang Zhenro Mansion # M Putian 100.00% R 19,895 28,500 2023/06 66,135
90 SMARIE R Quanzhou Shishi Zhenro Mansion 5 Quanzhou 100.00% R 33,942 36,300 2020/04 13
91 BMERERITER Quanzhou Zhenro Baojia Riverside Mansion #H Quanzhou 46.50% R/RE 59,486 50,000 2021/11 4,156
92 RMEREER Quanzhou Jindong Zhenro Mansion 9 Quanzhou 34.00% RRE 57,632 41,600 2021/11 23,894
93 BILEEEHMEAERX  Jinjiang Zhenro Xunxing Century Spring 4 Quanzhou 51.00% R/RE 34,124 53,300 2022004 19,265
94 RMELERER Quanzhou Jinjiang Zhento Mansion 5 M Quanzhou 100.00% RRE 104,664 83,400 2023/11 340,558
9 MEESTANES Nanchang Zhenro Zhong 20 Yuexi Mansion i B Nanchang 62.00% R/RE 39,116 56,023 2022/08 43,761
9% MEEEKHZH Nanchang Zhenro The Capital of Great Loch i B Nanchang 100.00% RRE 872,79 25,200 2017/06 17,874
97 CENT 3 Nanchang Zhenro Yueyun Mansion i B Nanchang 51.00% RRE 46576 63,157 2022/10 59,170
98 T B E4 AR Nanchang Zhenro Huarun Linglong Mansion 1 £ Nanchang 48.00% RRE 72,103 57971 2019/11 1,149
9 MEHNA Nanchang Xinli Garden 7 £ Nanchang 39.00% R/RE 90,414 72,8% 2019/11 35,040
100 MEEREKENER Nanchang Zhenro Jinmao Media Cloud Wonderland £t Nanchang 34.00% R/RE 53,563 73,435 2023/12 42312
101 MAELEE Nanchang Zhenro Bay Mansion 7 & Nanchang 100.00% RRE 22,842 21036 2022109 6951
102 HEMRERELKE LR Nanchang Zhaoshang Jinmao Zhenro Land of Cloud ) Nanchang 34.00% R/RE 101,483 139,894 2023/08 206,831
103 MBELENR Nanchang Zheno Vesture i B Nanchang 100.00% RIRE 58,729 121,448 2022/10 33,853
104 EE3 Ui Ji'an Lulin Mansion Phase 1 F %t 100.00% RRE 74388 75,922 2021/12 11423
105 RN 8 Ji'an Lulin Mansion Phase 2 %o 100.00% RRE 67,59 77,557 2022003 21,326
106 HESREREN Yichun Jintou Zhenro Mansion H & Yichun 35.00% RIRE 55,227 26,600 2022106 25,080
107 HEEEMAH—H Yichun Zhenro Yuelinglong Phase 1 H & Yichun 100.00% RRE 48549 21375 2022105 6312
108 HEEENAR M Yichun Zhenro Yuelinglong Phase 2 T Yichun 100.00% RRE 49,205 37,900 202311 76,986
109 HEERBEMEBILT  Yichun Zhenro Yango Feili Riverside Bay H % Yichun 49.00% RIRE 38920 20,700 202311 109,194

ff 6 VG 5 /1 i Western Taiwan Straits Region Sub-total 3,491,781 3,743,439 2,928,790

34

ESESEERAR
Zhenro Properties Group Limited



R

TR IR B AR R R

o B AR R A A MR (SR RIVE)
B2 AR R BT
TEEEEEEIRERE A E
TREZEWETHERDE ARKE AN
B2 AR TR R AR E R
SRR B RN TR A S R I A R

AR R T A DL U A B R BT TR A T A > RERIELB
Tl REL Y HERRLERE

AR A N IR B TR LR m R
ZHH

TREEERM BT EE B HEKEF

oA MO A R B

PELTE B A R RSO b s A RSP
BT & B T BB IR B 533

BT AR BT HERE AT R 2L
LT B AL A IR SR 36 5

BT 4 P AL 25 R R 2 L 777 8

BRI & T R 7 80 e B LR Sl — B L

LT B T BB DR I AR SR KBUIT =%
BRE ML

LT B T T DR R BB DA RE BRI E
RE—B - BERGH - L2

of BT 4 0 A AT — B DR SO W B DL

of B UL 4 S A 6 AL KR DR B B DA~ F K B AT
BRKUL

o B UL 4 S AR K AL DR BB AT~ KR LA 508
bt

TEIEEEETANEERAEERERERAMN

FETHAERTEN BRSO BN GRS AR
W LUAR BT E

LG B N K AR RO R
FRILE &GN KA AR BE AR

T ihfE
Land Bank

Project Address

Crossroad of Dongyuan Road and North Avenue, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC

Adjacent to Dongyuan Road (IV Houtang Area), Licheng District, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC

Near South Ring Road, West Lake, Baitang Town, Hanjiang District, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC
Yangxi Sub-district, Chengxiang District, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC

West to Gongjiao South Stop, Xialin West District, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC

Within the control range of Xinhan Industrial Park, Hanjiang District, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC
East to Chaokeng China Shishi Garment Mall, Lingxiu Town, Shishi, Quanzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

South to Houdaianzhi Community, West to Shenhai Express Way, East to Binjiang Road, Crosstoad of Shenhai Express Way Bridge and Binjiang Road
(South Side), Luojiang District, Quanzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

South to Er'hao Road, North to Liuyuan Road, West to Huyuan Road, East to Yanhai Avenue, Jinjiang, Quanzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

Next to Shiji Avenue, Luoshang Sub-district, Jinjiang, Quanzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

Xintang Garden, Economy development district, Jinjiang, Quanzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

North to Changping Road, South to Wenhua Zhongxin South Road, Changleng Town, Xinjian District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC
No.333, Zhenxing Avenue, Nanchang County, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC

North to Jinying Road, South to Xindi Road, West to Fota Road, Qingyunpu District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC

No.36, Wenzong Street, Honggutan New District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC

No.777, Gezaoshan Avenue, Honggutan New District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC

North to Wenshanyi Road, East to Yinhuzhong Road, Nanchang County, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC

North to temporary dwellings phase 3, West to Teaching Team, South to Shuangmashi Road, East to Chenjia Road, Wanli District, Nanchang, Jiangxi
Province, PRC

North to Yuefangnan Road, West to Huochang Road, South to Tianxiangyi Road, East to Changdong Avenue, South to Yuefangnan Road, East to
Shichangnan Road, Qingshanhu District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC

North to Aixi first Road, East to Chuangxin first Road, Gaoxin District, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC

North to Fuxing Road, West to Baishuixian Road, South to Fenghuangzhou Road, East to Jinggangshan Avenue, Chengnan New District, Ji'an, Jiangxi
Province, PRC

North to Chongwen Road, West to Gunan Avenue, South to Fuxing Road, East to Baishuixian Road, Chengnan New District, Ji'an, Jiangxi Province,
PRC

Yichun Zhento Jintou Yuanzhou Mansion, Yiyang Avenue, Yuanzhou District, Yichun, Jiangxi Province, PRC

Guangrun Community to the North, Guihualongpu Road to the West, Yuanzhoudong Road to the East, Yuanzhou Avenue to the South, opposite to
high-speed rail station, Yuanzhou District, Yichun, Jiangxi Province, PRC

East to Gaotiedongjiu Road, South to Yuanzhou Avenue, Yichun, Jiangxi Province, PRC

West to Yi'An Highway, East to Xinfang River, North to Yuanzhou Avenue, Yichun, Jiangxi Province, PRC

TEC=FFR
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Land Bank

BT B TRA B/ HRATHY ER ]
% HHAR Wi REMENES LERINEY  (Fik)  (ARWERD) (F75 %)
Interest Attributable Primary  Site Area Land Cost Actual/Estimated Land Bank”
# Project Names City tothe Group  Intended Use” (sq.m.) (RMB10,000) Completion Date (sq.m.)
110 M s Guangzhou Nansha Parcel 8 Guangzhou 50.00% R/RE/S&O 12,679 102,135 2024/04 72,580
11 B B 50 Guangzhou Zengcheng Parcel & M Guangzhou 100.00% RRE 50,673 149,000 2024/04 215,383
112 M A E RS R Guangzhou Baiyun District Zhongluotan Parcel % | Guangzhou 51.00% R 58,507 209,088 2024/04 190917
113 UIEREZEERR Foshan Zhenro Jihua Zhenro Mansion 111 Foshan 100.00% RIRE 51,189 124969 2023/09 138,631
114 1l 4 % 22 HE R IE 48 Foshan Jinmao Country Garden Zhenro Mansion i 11 Foshan 34.00% R/RE 97,814 300,428 2024/12 47,014
¥ = ) it Pearl River Delta Region Sub-total 270862 885,620 664,524
7 55 S 2 i ok Dt 7,689,154 11,502,242 9,143,211
Sub-total of Land Bank Developed by the Group’s Subsidiaries
A T A S A B A
Properties Developed by the Group’s Joint Ventures and Associated Companies
115 FigBUt L Shanghai BU Center | 18 Shanghai 19.00% RE/S&O 70,857 143,000 2022/06 347,575
16 EANERNERE Suzhou Flavour Yue Four Seasons Garden # M Suzhou 19.00% R 56479 36,069 2019/12 20244
17 BHBENELR Suzhou Yingxi Four Seasons Garden M Suzhou 1891% RRE 95,836 156,170 2022103 141340
s FOMILEEE Suzhou Jiangnan Cloud Chapter M Suzhou 38.95% RRESO 62,582 249,953 202212 53,459
119 TS EAEW Wuxi Zhenro Jade Yue T Wi 50.00% RRE 7859 190,117 2023/08 140,182
120 WMBAIEEHE LM HangzhouSunac Zhenro Hangyao City 1 A Hangzhou %.23% RRE 52,122 284,066 2024/04 219,040
121 R IE S M A Nanjing Zhenro Rungi Mansion T 7 Nanjing 35.00% RIRE 32,844 164,000 2023/10 98428
122 il 3 e Nanjing China Merchant Zhenro East Forwarding i 5% Nanjing 49.00% R/RE/S&O 90,981 224,000 202111 48,710
Mansion
123 S 40 Nanjing Long Yue Fi 7 Nanjing 33.00% R 35,055 134,000 2021/06 8,005
124 EESIRAL Nanjing Riverside Mansion 7 3 Nanjing 50.00% RRE 67583 297,500 2023/07 102,234
125 TR EL B - 5 Chuzhou Hongyang Times Billow Courtyard M Chuzhou 30.00% RRE 89,886 46,600 2020006 16917
126 TR AR 2 Xuzhou Parasol Mansion £~ M Xuzhou 25.00% RRE 166471 83,013 2022106 146,509
127 T M 48 1Ly Xuzhou Splendid Mountain Mansion 1M Xuzhou 33.00% RRE 147532 91,903 2022106 63,527
128 IEA Xuzhou Jade Cullinan M Xuzhou 30.00% RRE 45351 92,900 2022/01 1,712
129 BIEELBAE Hefei Zhenro Capital Yue 4 IE Hefei 52.65% RRES&O 118,793 195,390 2023/06 100,741
130 LRk e Hefei Joy River New Chapter 4 I Hefei 33.00% RRE 67,834 90,559 2022105 66,652
131 AT LR I BEIE A Lan Country Garden Zhenro South Phoenix A% Lwan 34.38% RRE 199,979 110,200 2023/12 164,998
Mansion
132 BB M IE N Fuyang Yingzhou Zhenro Mansion B BiFuyang 50.00% RRE 101,718 86,055 2025/07 309,517
1 = /it Yangtze River Delta Region Sub-total 1580493 2,675,495 2,049,792
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| Land Bank

Project Address

South to Jingang Avenue, Nansha Street, Nansha District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, PRC
North to Nanbei Avenue, Lihu Street, Zengcheng District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, PRC
East to Fulong Road, Zhongluotan, Baiyun District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, PRC

West to Jujin Road, Chancheng District, Foshan, Guangdong Province, PRC

West to Zongsan Road, South to Lezhong Road, Lecong Town, Shunde District, Foshan, Guangdong Province, PRC
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North to Huiding Road, South to Yinggang East Road, West to Xiangyanghe Road, East to Panxiu Road, Qingpu District, Shanghai, PRC
Building 4, Industrial Park District, Miaoquanwuzhuang Village, Guli Town, Changshu, Jiangsu Province, PRC

West to Wendu Road, North to Yuting Road, Wangting Town, Xiangcheng District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

North to Jizhi Street, South to Dongtaihu Road, West to Leishan Road, East to Xixia Street, Taihu New Town, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC
Southeast to the Crossroad of Xinhua Road and Xixian Road, Xinwu District, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, PRC

North to Guihua Nanyuan Road, West to Guihua Jingyuan Road, South to 6th Street, East to 3rd Street, Xiasha Development District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province, PRC

East to Zhijia Garden, West to Magao Road, Maqun Street, Qixia District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

East Forwarding Mansion, Crossroad of Jiuxianghe East Road and Siwang Road, Jiangning District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Longyuemingdi, East to the Crossroad of Siwang Road and Jiuxianghe East Road, Jiangning District, Nanjiang, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Parcel No.3, Economic and Technological Development Zone, Qixia District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Crosstoad of Nangiao South Road and Jingzi Road, Southern Government Affairs New District, Nangiao District, Chuzhou, Anhui Province, PRC
Crossroad of Huashan Road and Hanjiang Road, Tongshan District, Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Eastside of 200 meters North to the Crossroad of Huashan Road and Fenghu Road, Tongshan District, Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

West to Kuangshan East Road and North to Huaihai West Road, Quanshan District, Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Northeast corner of the Crossroad of Dazhong Road and Huaihai Avenue, Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC

Southeast to the Crossroad of Huaihai Avenue and Qianling Road, Yaohai District, Hefei, Anhui Province, PRC

Crossroad of Qingxi Road and Xingguang Avenue, Lu'an, Anhui Province, PRC

South to Qinghe East Road, West to Jingjiu Road, Yingzhou District, Fuyang, Anhui Province, PRC

“BO=FER
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T ithiE
Land Bank

B8 TRA B/ HRATHY ER ]
% HAAR i REMENES LERINEY  (Fik)  (ARWERD) (Fhi%k)
Interest Attributable Primary  Site Area Land Cost Actual/Estimated Land Bank”
# Project Names City tothe Group  Intended Use” (sq.m.) (RMB10,000) Completion Date (sq.m.)
133 REFHRERRN Wuhan Qingneng Zhenro Mansion B Wuhan 32.00% RRE 156500 104,800 2022105 347,119
134 FREEHEN Xuchang Furongyue Mansion 71 B Xuchang 32.16% RRE 2099 18,732 2021105 16,905
it Central China Region Sub-total 177,494 123,532 364,024
135 BENRER Chongging Central Jade Cloud B Chongging 20.00% R 150048 215,072 2025/07 195,465
1§ # /1 it Western China Region Sub-total 150,048 215,072 195,465
136 REEEEREHA Tianjin Zhenro Zhengxing Pinnacle K H Tianjin 49.95% R/RE/S&O 18,185 181,000 2023005 124,500
137 K e o IF 48 Tianjin Wisedom Luck Elegance Garden K # Tianjin 14.00% RRES&O 45,511 194,300 2021/12 10,695
138 K# AR Tianjin Jiuhe Mansion K ¥ Tianjin 18.00% RIRE 52,482 352,000 2020/12 90,278
139 bapag Jinan Jade Yue T 7 Jinan 50.25% R/RE/S&O 57,789 110,996 2022106 60,302
140 T IE AR T Jinan Zhenro Yuetang Garden House T Jinan 2%.62% RRES&O 23013 110,996 2022001 20,313
141 T AT Jinan Jiu Long Mansion T Jinan 32.84% RRE 101,792 108,150 2022112 10947
142 WEBEER Jinan Phoenix First Mansion i Jinan 19.90% RRE 51,597 194,500 2022102 10,340
143 W AR Jinan Tianchen Mansion 7 Jinan 19.90% RIRE 51,614 194,500 2021/10 9,876
144 FEHSHE Jinan Jingyue Mansion 7 Jinan 14.93% RRE 40843 149,900 2022101 7,509
145 T I Jinan Park Academy ¥ i Jinan 14.93% RRE 46541 149,900 2021/09 8042
146 W Jinan Times Glory P Jinan 32.84% RRE 84949 168,000 2023/09 26,121
5 #¥ /1 i Bohai Rim Region Sub-total 574,312 1,914,042 378922
147 I 0% 3 IF 4 R HE Xiamen Lianfa Zhenro Zhenhua Mansion & P Xiamen 49.00% R/RE 46,551 266,000 2024103 142,883
148 WHBEBEEEENKSE  PutianLianfa Zhenro Yuhu Sky Land # Hl Putian 37.00% RREA 22877 60,000 2022111 72,792
149 HERREER Nanchang Dongtou Zhenro Mansion i EiNanchang 40.00% RRE 50811 80,104 2024/11 105,788
150 HEELBEIOCME  Jtan Zhenro Yango Wen Lan Mansion % JPan 48.25% RRE 82468 76,324 2022106 17211
151 BN B RN Ganzhou Zhenro Yuerong Mansion M Ganzhou 50.00% RIRE 32,740 17,022 2022001 10,341
152 EREHEEENTE Mawei Country Garden Zhenro Yue River Bay 78 M Fuzhou 33.33% R/RE 47,200 39,300 2021/05 39,664
153 FMEREESIIE  FuzhouZhenro Shimao Vesture Mountain South 8 JH Fuzhou 40.00% RRE 47,334 181,000 2022/12 160,697
154 M BRI Z I Fuzhou Yango Poly Yuanxi Garden 6 M Fuzhou 20.00% R 131972 122,500 201911 102,266
G /D 5 Western Taiwan Straits Region Sub-total 461,953 842,250 651,642
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Project Address

North to Hankou North Avenue, East to Shenghai Avenue, Wuhu Street, Huangpo District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, PRC

North to Hongteng Road, West to Qingmei Road, Jian'an District, Xuchang, Henan Province, PRC

of B B T AL B 2

Section C of the two-way group in Liangjiang New District, Chongqing, China
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South to Huanghe Road, Nankai District, Tianjin, PRC

Crossroad of Dongxing Road and Xinkuo Road, Hedong District, Tianjin, PRC

Northwest to the Crossroad of Shuanghuan Road and Jianing Road, Honggiao District, Tianjin, PRC

East to Xingfuliu Road, North to Kaiyuan Middle Road, Licheng District, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC

East to Xingfuliu Road, North to Kaiyuan Middle Road, Licheng District, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC

North to the planed Tangwangshan Road East Extension, East to Xiushui Main Street, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC
East to Aoti Middle Road, North to Kaiyuan Middle Road, Licheng District, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC

East to Aoti Middle Road, North to Kaiyuan Middle Road, Licheng District, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC

West to Zhangma Main Street, North to Kaiyuan Middle Road, Licheng District, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC
East to Xingfuliu Road, North to Kaiyuan Middle Road, Licheng District, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC

East to Xingfuliu Road, North to Kaiyuan Middle Road, Licheng District, Jinan, Shandong Province, PRC
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of B U 24 Kl KRR
TEEEERMTEERTILEM S

TR M R % B I R N AL
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Southwest to the Crosstoad of Xinjing Xisan Road and Xinjing Xier Road, Haicang District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, PRC
Within the control range of Yuhu Sub-district, Licheng District, Putian, Fujian Province, PRC
North to Wenshanyi Road, West to Dongxiang Road, Nanchang County, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, PRC

North to Shaoshan West Road, West to Shiyang Road, South to New Office Building of City Environment Protection Bureau, East to Jizhou Avenue,
Ji'an, Jiangxi Province, PRC

East to Rongjiang Avenue, South to Gannan Avenue, Ganzhou, Jiangxi Province, PRC
Minting, Tingjiang Town, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
Northwest corner of the Crosstoad of Tatou Road and Erhuan Road, Jin'an District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

Parcel 1, Guihuhoulong Community, Luohan Village, Huanxi Town, Jin'An District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC
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Land Bank
BT TRAA KRB TEN T
B HAAR i AEMEMES LERBNRY CFhk)  (ARWEX) (FIix)
Interest Attributable Primary  Site Area Land Cost Actual/Estimated Land Bank”
# Project Names City tothe Group  Intended Use” (sq.m.) (RMB10,000) Completion Date (sq.m.)
155 BIESN B Foshan Zhento Redco Guanshan Mansion {8 1l Foshan 46.56% RRE 51714 103,700 2024/01 199,597
¥ = i it Pearl River Delta Region Sub-total SLT14 103,700 199,597
SR I R A R bt 2996014 5,874,291 3,839,442
Sub-total of Land Bank Developed by the Group's Joint Ventures and Associated Companies
5t Toral 10,685,168 17,376,533 12,982,652
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Project Address

Southeast to Qiaojin Road and Chongmin Road, Xigiao New District, Foshan, Guangdong Province, PRC

WG -

(1) R: EERE: 3 SSOHO: O & HF A %5
A TLE

@ AEME MY AEEEBAFEGOD R
T nl {5 T R M n] R A AR T
T > Gi) BH 8% W 35 00 8 5 R K Giii) 1R
A DR B A 2 SR T A o

Note:
(1) R: Residential; RE: Retail; S: SOHO; O: Office; A: Ancillary
(2) Total GFA of the Group’s land bank includes (i) total GFA available for sale and total

leasable GFA for completed properties, (ii) total GFA for properties under development
and (iii) total GFA for properties held for future development.




EENENEEEEE

Biographies of the Directors and
Senior Management

FO ARG S e I A G R
A 10 R 0

w3

HiT#EF

Blfgse e > 300> M F ZFFNH
NHEZTHRATESR - R T —
E=ZA_+ANHE_F_=#—-H+5I
HIMETEE e MR kg%
“HE—H T HRERT S ER - Bk
AR T N AE R E AT B o R
CEELHFEERYE T RERE TRE
FHEL A B o

B RN BN NAMARER
BT ZMEERA 2 OAa =
FE-ANENAZE_ZF-EFENANAEITE
H(RW) B A R A f A A8 I E 4
i P B AT R A B (TIE 28 b ¥ Bt ) B
FIEAMIEE &M hE —F—LFEN
H & T — JUF I AT IF 5 b o 45 i
B A3 O R S AR A B R AR S AT
B D LMK H A ZF —
FHAE F - —F— HIETELME
PE R A R BE —F—LFE+—H
FF TSRS R IE B b A AT
#HH o

H_oZFE—NANFE+—HES BlLAER
FIE LA RA A (B A iE @ E %
HAMRAR) TIEREBMAN ] BITL
] B TS > AH A2 5 (T BRo0 A P oL R AR
FEHD N ) EB AR A Ak BT RS
Bl M o FE A
Bl b R AT B BB R B A RA
" (TIE 28 MR B 1) (5 s W & 25 5 Fin A BR
NE (TR £ BT A A B
9% 0 06958) M IEHATE S5 > HBE R &
TS AR EEREE S S
Jit o A A B 2 i o B0 AE R R
T E N AT BARO FEENE
ELAZEFE - EAAGBAAEE M E
12 U0 B 250 RS AT B A0 ROHE N B 2
ANEEAR R AR ) FE— F R
AE-F - RNFEANHAEARLERYDE
2\ A YEAT B AR A4S B -

4 2 Rt EEEERAT
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Set out below are biographical details of directors and senior management

of the Company as at the date of approval of this annual report:

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Weiliang (BIf%3%), aged 39, was appointed as an executive
Director on 8 June 2020. He served as the vice-chairman of the Board
during the period from 26 March 2021 to 19 January 2023 and was re-
designated as the Chairman with effect from 20 January 2023. Mr. LIU has
over 16 years of experience in the real estate industry. He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in engineering management from Changsha University of

Science & Technology in 2007.

Mr. LIU joined the Group in June 2016 and has held various key positions
successively, including: (i) the deputy general manager of Zhenro (Changsha)
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (E%(%@)E%ﬁﬁﬁ/z}ﬂ) and the project manager
for Yichun project of Zhenro Properties Holdings Company Limited* (1E
ééi&%ﬁ“ﬂiﬁ Kﬁﬁﬁj) (“Zhenro Properties Holdings”) from June 2016
to August 2017; (ii) the general manager of the merger department of the
strategic investment centre and subsequently the general manager of the
strategic investment centre of Zhenro Properties Holdings from August
2017 to May 2019; (iii) the vice president of Zhenro Properties Holdings
from May 2019 to January 2021; and (iv) a director of Zhenro Properties
Holdings from November 2019 to June 2023.

Mr. LIU has also held several positions in Zhenro Group Co., Ltd. (IE4E4E
= A TRA T (formerly known as Fujian Zhenro Group Co., Ltd. (R IE
ZAEEH FR/AFD)) (“Zhenro Group Company”) since November 2018.
He served successively as the deputy general manager of the strategic
operation centre, the general manager of the human resources department,
the assistant to the chief executive officer, the executive vice president and
the president. In November 2022, Mr. LIU was appointed as a non-
executive director of Zhenro Services Group Limited (“Zhenro Services”) (a
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), stock code: 06958) and he was then
appointed as the chairman of the board of directors of Zhenro Services in
January 2023. Before joining the Group, Mr. LIU worked in several real
estate companies in the PRC, including (i) the development manager of
Evergrande Properties Changsha Real Estate Co., Ltd. ('I‘Ej(ﬂﬁ%%?’)ﬁ
2£/07)) and the deputy general manager of Chenzhou Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. (Wdllﬁ%//}ﬁj) successively from July 2008 to May 2012; and (ii)
the deputy general manager of Heneng Properties Changsha Real Estate
Co., Led. (FEHE R B 2\ T]) from May 2012 to June 2016.



EHEE 38K R _F_FE=ZA
N B AT B AT AR T W B
BlME kA -ZF__FALAT=H&
BEE/RAAFITHAER - FRETE
FORUARSEE W B 2 - B
it —F R EAT EA R o AR
ZET)NE LA AR R BT R B (T
M2 TR B B B e ) SCER B B

WP E—— AR b A S TR B S B
21 -
2SR T — AR DU A A 4R

THRET L MEERE 2 Ol =
T /NFWMHE _F—JUFE LA BBE
AT & M L ol 55 ) A A T A AR % MR
MR AZRE A F—LFLHAE
TF - AR YR AT IE S R
A B R R AR Gip A & T —4F
— A B TE T RSN YE AT IE 4 R
fe o e W BRI avBE &R
AEN HEIEAT IR 2 AR B v)
HoOE - —FEPHE R =4 NHIE
FERMEERESR - B _F—JLFL
A AN, ERG EHE - &
T P RS N E R KT
W B F w2 M Bk BE B M o A A SEE
> FEAEMEEBARAREILS
FBE > Bfoh —F——HF LA EZ
F—LFENHERYET A A 7 48 58 5
T HE o bR AR AR BB MGt E— &
A E F— F N H PEAT 2 I 5
¥ % R A

FEPITESE

Bk B RSB A 35> R T F —EF LA
“HHEZERFRTEE - WAAR
R4 T B TROBR O AR e AR Y ST o BRJBZE
THEARHAEEN EE L E R R
BB ERNE R LE® - R B R
o EE AT E R A A 13 4F AR o BRSE AR
?*%@:H%%Wﬁﬁiti%’
A I AR By o RS AR AR L

BA o

\—

EENEREEEERE

Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management

Mr. LI Yang (Z2¥¥), aged 38, was appointed as the executive Director and
the executive vice president of the Company on 26 March 2021 and has
been appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company with effect
from 13 September 2022. Mr. LI is mainly responsible for the overall
management of the day-to-day operations of the Group. He has over 11
years of experience in the real estate industry. Mr. LI obtained a bachelor’s
degree in arts from Anhui Polytechnic University (formerly known as
Anhui Institute of Engineering and Technology (ﬁf’%{]:f%ﬁ%ﬁi% [%n’i’)) in
July 2008 and obtained a master’s degree in arts from Anhui University in
July 2011.

Mr. LI joined the Group in April 2018, and has held various key positions
successively, including: (i) the regional executive deputy general manager
and general manager in the Hefei region, and regional general manager in
the Zhengzhou region successively from April 2018 to July 2019; (ii) the
assistant to the chief executive officer and vice president of Zhenro
Properties Holdings successively from July 2019 to January 2021; and (iii)
a director and the executive vice president of Zhenro Properties Holdings
from January 2021 to June 2022, (iv) the president of Zhenro Properties
Holdings since June 2022 and (v) a director of Zhenro Properties Holdings
from April 2021 to June 2023. From July 2019, Mr. LI has been
responsible for the management of various functional departments
successively, including design, operation, investment, sales and marketing,
human resources and administration, legal and audit. Before joining the
Group, Mr. LI served in various roles in H-Change Group (F1 B 4E B[R
AT)), including: (i) a general manager of the Hefei company and an
assistant to the president of Eastern China region successively from July
2011 to August 2017; and (ii) the operation vice president of the Southern
China region from August 2017 to April 2018.

Non-executive Director

Mr. OU Guowei ([ ), aged 35, was appointed as the non-executive
Director on 20 September 2017. He is the son of Mr. OU Zongrong, the
Company’s controlling shareholder. Mr. OU is primarily responsible for
providing strategic advice and recommendations on the operations and
management of the Group. He has over 13 years of experience in the PRC
real estate industry. Mr. OU graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University (PR3 R in February 2010, with a bachelor’s degree in

economics majoring in international economics and trade.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Before joining the Company, Mr. OU served various positions in Nanchang
Zhenro (Singapore) Real Estate Co., Ltd. (BB IEZEGH N B 21 TR A
H)), including the chief officer of human resources from October 2009 till
November 2011, the general manager from December 2011 till February
2013 and the chairman of the board of directors from March 2013 till
February 2014. He also served as the assistant to the chief executive officer
of Zhenro Group Company from March 2013 to March 2016 and was a
non-executive director of Zhenro Properties Holdings from December
2015 to June 2023. Mr. OU is also the vice president of Fujian Association
of Commerce in Shanghai (- 7 717 48 2 P& 6).

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam, FE#§#K), aged 74, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 15 December 2017. He is the
chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Dr. LOKE is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of the Group. He has over 43 years of working experience in
accounting and auditing for listed and unlisted companies, corporate
governance, financial consultancy and corporate management. Dr. LOKE
holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Universiti
Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration degree from
University of South Australia. He is a fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries). Dr.
LOKE is also a life member of The Hong Kong Independent Non-

Executive Director Association.

In addition to his directorship in the Company, Dr. LOKE also serves as an
independent non-executive director of the following companies whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange: Hang Sang (Siu Po) International
Holding Company Limited and Matrix Holdings Limited, and Dr. LOKE
is also a non-executive director of Veson Holdings Limited (formerly
known as SCUD Group Limited).
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Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management

During the three years immediately preceding the date of approval of this
annual report, Dr. LOKE was an independent non-executive director of the
following companies whose shares are listed on/were listed on and
subsequently delisted from the Stock Exchange: Chiho Environmental
Group Limited from June 2010 to December 2021, Crazy Sports Group
Limited (formerly known as V1 Group Limited) from May 2005 to May
2022, Times Universal Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Forebase International Holdings Limited) from April 2016 to September
2022, TradeGo Fintech Limited from August 2018 to February 2023,
Zhong An Group Limited (formerly known as Zhong An Real Estate
Limited) from June 2009 to June 2021, Tianjin Development Holdings
Limited from December 2012 to June 2023, China Silver Technology
Holdings Limited (formerly known as TC Orient Lighting Holdings
Limited) from June 2018 to November 2023 and Hong Kong Resources
Holdings Company Limited from May 2017 to February 2014. Dr. Loke
was publicly censured by the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange for
breaching Rule 3.08 of the Listing Rules and his declaration and
undertaking given to the Stock Exchange in the form set out in Appendix
5B to the Listing Rules to comply with the Listing Rules to the best of his
ability and to use his best endeavours to procure the compliance with the
Listing Rules by Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited in
respect of its money lending business during his tenure of directorship in
Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 5 December 2023.

Mr. WANG Chuanxu (FE{#JF), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 December 2017. He is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of the Group. Mr. WANG has over 20 years of experience in
the finance industry and providing secretarial and corporate service to
listed companies in the PRC. He obtained his bachelor’'s degree in
engineering majoring in industrial moulding design from East China
University of Science and Technology (ZE B T.K£2) in the PRC in July
1994 and his master’s degree in economics majoring in political economics
from East China Normal University (FERANIH K £2) in the PRC in July
1998. Mr. WANG was granted the qualification of securities investment
consulting by China Securities Regulatory Commission in December 1999.
He also obtained the certificate of secretary to the board of directors of
listed companies issued by Shenzhen Stock Exchange in November 2008.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Mr. WANG had held several positions in a number of listed companies,
including being: a researcher and then the senior manager of investment
banking of Industrial Securities Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 601377.SH) from June 1998 to May
2007, a business director of investment banking department of Sinolink
Securities Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600109.SH) from May 2007 to December 2008, the vice
general manager, the secretary to the board of directors and other positions
of Fujian Zhongfu Industries Co., Ltd. (currently known as Zhongfu Straits
(Pingtan) Development Company Limited) (a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000592.SZ) from December 2008 to
September 2011, the vice general manager and the secretary to the board of
Thaihot Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 000732.SZ) from November 2011 to April 2014
and the vice general manager of Greattown Holdings Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600094.SH) from July
2014 to March 2015.

Mr. WANG served as an executive director of Shanghai NextDV Software
Company Limited (J:{@{Eﬁlﬁﬁ'}(ﬁ:ﬁ Bﬁ/z_\\ﬁj) from August 2015 to
August 2020. He has served as a consultant of Nanjing Sidu Information
Technology Co., Ltd. (lt'ﬁ}ifﬁ jF{n ._‘ﬁ#ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\j) since August
2020 and as an executive director of Shanghai Duwei Consulting
Management Co., Led. ([ IEGIGEEHE LA FR/AF]) since December
2021.

Mr. XIE Jun GH¥8), aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 13 September 2022. Mr. XIE has nearly 20 years of
extensive experience in the capital markets, real estate industry, cross-
border investment and financing business, multinational enterprises, large
state-owned enterprises, private enterprises and asset management for
high-net-worth individuals. Mr. XIE holds a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of Hertfordshire, United Kingdom. He
is licensed by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong as a
responsible officer of CRIC Securities Company Limited in relation to Type
1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”). He was
also granted Certification of Securities Professional in China by Securities
Association of China and Certification of China Banking Professional by
China Banking Association, and passed the Senior Management
Qualification Tests approved by China Securities Regulatory Commission
and China Banking Insurance Regulatory Commission, respectively.
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Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management

During the three years immediately preceding the date of approval of this
annual report, Mr. XIE was an independent non-executive director of
Sunkwan Properties Group Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange) from September 2023 to February 2024.

Mr. XIE has been the chief executive officer of CRIC Securities Company
Limited, a licensed corporation under the SFO in Hong Kong, since
January 2019 and has been the chairman of Snow Park Resort Japan
Company Limited since June 2021. He had held several management
positions in a number of companies, including being: a director and the
chairman of Leading Securities Company Limited of Japan from June 2019
to June 2022; the general manager of the international business department
of Western Securities Company Limited (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 002673.SZ) from January 2016 to December
2018; the general manager of asset and wealth management of BNP
Paribas (China) Limited from November 2011 to December 2015; the
general manager of asset and wealth management of Credit Suisse AG
Shanghai Branch from June 2007 to November 2011; and the vice
president of Shanghai Hong Kong Plaza Sub-branch of HSBC Bank (China)
Company Limited from April 2004 to June 2007.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. CHAN King Tak (P P8), the chief financial officer and joint
company secretary of the Company, joined the Company in September
2022. He has over 22 years of experience in capital markets, financial
management, corporate finance, compliance with the Listing Rules and
corporate governance. He graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor’s degree majoring in Accountancy in 2002, and
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with an executive
master’s degree in business administration in 2021. He is currently a fellow
member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. CHAN worked in several listed companies and

an international accounting firm.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Ms. KWONG Yin Ping, Yvonne (BE#EHE), the joint company secretary
of the Company. She is a vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group
(Hong Kong) Limited. She holds a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow of The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators). Ms. KWONG has extensive experience in providing
company secretarial and compliance services to numerous private and listed
companies. She is currently the named company secretary or joint company

secretary of several companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities

of the Group are property development and property leasing.

BUSINESS REVIEW
General

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on
the Group’s future business development are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement, as well as the Management Discussion and Analysis sections,
respectively, of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year using financial key performance indicators is set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section of this annual report. Save as
disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Subsequent Events” in this annual report, the Group has no significant
events after the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2023 and up
to the date of approval of this annual report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties the Group faces include (i) uncertainty as
to the acquiring of land reserves for development in desirable locations at
commercially acceptable prices; (ii) uncertainty as to business expansion
into new geographic locations; (iii) uncertainty as to obtaining sufficient
funding for land acquisitions and future developments; (iv) risks related to
the fluctuation of profitability of property projects; (v) risks related to
obtaining administrative certificates; (vi) risks related to the performance
of the PRC property markets; (vii) risks related to the government policies
and regulations regarding the PRC property industry; and (viii) risks

related to the increasing raw materials price and labour costs.

The financial risks of the Group mainly include foreign exchange rate risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. These financial risks, and
the related risk management policies and practices used by the Group are
discussed in note 43 headed “Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies” to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Environmental Policies and Performance

It is the Group’s corporate and social responsibility in promoting a
sustainable and environmental friendly environment, and the Group strives
to minimize its environmental impact and comply with the applicable
environmental laws and regulations. The measures the Group takes to
ensure its compliance with the applicable environmental laws and
regulations include: (i) strictly selecting construction contractors and
supervising the process of construction; (ii) applying for review by the
relevant government authorities in a timely manner after the project is
completed; and (iii) actively adopting environmentally friendly equipment
and designs. The Group also takes voluntary actions with respect to
environmental protection and makes energy conservation and emission

reduction as primary considerations when designing its property projects.

None of the Group’s properties had received any material fines or penalties
associated with the breach of any environmental laws or regulations during
Year 2023.

The Group’s 2023 Environmental, Social and Governance Report shall be

published separately on the same date as this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement of the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance. The
Group had complied with all relevant laws and regulations in all material
aspects and has obtained all applicable material licenses, approvals and

permits from relevant regulatory authorities.

Relationship with Employees

The Group believes high-quality employees who value its corporate culture
are essential elements to promote the Group’s sustainable growth. The
Group intends to attract and retain skilled and talented employees through
various initiatives, including training programs, competitive compensation
packages and effective incentive system. For details regarding employees
and staff costs and the emolument policy of the Group, please refer to the

section headed “Directors’ Report — Employees and Remuneration Policy”.
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Directors’ Report

Relationship with Suppliers

The Group is dedicated to developing good relationship with suppliers as
long-term business partners to ensure stability of the Group’s businesses.
The Group reinforces business partnerships with suppliers by ongoing
communication in a proactive and effective manner. For details regarding
the Group’s major suppliers, please refer to the section headed “Directors’
Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.

Relationship with Customers

Customers’ satisfaction with the Group’s services and products has a
profound effect on business and returns. The Group’s dedicated sales team
is in constant communication with customers and potential customers to
uncover and create customer needs and help customers make informed
decisions. Identification of customers’ pain points alongside grasping the
market trend are critical for the Group to timely adjust its operating
strategies to fit the market requirement. For details regarding the Group’s
major customers, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report —

Major Customers and Suppliers”.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for Year 2023 and the state of the Group’s
financial position as at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 98 to 275.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for Year
2023 (Year 2022: Nil). As at 31 December 2023, there was no arrangement
under which a shareholder of the Company had waived or agreed to waive

any dividends.

TEC=FFR ESW
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) will be held on
Friday, 14 June 2024. A notice convening the AGM will be published on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and dispatched to
the shareholders of the Company in accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules in due course. For the purpose of determination of
eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 11 June 2024 to Friday, 14 June
2024 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM to be held on Friday, 14 June 2024, all transfer of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later
than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Friday, 7 June 2024.

RESERVES

Changes to the reserves of the Group during Year 2023 are set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the
Company during Year 2023 are set out in Note 13 to the financial

statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023

are set out in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during Year 2023 amounted to
approximately RMBO.5 million.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 276 of this annual report.
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
GROUP’S LISTED SECURITIES

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Group during Year 2023.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during Year 2023 and up to the date of approval of this

annual report were:

Tk or

Position

WTEENEFE TR (A2 =4 —-H -+ ERITITES
FH#E g )
Executive Director and chairman of the Board (resigned as an executive

Director and chairman of the Board with effect from 20 January 2023)

WTEFHREFGA IR (A =F A=+ EHEF R
FREREEES G L)

Executive Director and vice chairman of the Board (re-designated from vice
chairman of the Board to chairman of the Board with effect from 20
January 2023)

PUATHE - AT B EGHOW B B AR

Executive Director, chief executive officer and executive vice president

T ESF

Non-executive Director

WL AT E S

Independent non-executive Director

W EHATESF

Independent non-executive Director

WL AT E S

Independent non-executive Director

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, Mr. LI Yang
and Mr. WANG Chuanxu shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM

and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

SBOCFFR
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None of Mr. LI Yang and Mr. Wang Chuanxu has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other than

under normal statutory obligations.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out in the section headed “Biographies of the Directors

and Senior Management” section in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in Note 40 to the
financial statements and the continuing connected transactions as disclosed
in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this
Directors’ Report, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during Year 2023.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the continuing connected transactions as disclosed in the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Directors’ Reporrt,
there was no other contract of significance between the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and any controlling shareholder of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, nor other contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during Year 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

W oE =+ _"_H=+—H > FHK As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
AN B B AT BN B AN ) Bl H A or the chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
(G 28 AR 2R M & R SR XV ER) 1Y debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
J A~ FH IR R A B R R W P B AR PR R meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
F N W0 B AR 19 56 35245 B B AN N B ZE AF kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as notified to
BB RO T RC BE o SR 98 BT A R B the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
BrC3rd 2 [ E i #AT N E F T B 5 Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
gy WA E Sy I (TR s A ) ZH 50 & C3 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

AR\ E) BB A BT I R A BOR AT R

e
S
i
e
ail
oy
e
2
@%ﬂg;ﬂﬂﬂ

i
ot b
B <

=
&=
T

<4

&5

e o D>

A 2 W)y B M BE O v Interest in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
HE 45

A8 A 2 W] i HE
BEAI 4 e
Approximate
N LN A percentage of
W BB B RS M E AR B 0y, HE 25 1B O Ikt H  shareholding
Name of Name of Group member/ Capacity/ Number of in the
Director/Chief Executive associated corporation Nature of interest Shares Company
B 24 ft S 2 A 2Rk S 217,140,000? 4.97%
Mr. OU Guowei The Company Interest in controlled
corporation®”
B 5T Notes:
1) AR AT - (1) All interests stated are long positions.
) &% %217,140,000 B B 4y & #B B Warm (2)  These 217,140,000 Shares are all held by Warm Shine Limited.
Shine Limited £ 47 °
(3) BB AR 5 A B Warm Shine Limited A9 ME — (3)  Mr. OU Guowei is the sole legal and beneficial owner of Warm Shine Limited and is
EENEEEA N HARPES S LK deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Warm Shine Limited is interested
{6 5] > 48 4% AL £% A Warm Shine Limited # under the SFO.
A HE &5 1 B0 T B R A
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AR oy ) £ RE W 0 BE AR Interest in debentures of the Company
WM EC#T
[5] %5 1 £ 25 MR
FONEIi g
Approximate
fEHER®  percentage of
AL B A A3 holding in
R REHATBNB A M B E 4R B by WE £ Pk B O Principal the debentures
Name of Name of Group member/ Capacity/ amount of  of same class
Director/Chief Executive associated corporation Nature of interest” debentures in issue
I 2 18 55 A A ik EEEe 1,410,000 3% 7T 0.19%"
Mr. OU Guowei The Company Interest in controlled US$1,410,000?
corporation®”
[t 5F - Notes:
(1) T 5 2 EORE 25 ¥ 2 0 R o (1) All interests stated are long positions.
2) W% % fE ME RF & I Serike Investment (2)  These debentures are all held by Strike Investment Holdings Limited.
Holdings Limited % 7
3) [k B i 5 A= /b Strike Investment Holdings 3) Mr. OU Guowei is the sole legal and beneficial owner of Strike Investment Holdings
Limited IME— SR EZHA N> HE Limited and is deemed to be interested in the debentures in which Strike Investment
P8 75 5 & ) > Bk B AR B R Serike Holdings Limited is interested under the SFO.
Investment Holdings Limited A ME £ 1Y E
RERE o A HE i o
4y HBEHEAER _F =AM AR (4)  The debentures are the green senior notes due March 2023 with an aggregate principal
4 HE%E 728,623,000 5 T I 17 8.09 4F | amount of US$728,623,000 bearing interest at a rate of 8.0% per annum.
AR e 1 S A
% b CRpr g & ah > i & AR+ Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors nor
A=+—H M FE LARNA &KEfT the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in

HABREAAFSREMEEBR(EER any of the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
5 N B ) A v ER) B Iy~ A B its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
J 17y B fik RE 55 o A AT ol AR B R 5 A recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
B R0 5 352k BLE A Bl AF B OB section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock
w0 T RO B Y RE 25 SR A s B ZE AR PR A Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

HE S I N g AS 2 R BB 28 BT Y RE 4 BX

WA -

6 é ERHERBARAR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the following persons (other than the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Jt ¥ A HE 2 E 29
R SFEA [Epid:a
Number of  Approximate
Bk HE £ P& Shares or  percentage of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest securities held" interest
Bf R B e A @ TV ERER 1,997,258,000 (L) 45.73%
Mr. OU Zongrong® Interest in a controlled corporation
M 2 o ic {18 HE 4 1,997,258,000 (L) 45.73%

Ms. LIN Shuying®

Interest of spouse

SRk PN 1,890,826,000 (L) 43.29%

RoYue Limited
B R A E BB A R A H

China Orient Asset Management Co., Ltd.

(Y]

()

3)

Beneficial owner

ARy R A AT RE &R 9 N 575,000,000 (L) 13.16%

Person having a security interest in shares

TR B R AR 25,000,000 (L) 0.57%

Interest in a controlled corporation

TORILIIE A BN 0 % % B 1Y
A -

W %1,997,258,000 % B B o
1,890,826,000 & & {3 H RoYue Limited £
A > 106,404,657 B B 13 M RoJing Limited
A K27343M B 1% B RoJing ZR
(PTC) Limited 7 A o Ik 7% %8 5€ 4= S RoYue
Limited > RoJing Limited & RoJing ZR (PTC)
Limited ) M — & R Em #EA A >
B R S% 4 5 AR 8 B A RoYue Limited
A 191,890,826,000 % B > RoJing
Limited £F A [9106,404,657 B Bt 13 M
RoJing ZR (PTC) Limited £ 4 1 27,343 i it
Oy A RE 4G o

R e T % A S e Y A o AR
e 25 e A B 0 SR XV I > AROIRLSE A
B T T B o 5 S A HE A HE AR A9 AR IR
BCE B B v A R i o

)

Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

) These 1,997,258,000 Shares represent 1,890,826,000 Shares held by RoYue Limited,
106,404,657 Shares held by RoJing Limited and 27,343 shares held by Rojing ZR (PTC)
Limited. Mr. Ou Zongrong is the sole legal and beneficial owner of RoYue Limited,
RoJing Limited and Rojing ZR (PTC) Limited, therefore Mr. Ou Zongrong is deemed
to be interested in 1,890,826,000 Shares, 106,404,657 Shares and 27,343 Shares held
by RoYue Limited, RoJing Limited and Rojing ZR (PTC) Limited, respectively.

3) Ms. Lin Shuying is the spouse of Mr. Ou Zongrong. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms.
Lin Shuying is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Ou

Zongrong is interested.
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(4) Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by
Dongxing Securities Co., Ltd which in turn is owned as to 52.74% by China Orient
Asset Management Co., Ltd. By virtue of the SFO, China Orient Asset Management
Co., Ltd. and Dongxing Securities Co., Ltd are deemed to be interested in the Shares

in which Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited is interested.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and chief executive are not aware of
any other person, not being a Director or chief executive of the Company,
who had an interest or short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2023.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2023, due to the nature of the Group’s business, revenue derived from
its top five customers accounted for less than 30% of total revenue, and the
purchases from its top five suppliers accounted for less than 30% of total

purchase cost.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules and the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee consists
of three members, namely Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam) and Mr.
WANG Chuanxu, being independent non-executive Directors, and Mr.
OU Guowei, the non-executive Director. Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi
Lam) has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee, and is
the independent non-executive Director possessing the appropriate
professional qualifications. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
include: (i) making recommendations regarding the appointment and
removal of external auditors of the Company; (ii) reviewing the accounting
policies and financial positions of the Company; (iii) reviewing and
supervising the internal audit functions and internal control structure of
the Company; and (iv) reviewing and overseeing the risk management of

the Company.
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The Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the Year 2023
were reviewed by the Audit Committee before recommendation to the

Board for approval.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association
of the Company, although there are no restrictions against such rights

under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 515 employees (31
December 2022: 736 employees). Please refer to Notes 6, 8, 9 and 41 to
the notes to financial statements in this annual report for details of
employee remuneration and benefit expense (including directors” and chief

executive’s remuneration) incurred for Year 2023.

The Group recruits qualified personnel in local markets through various
channels, such as recruiting firms, internal referrals and advertisement on
the Internet. The Group particularly values employees who demonstrate
loyalty to their work and who value corporate culture, as well as those with
relevant working experiences. The Group’s future development, to a
considerable extent, depends on its ability to identify, hire, train and retain
suitably skilled and qualified employees, including management personnel,
with relevant professional skills. Therefore, the Group has established
systematic training programs for employees based on their positions and

expertise.

The Group enters into labor contracts with all employees and offers
employees competitive remuneration packages that include basic salaries,
discretionary bonuses and performance-based payments. The Company has
also adopted the Share Option Scheme, details of which are set out in the
section headed “Directors’ Report — Share Option Scheme”.

Under the applicable PRC laws and regulations, the Group is subject to

social insurance contribution plans. The Group also participates in the

MPF Scheme for all employees in Hong Kong.

SBOCFFR 6 Q
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates its business mainly in the Chinese Mainland. The
Chinese Mainland based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans operated by the relevant
municipal and provincial governments in the PRC (the “PRC Retirement
Scheme”) in accordance with the rules and regulations. The Group’s
subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage of the employees’
salaries. The municipal and provincial governments undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired PRC
based employees’ payable under the plans described above. Other than the
monthly contributions, the Group has no further obligation for the
payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of its employees.
The assets of these plans are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administrated funds managed by the PRC government.

The Group also participates in the MPF Scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on minimum
statutory contribution requirement of the lower of 5% of eligible
employees’ relevant aggregate income and HK$1,500. The assets of this
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

There are no provisions under the PRC Retirement Scheme and MPF
Scheme whereby forfeited contributions may be used to reduce future
contributions. Particulars of the employee retirement benefits of the Group

are set out in Notes 2.4, 6, 8, 9 and 41 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 15 December 2017, the Share Option Scheme was conditionally
approved and adopted by the then shareholders of the Company and its

implementation is conditional on the listing.

(1) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company
with a means to incentivise the Participants (as defined below) and
retain employees of the Group, and to encourage employees to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and promote the long-

term development of the Company.
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Participants, Duration and Remaining Life

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board shall be
entitled at any time within the period of 10 years after the adoption
date, being 15 December 2017 to 14 December 2027, to grant
options to any director or employee of the Group who in the sole
discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to the
Group (the “Participant”). Subject to earlier termination by the
Company in general meetings or by the Board, the Share Option
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the adoption date. As at 31 December 2023, the
remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately 3 years
and 11 months.

No offer shall be made and no option shall be granted to any
Participant in circumstances prohibited by the Listing Rules at a
time when the Participant would or might be prohibited from
dealing in the Shares by the Listing Rules or by any applicable rules,
regulations or law. In particular, no options may be granted during
the period commencing one month immediately preceding the earlier
of (i) the date of the Board meeting (as such date is first notified to
the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing Rules) for the
approval of the Company’s results for any year, half-year, quarterly or
other interim period; and (ii) the deadline for the Company to
publish its interim or annual results announcement under the Listing
Rules; and ending on the date of actual publication of such results

announcement.

Maximum Number of Shares Available for Issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and all
other share option schemes existing at such time of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 400,000,000 Shares (representing 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue as of the date of the listing of
the Shares on the Stock Exchange, the “Scheme Mandate Limit”),
which represents 9.16% of the total number of Shares in issue as at
the date of approval of this annual report. The number of options
available for grant under the Share Option Scheme at the beginning
and the end of the year ended 31 December 2023 was 400,000,000.
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The Company may renew the Scheme Mandate Limit at any time
subject to prior shareholders’ approval but in any event, the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company under the limit as refreshed must
not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant and Scheme
Limit

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to any Participant
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12 month period shall not at the time of grant exceed
1% of the Shares in issue, unless otherwise separately approved by
shareholders in general meeting with such Participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.

At any time, the maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options which then have been granted and have
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of Shares in issue from time to time.

Grant of Options to Connected Persons or Any of their
Associates

Each grant of options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or their respective associate(s), must be
approved by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the proposed grantee).
Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or their respective associate(s),
would result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and to be granted under any share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date on which an offer of the grant of option is made to
the Participant (the “Offer Date”) representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the Shares in issue at the Offer Date, such grant of options must be
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting, in
which the grantee, his/her associates and all core connected persons of
the Company must abstain from voting in favour of such resolution.
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Acceptance and Exercise of Options, Vesting Period

Participants are required to pay HK$1.00 as consideration for the
acceptance of an option granted to them. There is no specific period
set for such payment. The period for such acceptance and payment
are determined by the Board at the time of granting the options.

Subject to the terms of grant of any option, an option may be
exercised by the grantee at any time during the option period and in
accordance with the vesting schedule and other terms specified in the
offer. No option may be vested more than 10 years after the date of

grant.

Exercise Price

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the Board and
notified to a Participant but in any event shall be at least the higher
of:

o the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant of the option, which

must be a business day;

o the average of the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and

J the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

Option Granted

For Year 2023, no option had been granted or agreed to be granted
by the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, or were
exercised, cancelled, lapsed or outstanding.

Further details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 December 2017.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of approval of this annual report and based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the minimum

public float of 25% as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young who shall
retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of auditor will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM. There has been no change in the
auditor of the Company during the past three years.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no reserve available for
distribution to shareholders of the Company.

INDEBTEDNESS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total outstanding bank and other
borrowings of RMB29,000.5 million (31 December 2022: RMB30,883.6
million), corporate bond with carrying amounts of RMB4,953.7 million (31
December 2022: RMB4,695.4 million), senior notes with carrying
amounts of RMB24,162.2 million (31 December 2022: RMB23,859.5
million) and PCS with carrying amounts of RMB1,391.9 million (31
December 2022: RMB1,311.8 million). The Group’s borrowings are
denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and US dollars. The details
are set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —

Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources — Indebtedness”.
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RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES AND EQUITY-LINKED
AGREEMENTS

At no time during Year 2023 was the Company, or any of its holding
companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company or
their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, nor did the Company enter into any equity-linked agreement
save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this
Directors’ Report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of approval of this annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective associates had
interests in businesses, which compete or are likely to compete either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS UNDER
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of the Directors and
Senior Management” and Note 8 to the financial statements, there is no
other change in Directors’ biographical details which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of
the 2023 interim report of the Company.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to restrict competition activities with the Company, the
controlling shareholders, namely Mr. OU Zongrong, Mr. OU Guogqiang,
Mr. OU Guowei, RoYue Limited, RoJing Limited, RoSheng Limited and
Warm Shine Limited (the “Controlling Shareholder(s)”), entered into a
deed of non-competition in favor of the Company on 15 December 2017 (the
“Deed of Non-competition”). Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition,
the Controlling Shareholders have undertaken, among others, not to
compete with the business of the Group, and details of the Deed of Non-
competition are set out in the sub-section headed “Deed of Non-
competition” in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the prospectus of the Company dated 28 December 2017.
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders has made a written confirmation to
the Board in respect of their compliance with the undertakings in the Deed
of Non-competition (the “Undertakings”) during Year 2023 (the “Relevant
Period”).

Upon receiving the confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders, the
independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the same as part of the
annual review process. In determining whether the Controlling
Shareholders had fully complied with the Undertakings in the Relevant
Period for the annual assessment, the independent non- executive Directors
noted that: (a) the Controlling Shareholders declared that they had fully
complied with the Undertakings in the Relevant Period; (b) no new
competing business was reported by the Controlling Shareholders during
the Relevant Period; and (c) there was no particular situation rendering the
full compliance of the Undertakings being questionable. In view of the
above, the independent non-executive Directors confirmed that, as far as
they can ascertain, all of the Undertakings were complied with by the
Controlling Shareholders in the Relevant Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors and key officers shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices, pursuant to the articles
of association of the Company. The Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ and key officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions that may be brought against the Directors and key officers
throughout the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As at the date of approval of this annual report, Mr. OU Zongrong (a
Controlling Shareholder and father of the Company’s non-executive
Director, Mr. OU Guowei) is the Controlling Shareholder of Zhenro
Services. Hence, each of Zhenro Services and its subsidiaries (“Zhenro
Services Group”) is an associate of the Controlling Shareholder and a
connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions between
Zhenro Services Group and the Group constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions (as the case may be) of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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2023 Pre-Delivery Property Management Services
Agreement

The Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into
a framework agreement in relation to the provision of pre-delivery
property management services with Zhenro Services (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries) on 15 November 2022 (the “2023 Pre-
Delivery Property Management Services Agreement”). Under
the 2023 Pre-Delivery Property Management Services Agreement,
Zhenro Services Group shall, where it is selected following the tender
processes in accordance with the relevant pre-delivery property
management laws and regulations, provide pre-delivery management
services for residential property projects developed by the Group
before the delivery of such properties to property owners (including
but not limited to security, cleaning, landscaping, repair and
maintenance of common area and shared facilities) according to the
tender documents and definitive management agreements to be
entered into between Zhenro Services Group and members of the
Group from time to time (collectively, the “Pre-Delivery Services”).
The 2023 Pre-Delivery Property Management Services Agreement
had been effective from 1 January 2023 and up to and including 31
December 2025 and its term may be renewed as the parties may
agree, subject to applicable laws and regulations. The service fees
payable by the Group to Zhenro Services Group for the Pre-Delivery
Services shall be based on the fee quotes to be submitted by the
Zhenro Services Group under the relevant tender bids and the pricing
terms as recommended by the relevant government authorities. The
aggregate management service fees paid by the Group to Zhenro
Services Group for their service in 2023 were RMB1.2 million,
which did not exceed the annual cap of the transaction for 2023 of
RMB20.0 million. The transactions contemplated under the 2023
Pre-Delivery Property Management Services Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios of the transactions of the annual cap in respect of the
management and related services under the 2023 Pre-Delivery
Property Management Services Agreement exceeded 0.1% but all of
them were less than 5%, the transactions were subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but are
exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the 2023 Pre-Delivery Property Management
Services Agreement also constituted related party transactions of the
Company under IFRS, details of which are set out in Note 40 to the
financial statements.

Details of the 2023 Pre-Delivery Property Management Services
Agreement with the annual caps relating thereto are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 15 November 2022.
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2023 Management Services Agreement

The Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into
a framework management services agreement in relation to the
provision of management and related services with Zhenro Services (for
itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) (the “2023 Management
Services Agreement”) on 15 November 2022. Under the 2023
Management Services Agreement, Zhenro Services Group shall
provide management and related services to the residential property
projects of the Group and their display units, sales offices and
community clubhouses as well as commercial properties operated by
the Group, including but not limited to cleaning, landscaping,
concierge, maintenance of public order, security services and other
related value-added services to the aforesaid venues according to the
definitive management agreements to be entered into between
Zhenro Services Group and members of the Group from time to time
(collectively, the “Management Services”). The management fees
payable by the Group to the Zhenro Services Group for the
Management Services shall be determined on arm’s length basis
taking into account a wide range of factors set out in the pricing
policy in the 2023 Management Services Agreement. The 2023
Management Services Agreement had been effective from 1 January
2023 and up to and including 31 December 2025 and its term may
be renewed as the parties may agree, subject to applicable laws and
regulations. The aggregate management service fees paid by the
Group to Zhenro Services Group in 2023 were RMB47.9 million,
which did not exceed the annual cap of the transaction for 2023 of
RMB50.0 million. The transactions contemplated under the 2023
Management Services Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios of the
transactions of the annual cap in respect of the management and
related services under the 2023 Management Services Agreement
exceeded 0.1% but all of them were less than 5%, the transactions
were subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but were exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.
The transactions contemplated under the 2023 Management Services
Agreement also constituted related party transactions of the
Company under IFRS, details of which are set out in Note 40 to the
financial statements.

Details of the 2023 Management Services Agreement with the annual
caps relating thereto are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 15 November 2022.
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2023 Consultancy Services Agreement

On 15 November 2022, the Company entered into the Consultancy
Services Agreement (the “2023 Consultancy Services Agreement”)
with Zhenro Commercial Management Co., Ltd.* (E%ﬁ%%fﬁ;ﬁ
FR/N 7)) (“Zhenro Commercial”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
Zhenro Services, in relation to the provision of commercial property
operational and consultancy services (collectively, the “Consultancy
Services”) by Zhenro Commercial and its subsidiaries (the “Zhenro
Commercial Group”) to the Group. The 2023 Consultancy Services
Agreement has been effective from 1 January 2023 and up to and
including 31 December 2025 and its term may be renewed as the
parties may agree, subject to applicable laws and regulations. The
service fees payable by the Group to the Zhenro Commercial Group
for the Consultancy Services shall be determined taking into account
a wide range of factors set out in the pricing policy in the 2023
Consultancy Services Agreement. The aggregate commercial property
operational and consultancy services fees paid by the Company to the
Zhenro Commercial in 2023 were RMB1.7 million, which did not
exceed the annual cap of the transaction for 2023 of RMB15.0
million. The transactions contemplated under the 2023 Consultancy
Services Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As one or
more of the applicable percentage ratios of the transactions in relation
to the annual cap in respect of the commercial property operational
and consultancy services under the 2023 Consultancy Services
Agreement exceed(s) 0.1% but all of them are less than 5%, the
transactions are subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements but are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 14A.76(2) of the
Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the 2023
Consultancy Services Agreement also constitute related party
transactions of the Company under IFRS, details of which are set out

in Note 40 to the financial statements.

Details of the 2023 Consultancy Services Agreement with the annual
caps relating thereto are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 15 November 2022.
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“4)

Lease Agreement

Members of the Group (as lessor) entered into the Existing Lease
Agreements (“Existing Lease Agreements”) and the New Lease
Agreement (“New Lease Agreement”’) with members of Zhenro
Commercial Group (as lessee) by 10 May 2021, pursuant to which
the such respective lessee leases the entire property from the relevant
member of the Group (as lessor), and has the right to procure tenants
and sub-lease any units in the relevant property, and to engage in
advertising, management and operation activities in respect of the
relevant property. The Existing Lease Agreements and the New Lease
Agreement have been effective from their respective signing date and
up to and including 31 December 2023 and the terms may be
renewed as the parties may mutually agree, subject to applicable laws
and regulations. There was no rental fees paid by members of Zhenro
Commercial Group to the Company in respect of the Existing Lease
Agreements and the New Lease Agreement in 2023. The transactions
contemplated under the Existing Lease Agreements and the New
Lease Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. With respect
to the Existing Lease Agreements, pursuant to Rule 14A.60(1) of the
Listing Rules, the Company is required to comply with the annual
review and disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules regarding the continuing connected transactions under the
Existing Lease Agreements, each of which is an agreement for a fixed
period with fixed terms. The Company will comply with all
applicable requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
upon variation or renewal of any of the Existing Lease Agreements.
With respect to the New Lease Agreement, as all of the applicable
percentage ratios (as defined under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules)
in relation to the highest annual cap for the New Lease Agreement
were less than 0.1%), the New Lease Agreement was fully exempted
from the shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements under Rule 14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing Rules. The
transactions contemplated under the Existing Lease Agreements and
the New Lease Agreement also constitute related party transactions
of the Company under IFRS, details of which are set out in Note 40

to the financial statements.

Details of the Existing Lease Agreements and the New Lease
Agreement and the annual caps relating thereto are set out in the

Company’s announcement dated 19 May 2021.
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2024 Lease Agreements

In order to renew the Existing Lease Agreement and the New Lease
Agreement which were due to expire on 31 December 2023, on 29
December 2023, the Company and members of Zhenro Commercial
Group (as lessee) entered into lease agreements (the “2024 Lease
Agreements”), pursuant to which the such respective lessee leases
the entire property from the relevant member of the Group (as
lessor), and has the right to procure tenants and sub-lease any units
in the relevant property, and to engage in advertising, management

and operation activities in respect of the relevant property.

While the 2024 Lease Agreements were entered into during Year
2023, the term of each 2024 Lease Agreements will be from 1
January 2024 to 31 December 2025 (both days inclusive), which may
be renewed as the parties may agree, subject to compliance with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other

applicable laws and regulations.

The rental fees payable by Zhenro Services Group to the Group shall
be determined on arm’s length basis and with reference to the
prevailing market rental fee for comparable premises in the vicinity

of the property.

During Year 2023, there was no transactions contemplated under the
2024 Lease Agreements. Details of the 2024 Lease Agreements and
the annual caps relating thereto are set out in the Company’s

announcement dated 29 December 2023.
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(6)

Review by the independent non-executive Directors and
external auditor

All the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the

continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the continuing

connected transactions have been entered into:

@

(i1)

(ii1)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or better; and

according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of

the Company as a whole.

The Company’s external auditor, Ernst & Young, was engaged to

report on the continuing connected transactions and they have

provided a letter to the Board of Directors confirming that:

(1

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

nothing has come to their attention that caused them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Board;

for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to their attention that caused
them to believe that the continuing connected transactions
were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance

with the pricing policies of the Group;

nothing has come to their attention that caused them to believe
that the continuing connected transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant

agreements governing such transactions; and

nothing has come to their attention that caused them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have

exceeded the annual cap set by the Company.
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(7) General

Save as disclosed above, for Year 2023, the Group had not entered
into any connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
which are required to be disclosed in this annual report pursuant to

the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the other related party transactions as disclosed in
Note 40 to the financial statements did not constitute “connected
transactions” or “continuing connected transactions” required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules. The related party transactions that
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Group have complied
with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual report

form part of this annual report.

By order of the Board
LIU Weiliang
Chairman of the Board

Shanghai, PRC, 28 March 2024
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance by focusing on principles of integrity, accountability,
transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness. The Company has
developed and implemented sound governance policies and measures with
the Board being responsible for performing such corporate governance
duties. The Board will continue to review and monitor the governance of
the Company with reference to the Corporate Governance Code so as to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the

Company.

So far as the Directors are aware, during Year 2023, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing
Rules.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND DIVERSITY
POLICY

The Board is responsible for directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs in order to lead the Company towards success. The Board has general
powers for the management and conduct of the Company’s business. The
day-to-day operations and management are delegated by the Board to the
management of the Company, who will implement the strategy and

direction as determined by the Board.

The Board will review the structure and composition of the Board from
time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to maintain a

high standard of corporate governance practices of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. The Company has also
adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach adopted by the
Board regarding diversity of Board members. In designing the Board’s
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, industry experience, technical and professional
skills and/or qualifications, knowledge, length of services and time to be
devoted as a director of the Company. The Company will also take into

account factors relating to its own business model and specific needs from
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time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. As at the

date of approval of this annual report, the analysis of the Board composition

is as follow:

Y 8 R <
N ik A7 % KB Years of BEER
No. of L E A AR i AL Skill/Industry Directors’ Educational 1
person Position Age Group Experiences service Background Gender
. 75 o 7 ) 3k TREE M
HITES B B ARG Engineering management
Executive Director & S it S
2 Real estate T I
30-40 % development and A 5 AF
30-40 years old | management, Over 5 years
kG ESE strategic
) Non-executive Director investment and K Y5 B,
comprehensive . PoRi
Economic
management Male
4 A0\ R - £
41-50 years old B A Th A Tl 2—64F
5 5L PLAT 51-60 1% Audit and 2-6 years
Independent non- 51-60 years old accounting, -
executive Director 60 B DL - corporate R
¢ co - . governance and 64 Business administration
years o
or above e Over 6 years

WAL AR - TRE B AT SR B - IRBS
EERMBME EEGEMEZ T
o BEPERIT & - ¥ F & H Al R A L
EH oFHFGEYORESELE &
R KB A MA E R E > DL
T 5 2 T A M R 2 otk o A2 F]
714 %88 388 TR P R A A AR AR S O A iR
ToWtH A=+t HEMUE S &
B AUV EE IR ES RGN
P 7 AV

The Board is fairly diverse in terms of position, age, skills and industry
experience, length of service and knowledge. In terms of gender, there is
currently no female Director on the Board. The Board is in the progress of
identifying female candidate(s) who possesses suitable skills, qualifications
and experience to join the Board in order to enhance gender diversity at the
Board level. The Company will endeavour to appoint at least one female
Director on or before 31 December 2024 through internal promotion or
external recruitment, and will continue to seek opportunities to increase

female representation on the Board.
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As at 31 December 2023, 28.5% and 71.5% of the employees (including
senior management) of the Group were female and male, respectively,
which is regarded by the Board as satisfactory and is in line with the
attributes of the real estate industry. There are no mitigating factors or
circumstances which make achieving gender diversity across the workforce
(including senior management) more challenging or less relevant as the
Group selects or promotes suitable talents based on criteria such as
academic background, working experience and performances rather than on
the ground of gender. The Group will continue to take gender diversity
into consideration during recruitment and when recruiting staff members
of mid to senior levels, and will maintain or even increase female

proportion at all levels with the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity.

The Company’s non-executive Director, Mr. OU Guoweli, is the son of Mr.
OU Zongrong, one of the Company’s Controlling Shareholders, and his
details are set out in the section headed “Biographies of the Directors and
Senior Management — Directors”. Save as disclosed above, no Board
member has other relationship with the other Board members, the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. The biographies
of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of the

Directors and Senior Management — Directors” of this annual report.

The Company has entered into service contracts with each of the executive
Directors and has issued letters of appointment to non-executive Director
and each of the independent non-executive Directors. The principal
particulars of these service contracts and letters of appointment are (a) for
an initial fixed term of three years commencing from 16 September 2023 (for
non-executive Director Mr. OU Guowei), 8 June 2023 (for executive
Director Mr. LIU Weiliang), 26 March 2024 (for executive Director Mr. LI
Yang), 15 December 2023 (for independent non-executive Directors Dr.
LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam) and Mr. WANG Chuanxu) and 13
September 2022 (for independent non-executive Director Mr. XIE Jun),
and (b) subject to termination in accordance with their respective terms.
The service contracts may be renewed in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company and the applicable Rules.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to
pension schemes, share-based compensation expenses, discretionary
bonuses, housing and other allowances and other benefits in kind) payable
to the Directors for Year 2023 was approximately RMB7.9 million.
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The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and performance of the Group. Details of the remuneration of
the Directors and senior management for 2023 are set out in Notes 8 and 9
to the financial statements. In addition, pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of
the Corporate Governance Code, the annual remuneration of members of

the senior management by band for Year 2023 is set out below:

[ &2 00N

Number of senior

% 1B B 4y 2 AR P E Remuneration to the senior management by band management
2,500,001 #5 JT 2 3,000,000 # TG HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1
A =t Total 1
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During Year 2023, the Company has three independent non-executive
Directors, which meets the requirement of the Listing Rules that the
number of independent non-executive directors must represent at least one-
third of the Board and should not be less than three.

The independent non-executive Directors play an important role in
ensuring the Board obtains independent views. They use their independent
analysis and professional judgments to provide professional and fair
opinions on the decisions made by the Board. This ensures the interests of
the Company and the shareholders are being protected. All Directors,
including the independent non-executive Directors, are given various
channels to communicate and express their views to the Board and have
separate and independent access to the management of the Group in order
to make informed decisions. The chairman of the Board should hold at
least one meeting every year, with the independent non-executive Directors
and without the presence of other Directors, to discuss significant matters
and any concerns. Further, all Directors or any of their close associates who
have a material interest in any matter to be considered in a meeting should
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution, and shall not be included in
the quorum of the meeting. Independent non-executive Directors who, and

whose associates, have no interest in the matter should attend the meeting.
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The Board reviews the above mechanisms annually to ensure independent
views are available to the Board and the implementation and effectiveness
of such mechanisms, and confirmed that such mechanisms were effective
during Year 2023.

The nomination committee is authorised to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors are required to provide an annual confirmation of their
independence to the Company and to notify the Company as soon as
possible of any subsequent change of circumstances that may affect their
independence. The Company has received the annual written confirmation
of independence from each of the independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers them to be
independent.

Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to ensure that
the Board procedures are followed. During Year 2023, Mr. CHAN King
Tak was one of the Company’s joint company secretaries. The Company has
also engaged Ms. KWONG Yin Ping, Yvonne, a vice president of SWCS
Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited (a company secretarial
service provider), as another joint company secretary to assist Mr. CHAN
King Tak in discharging his duties as company secretary of the Company.
Ms. KWONG Yin Ping, Yvonne’s primary contact person at the Company
was Mr. CHAN King Tak.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, each of Mr. CHAN
King Tak and Ms. KWONG Yin Ping, Yvonne have undertaken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during Year 2023.
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On the first occasion of each Director’s appointment, the Company has
arranged a comprehensive induction to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and business and is fully aware
of the director’s responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
statutory requirements. The Company will arrange suitable training for all
Directors in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as part
of their continuous professional development. During Year 2023, the
Company has arranged Listing Rules-related training as part of Directors’
continuous professional development and the training records of the

Directors are summarized as follows:

R 4 &~ Bk

BF w1 B B9 G 4
Attending briefings,
trainings or seminars

and reading materials

Executive Directors

wAlA A (A ZF Z=4F— A+ HREE{E) Mr. HUANG Xianzhi (resigned with effect

P& se ot
L

H AT F
B 24 ft S 2R

W or I BT E
I i A1 1
EEFEE

it B e

& %A A 2 F BE B Cs e M
o EEERS BTN E N E GG
o RMEFRT W

AR RN A BAT7IRE S
EERL—RERBETFTRE EFEE
AL EE S IRE S B A B
ARNE] R T AR S B U AREE
BEEE NG R SRR R
TSRS EZIRE

from 20 January 2023)
Mr. LIU Weiliang
Mr. LI Yang

=2 =2 =2

Nomn-executive Director
Mr. OU Guowei N

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam)
Mr. WANG Chuanxu

Mr. XIE Jun

2 =2 =2

Code provision C.5.1 of the Corporate Governance Code requires that at
least four regular Board meetings should be held each year at approximately
quarterly intervals.

During Year 2023, the Company held 7 Board meetings and one annual
general meeting. A total of 35 proposals were considered at the Board
meetings, including proposals for the consideration of the Company’s 2022
annual report, 2022 annual results announcement, 2023 interim report and

2023 interim results announcement.

—EC=FFR 7 Q
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NREIIN E S EREEL T The table below sets out the details of the attendance of each Director at
AW EFGER FFFLAFLEK the Board meetings, Board committee meetings and general meeting held
KK EGHFEN - during Year 2023.

e R 6

Number of meetings attended/meetings eligible to attend

#wHRZHE WHZAET FMZAET RS

ERG Audit  Nomination Remuneration General
The Board Committee committee committee meeting

HfTEF Executive Directors

FAIK £ Mr. HUANG Xianzhi® 171 - - - -

Blgse e A Mr. LIU Weiliang 717 = 2/2 2/2 11

A Mr. LI Yang 717 = = = 11

BT HEFH Non-executive Director

i B S A Mr. OU Guowei 717 2/2 = = 1/1

B B AT #EF Independent non-

executive Directors
W i A 1 L Dr. LOKE Yu (alias
LOKE Hoi Lam) 717 2/2 - - 1/1

E T A Mr. WANG Chuanxu 717 2/2 2/2 2/2 11

Eil & e Mr. XIE Jun 717 = 2/2 2/2 11

B 5 Note:

(1) AR e AR 73‘/{\ SEF = —H - +H (1) Mr. HUANG Xianzhi resigned as an executive Director with effect from 20 January
HEALHATESR c R E =4 — 2023. Since there was only 1 Board meeting during the period from 1 January 2023
H-Hz2ZZF_=F—H+JLHIH up to 19 January 2023, he was only required to attend 1 Board meeting. There was no
PESAT IR E & & wk > OO general meeting held during the period from 1 January 2023 up to 19 January 2023.
IREEFTR N T =F—H—

HZEZFZZ4—HFJuH # M w
BITROREKE -
ME AR YO TR & . . . .
1 3 B 16 B hE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

HHRYGAEBETAEE BT Z Rk The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
B VWAL JE Pl A N A ) provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. The Board reviewed
KAFZAEERBOR XMEH - #FFH K the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and
FREME B KRR A continuous professional development of Directors and senior management,
O AR B SF IR AL RLRLE - B P AR R S the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
Al B 3 B 45 51 DL R OE SF A 3R SF regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and written
R 7 T 22 R B A ) B i A A SE IR R employee guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
A 4 Y R o Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three principal Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee.
Each of the Board committees operates under its terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are available on the website of
the Company and that of the Stock Exchange.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent

professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee consists of three
members, namely Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam) and Mr. WANG
Chuanxu, being independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. OU
Guowei, the non-executive Director. Dr. LOKE Yu (alias LOKE Hoi Lam)
has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee, and is the
independent non-executive Director possessing the appropriate professional
qualifications. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include: (i)
making recommendations regarding the appointment and removal of
external auditors of the Company; (ii) reviewing the accounting policies
and financial positions of the Companys; (iii) reviewing and supervising the
internal audit functions and internal control structure of the Company; and

(iv) reviewing and overseeing the risk management of the Company.

During Year 2023, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial reporting
system, compliance procedures, internal control (including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budgeting of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
departments) and risk management systems and processes, whistleblowing
policy and the reappointment of the external auditor. The Board had not
deviated from any recommendation given by the Audit Committee on the

selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed interim and final results of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the interim period and the fiscal year as
well as the audit report prepared by the external auditor relating to

accounting issues and major findings in the course of audit.

SBOCFFR 8 “
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code. During Year
2023, the chairman of the nomination committee was Mr. HUANG
Xianzhi, who resigned with effect from 20 January 2023, and Mr. LIU
Weiliang was appointed as the chairman of the nomination committee
with effect from 20 January 2023. The other members of the nomination
committee were Mr. WANG Chuanxu and Mr. XIE Jun, each an
independent non-executive Director. The primary duties of the nomination
committee include: (i) reviewing the composition of the Board of Directors
and assessing the ability and experience of Directors; (ii) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal of
Directors; and (iii) assessing the independence of the independent non-

executive Directors.

The Board had adopted a board nomination policy which sets out the
purposes and principles, the process and criteria for identifying and
recommending candidates for election to the Board. The nomination
committee has been delegated by the Board to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become a Director and make recommendations to the Board on
the selection and appointment of individuals nominated for directorships.
In assessing the Board composition, the nomination committee would take
into account various aspects set out in the board diversity policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
industry experience, technical and professional skills and/or qualifications,
knowledge, length of services and time to be devoted as a director of the
Company. The nomination committee would discuss and agree on
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary,

and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
nomination committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve board diversity,

where appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

During Year 2023, the nomination committee has reviewed the
nomination policy and the board diversity policy; assessed the independence
of independent non-executive Directors; and made recommendation to the
Board in relation to the re-election of retiring Directors at the annual

general meeting.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code. The chairman of the remuneration committee
was Mr. WANG Chuanxu, an independent non-executive Director, and
the other members of remuneration committee were Mr. XIE Jun, an
independent non-executive Director, and Mr. HUANG Xianzhi (resigned
with effect from 20 January 2023) and Mr. LIU Weiliang (appointed with
effect from 20 January 2023), each an executive Director. The primary
duties of the remuneration committee include: (i) reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board regarding remuneration policies for
Directors and senior management; (ii) supervising the implementation of
remuneration policies; (iii) assessing performance of executive directors and
approving the terms of executive directors’ service contracts; and (iv)
reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has in place a policy on Directors’ remuneration to ensure
that there is an appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain
people of high calibre to oversee the Group’s business and development.
For details regarding the emolument policy of the Group, please refer to
the section headed “Directors’ Report — Employees and Remuneration
Policy”. The remuneration committee has adopted the model described in
code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the Corporate Governance Code in its terms of

reference.

During Year 2023, the remuneration committee discussed and reviewed
the service agreements, appointment letters and remuneration policy for
Directors and senior management of the Company, and made
recommendations to the Board on the service agreements, appointment
letters and remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management, but there were no matters relating to share schemes
that were required to be reviewed and/or approved by the remuneration

committee.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix C3 to
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry made
by the Company, that they have complied with the Model Code during
Year 2023.

SBOCFFR 8 3
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to
the shareholders of the Company, provided that the Group records a profit
after tax and that the declaration and distribution of dividends does not
affect the normal operations of the Group.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will be
subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia, the
Group’s operations, earnings, financial condition, capital requirements and
any other conditions the Directors may deem relevant at such time. Any
payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the articles of

association of the Company.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific

periods.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For Year 2023, the fees paid to the Company’s external auditor, Ernst &
Young, for the audit of the financial statements of the Group were RMB6.7

million.

During the year, the fees of non-audit services, including tax filing and
turnaround and restructuring strategy service provided by Ernst & Young
and its subsidiary and other affiliate entities to the Group are
approximately RMB1.1 million.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the financial
statements in order to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow during the reporting period. A
statement from the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out on pages 94 to 97 of this annual report. In
preparing the financial statements for Year 2023, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis for the reasons as set out

in note 2.1 to the financial statements.
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The Directors noted that the Company’s external auditor did not express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 due to the potential interaction of multiple
uncertainties related to going concern and their possible cumulative effect
on the consolidated financial statements as described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of the independent auditor’s report.

The Group recorded a net loss of RMB9,485,562,000 for the year ended 31
December 2023. As at 31 December 2023, (i) the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by RMB4,813,176,000; (ii) the
Group’s total interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes,
corporate bonds, perpetual capital securities and asset-backed securities
amounted to RMBG61,863,490,000, out of which RMB54,603,520,000
will be due for repayment within the next twelve months, while its cash
and cash equivalents amounted to RMB1,716,960,000; (iii) the Group had
not repaid an aggregate amount of principal and interest of
RMB12,763,266,000 for certain senior notes and an aggregate amount of
interest amounting to RMB1,824,355,000 for certain senior notes
according to their scheduled repayment dates, triggering events of default
for certain senior notes amounting to RMB13,377,932,000; (iv) an
aggregate amount of principal of RMB9,459,284,000 for interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings had not been repaid according to their
scheduled repayment dates, triggering certain long-term interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings amounting to RMB6,684,544,000 becoming
repayable on demand; (v) the Group failed to repay the principal and
interest amounting to RMB1,187,772,000 for a corporate bond due in
November 2022; and (vi) the Group failed to repay the principal and
interest amounting to RMB1,610,788,000 for the perpetual capital

securities.

The above conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties which
cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company have
undertaken a number of plans and measures to improve the Group’s

liquidity and financial position, including:

(@) The Group has been actively working with its legal advisor and
financial advisers on its offshore holistic liability management
solutions, in order to achieve a long-term sustainable capital
structure, resolve its liquidity issue and stabilise the Group’s

operations, taking into account the interests of all its stakeholders.

—EC=FFR 8 6
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(b)

(o)

(d)

(e)

®

(g

The Group has been actively negotiating with existing lenders on the
extension for repayments of certain borrowings. The Group may be
able to extend the payment schedule for certain interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings. Nevertheless, the confirmation of such

extension is subject to the final approval from the lenders.

The Group has achieved considerable success in securing extensions
for repayments of certain borrowings. For example, as of 31
December 2023, the Group successfully extended the maturity date
of asset-backed securities of the aggregate outstanding amounts of
RMB186,288,000, RMB142,082,000 and RMB1,036,620,000 to
September 2026, November 2026 and April 2024, respectively, and
the Group successfully extended the maturity date of corporate bonds
of the aggregate principal amounts of RMB1,000,000,000 (“Zhenro
Bond VII”), RMB1,000,000,000 (“Zhenro Bond VIII”), and
RMB1,320,000,000 (“Zhenro Bond IX”) to January 2027, March
2027 and January 2028, respectively, alleviating the pressure on

liquidity within a reasonable timeframe.

The Group has been actively negotiating with several financial
institutions to obtain new loans at a reasonable cost for ensuring

delivery of its property projects under development.

The Group will continue to seek for other alternative financing and
borrowings to finance the settlement of its existing financial

obligations and future operating and capital expenditures.

The Group has prepared a business strategy plan mainly focusing on

the acceleration of the sales of properties.

The Group has implemented measures to speed up the collection of

outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control costs and expenses.

The Group will continue to seek suitable opportunities to dispose of
its equity interests in certain project development companies in order

to generate additional cash inflows.
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The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections prepared by
management, which cover a period of not less than twelve months from 31
December 2023. The directors also noted that, as disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 11 April 2024, the Company requires
more time to consider whether the commercial terms of the RSA remains
the appropriate solution to the Group’s offshore indebtedness. As such, the
Company sought leave from the Court to vacate the convening hearing for
the Scheme originally fixed for 2 May 2024, and will continue to work
with its advisors on reaching a feasible outcome on the holistic
restructuring of the offshore debts of the Company. They are of the opinion
that, taking into account the above-mentioned plans and measures, the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due within twelve
months from 31 December 2023. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a

going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as to whether
the Group is able to achieve its plans and measures as described above.
Whether the Group will be able to continue as a going concern would
depend upon the following:

(a)  successfully completing the holistic restructuring of its offshore

indebtedness;

(b)  successfully negotiating with the Group’s existing lenders for the
renewal or extension for repayment of the Group’s interest-bearing

bank and other borrowings;

(¢)  successfully securing project development loans for qualified project

development in a timely manner;

(d) successfully obtaining additional new sources of financing as and

when needed;

(e)  successfully carrying out the Group’s business strategy plan including

the acceleration of the sales of properties;
(f)  successfully implementing measures to speed up the collection of the
outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control costs and expenses;

and

(g) successfully disposing of the Group’s equity interests in certain

project development companies when suitable.

—EC=FFR 8 7
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Should the Group be unable to achieve the above-mentioned plans and
measures and operate as a going concern, adjustments would have to be
made to write down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial

statements.

The Audit Committee has discussed with the Board and the management
of the Group about the concerns of the external auditor and the possible
impacts of the Plans and Measures. The Audit Committee and the Board
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity and performance of
the Group and its available sources of financing in assessing whether the
Group will have sufficient financial sources to continue as a going concern,
and have also taken into considerations that, among other things, (1)
progress made in relation to the Offshore Holistic Liability Management
Solutions; (2) the downpayment for purchasing residential units for first
time homebuyers and second homebuyers have been lowered in certain
cities in the PRC; (3) the extension of maturity dates for certain borrowings
of the Group in 2023; (4) the approvals of special loans by several local
governments and certain financial institutions to the Group to ensure
project delivery; and (5) the cash flow projections prepared by the
management, which cover a period of not less than twelve months from 31
December 2023. The Audit Committee agreed with the position taken by
and the basis of assessment on major judgmental areas adopted by the

management and the Board regarding the going concern issue.

The management will consider taking appropriate actions to address the
Disclaimer of Opinion. This will include, among others, implementing
and optimizing the plans and measures on an ongoing basis, and discussing
with the external auditor on an ongoing basis to address the Disclaimer of

Opinion.

The Audit Committee also discussed and understood the concerns of the
external auditor that uncertainties exist as to whether the management will
be able to achieve the Plans and Measures. There was no disagreement by
the Audit Committee with the external auditor’s position regarding the

Disclaimer of Opinion.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal
control and risk management systems in order to safeguard the Group’s
assets and shareholders’ interests and reviewing the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control and risk management systems, covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
on an annual basis, so as to ensure that internal control and risk
management systems in place are adequate. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives (including, among others, material risks relating to
environmental, social and governance), and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Company
also has an internal audit function which primarily carries out the analysis
and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the issuer’s
risk management and internal control systems, resolves material internal
control defects and reports their findings to the Board on at least an annual
basis.

The Group has established a multi-dimensional risk management system,
which includes (1) an information platform that ensures the efficient
operation of the risk management system; (2) formulating risk management
policies to ensure the Group carries out consistent procedures and standards
for risk identification, measurement and reporting; (3) identifying potential
risks of various business segments and key procedures; (4) risk assessment
and action procedures to ensure identified risks are assessed and solutions
are proposed in a timely manner; and (5) monitoring and reviewing the
risk management policies, risks assessment procedures, measures for
managing risks and their effectiveness, and report the findings to the
Board. In addition, the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems include a well-established organizational structure with clearly
defined lines of responsibility and authority. The day-to-day departmental
operations are entrusted to individual department which is accountable for
its own conduct and performance and is required to operate its own
department’s business within the scope of the delegated authority and to
implement and strictly adhere to the strategies and policies set by the
Company from time to time. Each department is also required to keep the
Board informed of material developments of the department’s business and
implementation of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular
basis.

SBOCFFR 8 Q
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During Year 2023, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group to ensure that a sound
system is maintained and operated by the management in compliance with
the agreed procedures and standards. The review covered all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. In particular, the Board considered the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and budget
of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions. The review was made by discussions with the management of
the Company, its external and internal auditors and the assessment was
conducted by the Audit Committee. The Board considers that the existing
internal control and risk management systems are adequate and effective,

in particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.

WHISTLEBLOWING AND ANTI-CORRUPTION
POLICIES

Building a convenient and transparent reporting system is a crucial
component of the Group’s collective effort towards clean and honest
governance. To this end, the Group has formulated the “Guidelines for
Reporting Management”, which outline the Group’s internal and external
reporting management mechanisms, reporting channels and methods and
set forth standardized procedures for the acceptance and processing of
reports. Meanwhile, the “Guidelines for Reporting Management” provide
explicit protection and reward provisions for whistleblowers, and require
that any information about whistleblowers be kept confidential by the
recipient, so as to safeguard the rights and interests of whistleblowers to
the greatest possible extent.

In addition, the Group adheres strictly to relevant laws and regulations and
has established systems such as “Code of Conduct for Employees”, which
regulates employee behavior, including violations of integrity, abuse of
power and conflict of interests, and defines the Group’s value orientation,
enabling employees to perform their duties with loyalty, integrity, and
self-discipline, and jointly safeguard the overall interests of the Group. The
Group arranged and will continue to reinforce anti-corruption and anti-
fraud training for Directors and employees, intensifies corruption
prevention campaigns and fosters a culture of honesty and integrity among

its workforce.



W H B

TE B B e 8% TN HE T B 2 R B A
YEJTTE AR ) i R R R
B FIXIVATE 2 E R BRI T 2 & 14E -
AN BB A A P S RO > BUR
WO AEHER RERAB 25 K&
P UMEMRAEHRZ NEHEAT -
R R A 2N B o A S5 T 5 M 2 O B B
AT B g Wh B % S TR KO SF M B
B -

FB S HE I B i 52 Wi B SR

Ay w2 RS GE MR SL - e ]
T R A 7 IR DU B B BB R K
T MBALFNMHBKERMA > AL
FEAT — 45 8 DL B 7 BOR R H R A
DA o w0 B A (A HE L AE A
AR R R g B + a2 — M BOR A
g AR N A F B R
LTINS SN N PN )
A SR AR TR A B AT o i A 4R W 2R
Bt —HRNEEFERAAMAE - A
P ahk BRI N £ B Bl #% A R 77 XA BA
eSO B > T A 2 A 26 1] 42w BRI A
tTHERERGRAAMREm AT A
BH R & BT A 09 B A B BH S e

oy DR B JBESROHE 2 S HE M > A 2% W A
HEOR S H (609 288 B 1 3 ) R B R
fERY AUS: S

N>

— PEERWRE
Corporate Governanece Report

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company takes seriously of its
obligations under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a Continuous Disclosure
Compliance Policy which sets out guidelines and procedures to the
Directors and officers of the Group to ensure inside information of the
Group is to be disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner.
Briefing session is held regularly for officers to facilitate their

understanding and compliance with the policy.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Board may
whenever it thinks fit call general meetings. Pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company, general meetings shall also be convened on the
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company
of any one or more members of the Company holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the

Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are and
will be proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including

the election of individual Directors.

TEC=FFR (;W
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The procedures for shareholder to propose a person for election as a director
are available on the Company’s website (www.zhenrodc.com). Shareholders
may lodge written proposal to the company secretary of the Company at
40/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, provided that the minimum length of the period, during which
such written notice is given, shall be at least seven days and that the
lodgment of such notice shall commence no earlier than the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.
In order to ensure that other shareholders would have sufficient time to
receive and consider the information of the person proposed for election as
a director, shareholders are urged to lodge their written notice of his
intention to propose a person for election as director as early as practicable
in advance of the relevant general meeting and, in any case, not less than
12 business days (as defined in the Listing Rules, i.e. day(s) on which the
Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing in securities) before the date
scheduled for holding the relevant general meeting, so that the Company
can complete the verification procedure with the Company’s share registrar,
and procure the publication of an announcement and/or the dispatch of a
supplementary circular to shareholders in compliance with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules. In the event that any such written
notice is received by the Company later than the 12th business day before
the date of holding the relevant general meeting, the Company will need
to consider whether to adjourn the relevant meeting so as to give
shareholders a notice of at least 10 business days of the proposal in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Board has adopted the shareholders’ communication policy to maintain
an open and effective communication with the shareholders and to update
the shareholders on relevant information on the Group’s business in a
timely manner. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.
The Company has established several channels to communicate with its

shareholders as follows:

(i)  Corporate communications such as annual reports, interim reports
and circulars are available on the Stock Exchange’s website at www.

hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at www.zhenrodc.com;

(ii)  Announcements and other disclosures as required under the Listing
Rules are published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company;

(iii) Corporate information and contact details of the Company are made

available on the Company’s website;
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(iv) Annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum for the
shareholders to raise queries and make comments about the
Company, and exchange views with the Directors and senior

management; and

(v) The Hong Kong share registrar of the Company, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, serves the shareholders in

respect of share registration, dividend payment and related matters.

During Year 2023, the Company has maintained sufficient contact details
for shareholders to put forward enquiries to the Board. In addition, the
Company held an AGM on 16 June 2023 at which shareholders were able
to communicate their views with the chairman of the Board. Corporate
communications were published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange in a timely manner. The Board has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication
policy during Year 2023 and based on the above factors, the Board

considers the shareholders’ communication policy to be effective

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A special resolution was passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 16 June 2023, which approved the amendment of the
memorandum of association of the Company (the “Memorandum”) and
the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”) and the adoption
of the amended and restated Memorandum and Articles with effect from
16 June 2023. Please refer to the circular of the Company dated 28 April
2023 and the poll results announcement of the Company dated 16 June
2023 for details.

The amended and restated Memorandum and Articles is available on the
websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

SBOCFFR Q 3
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To the shareholders of Zhenro Properties Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Lslands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Zhenro
Properties Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 98 to 275, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated

financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group. Because of the potential interaction of the multiple
uncertainties relating to going concern and their possible cumulative effect
on the consolidated financial statements as described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, it is not possible for us to form
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. In all other respects,
in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern

As set out in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
recorded a net loss of RMB9,485,562,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023. As at 31 December 2023, (i) the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB4,813,176,000; (ii) the Group’s total interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes, corporate bonds,
perpetual capital securities and asset-backed securities amounted to
RMB61,863,490,000, out of which RMB54,603,520,000 will be due for
repayment within the next twelve months, while its cash and cash
equivalents amounted to RMB1,716,960,000; (iii) the Group had not
repaid an aggregate amount of principal and interest of
RMB12,763,266,000 for certain senior notes and an aggregate amount of
interest amounting to RMB1,824,355,000 for certain senior notes
according to their scheduled repayment dates, triggering events of default
for certain senior notes amounting to RMB13,377,932,000; (iv) an
aggregate amount of principal of RMB9,459,284,000 for interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings had not been repaid according to their
scheduled repayment dates, triggering certain long-term interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings amounting to RMB6,684,544,000 becoming
repayable on demand; (v) the Group failed to repay the principal and
interest amounting to RMB1,187,772,000 for a corporate bond due in
November 2022; and (vi) the Group failed to repay the principal and
interest amounting to RMB1,610,788,000 for the perpetual capital
securities. These conditions, together with other matters disclosed in note 2.1
to the financial statements, indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

—EC=FFR Q 6
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern (Continued)

The directors of the Company have been undertaking plans and measures
to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, which are set out
in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements. The validity of the
going concern assumption on which the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared depends on the outcome of these measures, which are
subject to multiple uncertainties, including: (i) successfully completing the
holistic restructuring of its offshore indebtedness; (ii) successfully
negotiating with the Group’s existing lenders for the renewal or extension
for repayment of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings; (iii)
successfully securing project development loans for qualified project
development timely; (iv) successfully obtaining additional new sources of
financing as and when needed; (v) successfully carrying out the Group’s
business strategy plan including the acceleration of the sales of properties; (vi)
successfully implementing measures to speed up the collection of
outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control costs and expenses; and (vii)
the successful and timely implementation of the plans to dispose of its
equity interests in certain project development companies, and the timely
collection of the proceeds.

As a result of these multiple uncertainties, their potential interaction, and
the possible cumulative effect thereof, we were unable to form an opinion
as to whether the going concern basis of preparation is appropriate. Should
the Group fail to achieve the abovementioned plans and measures, it might
not be able to continue to operate as a going concern, and adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying amount of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial

statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor's Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or

have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA?”) and to issue an auditor’s report. We report solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
However, because of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion section of our report, it is not possible for us to form an opinion on

the consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ho Wai Ling.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
BE-FZ -+ A=t—HIHEE

Year ended 31 December 2023

B 54 SEROES S
Notes 2023 2022
AR ¥+ i AR ¥T 5
RMB’000 RMB’000
W #5 REVENUE b) 38,774,935 25,895,478
RN Cost of sales (36,596,210) (24,146,144)
EH Gross profit 2,178,725 1,749,334
At e A T i A Other income and gains 5 82,244 254,149
BB B 4y 8 B S Selling and distribution expenses (922,979) (976,217)
AT BBH 52 Administrative expenses (655,900) (924,754)
4 il A 2 ek L M 15V AR Impairment losses on financial assets, net 24, 40 (1,426,423) (1,838,180)
HoAh B =% Other expenses 5 (4,594,607) (8,920,797)
&Y EN A FEEE Fair value losses on investment properties 14 (644,419) (410,565)
HNFEF A 41 Fair value losses on financial assets at fair
4 Rl EE N T E S R value through profit or loss (254,155) (148,721)
& A Finance costs 7 (2,588,893) (1,370,339)
JE A DL R B4 G 48 Share of losses of:
G EARS Joint ventures (28,178) (29,861)
B 7 2 ] Associates (149,697) (225,558)
K B¢ w5 18 LOSS BEFORE TAX 6 (9,004,282) (12,841,509)
AT A5 BH 7 Income tax expense 10 (481,280) (1,775,714)
N g HE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (9,485,562) (14,617,223)
PAN AL EAS - Attributable to:
NHEHER N Owners of the parent (8,467,942) (12,877,046)
K EARE SRR A Holders of perpetual capital securities = 7,750
IF 12 B HE £ Non-controlling interests (1,017,620) (1,747,927)
(9,485,562) (14,617,223)
BAREERERREA A LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
B Al 45 T Js 18 TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
FEAR % Basic and diluted 12 AR¥W@a99Hm AR¥QIS)TT

RMB(1.94) yuan

RMB(2.95) yuan

Q 8 EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

WEF = A= A

Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
AR ¥ Tz AR ¥ TIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AN HE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (9,485,562) (14,617,223)
Aty 2 i )i 4R OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
AR ER M EN 2B EIRLE  Other comprehensive loss that may be
Z HoAth 2 T e 4 reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
FE 58, 75 33 - Exchange differences:
PR AN TS EE A BE S 25 % Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations (183,035) (1,329,722)
A 9 H Al 2 T 4R > NBRBEIH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (183,035) (1,329,722)
SN R A - MBRBEH  TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (9,668,597) (15,946,945)
NN A Attributable to:
EEY/NEEIE/ FSIN Owners of the parent (8,650,977) (14,206,768)
KEEARESFFA N Holders of perpetual capital securities - 7,750
I 1 B A 15 Non-controlling interests (1,017,620) (1,747,927)
(9,668,597) (15,946,945)

—EC=FFR Q Q
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
S e

31 December 2023

[t 1 R =4 - S
Notes 2023 2022
AR ¥ F o AR ¥T 5
RMB’000 RMB’000
Ik i B & NON-CURRENT ASSETS
LEIN & ] Property, plant and equipment 13 1,244,300 1,269,775
HEY % Investment properties 14 8,006,900 8,627,400
i 7 & Right-of-use assets 15 247,203 278,535
FHoAth 48 2 & A Other intangible assets 16 28 48
REBENENRE Investments in joint ventures 17 2,179,692 2,207,870
R Bk N | R BE Investments in associates 18 6,346,465 7,598,662
% S Bl JE & Deferred tax assets 19 578,263 971,749
Ik W B & AR Total non-current assets 18,602,851 20,954,039
B & CURRENT ASSETS
AP HEFIAEZN Financial assets at fair value through
4 R E profit or loss 20 2,701 282,473
BH 95 W) 2 Properties under development 21 64,430,208 113,364,362
HEHED g TY2E Completed properties held for sale 22 29,801,224 9,904,155
& 5 ME s 3] TE Trade receivables 23 574,284 747,858
JRE Wiz ) T 2 ] K E Due from related companies 40 10,281,064 11,528,983
TE AT FIE ~ HoAth B Wit K IE K Prepayments, other receivables and
oAt other assets 24 22,465,143 26,333,040
AT i [ B TE Tax recoverable 1,994,545 2,101,667
Z PRI 4 X E A Z 3 Restricted cash and pledged deposits 25 3,318,649 5,979,604
B4 M 4% EY Cash and cash equivalents 25 1,716,960 3,270,111
Ui B A E AE Total current assets 134,584,778 173,512,253

"‘ O EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
—ZE—=#t+—A=+—H

31 December 2023

[t = - S ot - S
Notes 2023 2022
AR ¥ F o A REFox
RMB’000 RMB’000
bR = R CURRENT LIABILITIES

Z o MEAS 3 E I EAT 22458 Trade and bills payables 26 17,734,022 15,604,977
oAt JE A 20 ) ESHEE Al Other payables and accruals 27 13,522,987 11,589,405
B HEE Contract liabilities 28 45,469,076 76,723,225
JEASH B8 B N ) OE Due to related companies 40 5,608,784 6,129,358
T B SR AT B Al i K Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 29 25,834,848 25,701,080
188 4 = g Senior notes 30 24,162,213 23,859,544
INGIEE- Corporate bonds 31 1,187,772 4,695,387
Tk 48 & R 5 5 Perpetual capital securities 34 1,391,908 1,311,845
JRE A5 Bt I Tax payable 10 4,472,318 4,708,084
45 A 5 Lease liabilities 15 14,026 29,290
B B A Total current liabilities 139,397,954 170,352,195
B (RfF), & NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (4,813,176) 3,160,058

A8 R B £ A TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 13,789,675 24,114,097

e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—F S A=A
31 December 2023

[t 1 R =4 -
Notes 2023 2022
AR ¥ T VNS e
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE W By £1 0 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
ot S SR AT B HoAth 4 2k Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 29 3,165,631 5,182,517
Aty R AF 3 I R E Other payables and accruals 27 328,370 942,383
AR Corporate bonds 31 3,765,969 -
I G P 0H B & Deferred tax liabilities 19 367,883 496,707
HE A Lease liabilities 15 10,293 12,833
JE Vi B & 1R AR Total non-current liabilities 7,638,146 6,634,440
o E E Net assets 6,151,529 17,479,657
E 35 EQUITY
B R HEA N AL HE 45 Equity attributable to owners of the parent
A Share capital 32 282 282
it i Reserves 33 (3,889,245) 4,758,652
(3,888,963) 4,758,934
IE P2 B HE 4 Non-controlling interests 10,040,492 12,720,723
HE 25 4 % Total equity 6,151,529 17,479,657
BliEse ek B A Mr. Liu Weiliang Mr. Li Yang
HH HH Director Director

"‘ O EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Chqnges in Equity

CE ST A= HIEFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

BATEA AL
Attributable to owners of the parent
EEAE  ERNS
Bk BBEE AOEE EAMMG it f i RitEH i REREE  EEAE
Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share Share Merger Capital surplus  fluctuation  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves reserve losses Total interests equity

ARBTR ARBTL ARBTFL ARBTE ARBTL ARETFL ARBTLZ ARBTL AREFL ARETH
RMBOOO  RMB0O0  RMBOOO  RMB0O0  RMBOOO  RMB000 ~ RMBOOO  RMB000  RMBOOO  RMB000
(H3E32)  (W3E33@)  (WFEE33)  (MFRE33@)  (RERE3s@)  (HERE33E)

(note32)  (note33(2)  (note33(b)  (note33(c)  (note33(d))  (note 33(e))

A Asat 1 January 2023 282 3,696478%  4527360%  (218,148)%  1,719,294*  (842992)*  (4,123,340)* 4758934 12,720,723 17,479,657
Loss for the year - - - - - - (8,467,942) (8467942 (1,017,620 (9,485,562
Other comprehensive loss

for the year:

BEGMEREEN  Exchange differences on

BN translation of foreign
operations - - - - - (183,035) - (183,035) - (183,035)
FR2HEERAHE Total comprehensive loss
for the year - - - - - (183,035) (8467942  (8,650977)  (1,017,620)  (9,668,597)
B O 2 e Acquisition of

non-controlling

interests - - = 3,080 - - - 3,080 (1,238,308)  (1,235,228)

AR B A (i 5E37)  Disposal of subsidiaries

(note 37) - - - - - - - - (20,635) (20,635)

T I 2 7 FEFE MR Dividends paid to

A8

non-controlling
shareholders of
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - (403,668) (403,668)

BRE2EERBME  Appropriations to

statutory surplus

Eserves - - -

131,727 - (131,727) - - -

As at 31 December 2023
282 3,696,478%  4,527,360* (215,068 1,851,021*  (1,026,027)*  (12,723,009)*  (3,888,963) 10,040,492 6,151,529

Annuofl?;eionﬁ;ﬁi —I O 3




EEREER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HE_Z =Ft+_HA=1+—HIL4E¥

Year ended 31 December 2023

EZAGE N 4
Attributable to ownets of the parent
RS ELVD K
Bk ROEE A0S AARE Bt Bl B At EARE FERERZ  RLLE
Statutory  Exchange Perpetual Non-
Share Share Merger Capital surplus  fluctuation  Accumulated apital  controlling Total
apital premium feserve feserve feserves reserve losses Total secutities interests equity
ANRBTL ARKTE ABKTT ARKETE ABWTT ARKETT ARWTT ARETT ARKTL ARETT ARKTL
RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB0O0  RMB0O0 ~ RMBUO0  RMBUO0  RMBUO0  RMB0O0  RMBU00O
(ko) (Wakssw) (WEEERSG) (WEEsso) (WEkssa) (WiEsse)
(note 32)  (note 33(a)  (note 33b))  (note 33(c)  (note 33(d))  (note 33(e))
RoZ-—E-F-H Asar | January 2022 282 36064785 AS2I360%  170346*  LSILT8F 486730+ 8961272¢ 19354196  14OLSST 20186728 40942511
E(BR) /A (Loss)profi for the year = = = = = - (12877046 (12,877,046) 7750 (1,747,927) (14,617,223)
EREMEEER : Other comprehensive loss for
the year:
REBIER RN Exchange differences on
EREH translation of foreign
operations - - - - - (1,329,722 - (1,329,722 - - (1,329,722)
ERAHERGH Total comprehensive loss for
the year - - - - - (1,329,722) (12,877,046) (14,206,768) 7,750 (1,747,927)  (15,946,945)
WEAREERBRLE  Capital contribucion from
non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 78511 78511
B A Acquisition of non-controlling
interests - - - (388494) - = - (388499) - (2675,032)  (3,063,526)
g BB A (W) Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 37) = = = = = = = = - 489415)  249475)
1o O B R Dividends paid to
Wt i non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (682,082  (682,082)
Nl (ERE Vs Announcement of redemption
of perpetual capital
securities = - - - - - - - (1337914 - (1337914
o KA A48 AR Dividends to che holders of
[id:S perpetual capital securities - - - - - - - - (71,423) - (71423)
EREEERBRE Appropriations to statutory
surplus reserves - - - - 207,566 - (207,566) - - - -
RZZZZ Asat 31 December 2022
+oA=+-A 22 3696478 4527360¢  (QUSI48F 171994 (842992 (4123340 4758934 - 17073 17479657

* ZEMMIEE OSBRI ENRN *
1) %5 & i 5 N R (3,889,245,000) JC (-
T A NRH4,758,652,0007C) ©

ERHERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB(3,889,245,000) (2022:
RMB4,758,652,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

e S A T
Year ended 31 December 2023

Annual Report 2023

Bt 5 R =4 B S
Notes 2023 2022
AR ¥+ AR ¥ T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEGDHBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
% B F I 48 Loss before tax (9,004,282) (12,841,509)
ki Adjustments for:
I E R G R Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 6,13 24,231 34511
o A HEE R AT B Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6,15 33,275 40,104
1§19 At A TR Amortisation of other intangible assets 6,16 20 144
Y - MR Bk Gain on disposal of items of property,

TH H AUk %5 78 %8 plant and equipment, net 6 (4,428) (2,419)
B B N B 1) s 4 AR Losses on disposal of subsidiaries, net 6,37 25,243 64,253
I f 4 S S 4 1) i Gain on repurchase of senior notes 5 = (47,375)
HE AT A AE G Losses/(gains) on disposal of financial

B 4 Al EE Y R 4R assets at fair value through profit or

(W 3) 15 %8 loss, net 6 9,504 (8,860)
G 2 R E N A Gain on disposal of joint ventures and

Y IR 2 associates - (33,108)
JRE A5 DA T B s 48, Share of losses of:

G B A2 Joint ventures 28,178 29,861

W5k 4% N\ &) Associates 149,697 225,558
F N FAE R AR £ 1Y 4 Rl Fair value losses from financial assets at

EE RN E R fair value through profit or loss 254,155 148,721
BEYENTHEH Changes in fair value of investment

properties 14 644,419 410,565
AT AT S ~ H A 78 i Impairment provision for financial assets

K T B H At E Y 4 included in prepayments, other

(A receivables and other assets 6 1,426,423 1,838,180
WEBHEE ) 2 R FRE L # Impairment losses recognised for

B % T ) 26 58 1 3 (E properties under development and

s 48 completed properties held for sale 5,6 4,375,883 8,395,500
Bl R AR Finance costs 2,588,893 1,370,339
B A Interest income 5 (50,813) (128,349)

500,398 (503,884)
SBO=FER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BT =t A=t —HIEE

Year ended 31 December 2023

B 5 mEROEE S
Notes 2023 2022
AR ¥+ AR ¥ T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 2% w4y 3 KRR AR Decrease in properties under development
B R TY kWD and completed properties held for sale 25,438,484 5,755,337
2 BRI 5 4 D Decrease in restricted cash 2,705,499 6,702,836
B 0 A7 2k (), B (Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits (48,789) 677,615
B T JRE Wi 5k TE ik Decrease in trade receivables 173,574 5,920
FE At 3KTE ~ HoAth B Wt ZIE & Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, other
HCAthy ¥ E Bk D (3% ) receivables and other assets 1,709,214 (6,475,404)
JVRE Wiz [ Bt N ) K TEL B n Increase in amounts due from related
companies (25,675) (16,313)
B 5 MEAT ZRIH K EAT 25245 Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables
B,/ (B) 2,142,215 (3,758,916)
HoAth AT X T8 Iz E&T 2 ] Increase in other payables and accruals
4 1,116,483 4,927,756
A4 A& ED Decrease in contract liabilities (31,254,149) (5,572,632)
JRE AN B W A ] K IE Increase in amounts due to related
H#am companies 26,008 11,212
o T 15 3 & Cash generated from operations 2,483,262 1,753,527
B i A B Interest received 50,813 128,349
SERER Tax paid (346,582) (1,032,681)
#8550 B r 15 3 & i 7 88 Net cash flows from operating activities 2,187,493 849,195

"‘ O EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BEZ=Ff+"H=1+—HIFE
Year ended 31 December 2023

W 5 E R —EF-=
Notes 2023 2022
N4 & AR ¥ T
RMB’000 RMB’000
& B B &R CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
EEY) 2 5 Xk #5E B Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment (1,698) (81,580)
WEREYE Additions in investment properties (23,919) (55,032)
b8 A A Disposal of subsidiaries 37 109,002 1,077,712
HELS BN Disposal of joint ventures = 1,527,459
WA FEFT A Disposal of financial assets at fair value
& A = through profit or loss 38,711 89,546
HE—-TEREY ¥ Disposal of an investment property - 36,967
MNEBLENRE Investments in joint ventures — (100,000)
HEY X FKkE & skM#iE H Disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment 7,370 3,200
FEEE S B 4 =% Net cash flows from investing activities 129,466 2,498,272
il By B A = CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
B J 2N i JE FERE B SR i & Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries - 78,511
In] g 2 ) JF 2 B B R Dividends paid to non-controlling
IR A 1B B shareholders of subsidiaries - (682,082)
n] 7K A AT S R A A Dividends paid to the holders of perpetual
TR AT S capital securities = (71,423)
Wi B S e B 25 Acquisition of non-controlling interests (159,565) (3,063,526)
B8 W 2 R K Advances from related companies 40 786,164 7,017,127
18 952 B WA A ) AR Repayment of advances from related
companies 40 (1,332,747) (8,066,075)
& 3% 45 T B8 55 N =] B0 Bk Repayment of advances to related companies 40 148,086 10,004,622
6T BE B N T R AR Advances to related companies 40 (114,396) (10,063,608)
2 S A AE 3 D Decrease in pledged deposits 4,245 7,299,107
FPEERAT I HoAth i Z T #5  Proceeds from interest-bearing bank and
E QUL other borrowings 534,956 2,683,083
fE AT B R AT B HoAth {5 3Kk Repayment of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings (2,716,765) (17,519,443)
& 3% )\ FE J5 Repayment of corporate bonds (3,753) (5,000)
B & s X Es Repayment of asset-backed securities = (270,457)
EffEE TEEARZHE  Interest paid to asset-backed securities (2,411) (82,736)
FHEFE (B EM B A ) Lease payments including related interest 15 (22,392) (29,547)
EAF A B Interest paid (992,566) (2,078,199)
Pl 15 ) T B 4 VA Nee cash flows used in financing activities (3,871,144) (14,849,646)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEF =Ft+ H=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2023

B E R =4 B S
Notes 2023 2022
N4 & VNS e
RMB’000 RMB’000
Bl& KBl &% @YY H % NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (1,554,185) (11,502,179)
EX B KB &S EY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year 3,270,111 14,727,132
TE = 58 8 (19 5 28 » V8 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 1,034 45,158
FEARB G KB &S EY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 1,716,960 3,270,111
BeRB &5 EMERSH ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
4 e SRAT 45 R Cash and bank balances 25 5,035,609 9,249,715
W 2 R B A Less: Restricted cash 25 3,187,254 5,892,753
B % 1 77 2K Pledged deposits 25 131,395 86,851
4 i R KBRS IR L2 BT Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
B B4 B B4 S E ) statement of cash flows and statement of
financial position 1,716,960 3,270,111
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o ) B 4 R

AAFARF-NFELA Z+—
H7E B & i 5 GE s or 7 2 %
ARRAF AR A BAR =% —
NE—A+NBEFERGZS
B A7 BR 2> W) (T Wk 28 B 1) £l vl o
A 4y w) R EE M O R A R Walkers
Corporate Limited, 190 Elgin Avenue,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9008,

Cayman Islands °

T AR TR o AR 4R T 3 A 2 ) 3 B R
EYEME -

A T H R > AN T B AR
T P S 7 5% 4 S 2k
A1 R 2 ) BB R

CUNGER ] UNGIE T
i

I 2 R B R R E RS CRAEER R A

Place of incorporation/

Subsidiaries registration and business

HERA
Directly held:

S
S e

Notes to Financial Statements

—Z==Ft=A=t—H
31 December 2023

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 21 July 2014. The
Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 16
January 2018. The registered office of the Company is located at
Walkers Corporate Limited, 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand
Cayman KY1-9008, Cayman Islands.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in property

development and property leasing.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company is Mr. Ou Zongrong.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

A w Bl
Bt EEEH
Percentage of
equity interest
Issued ordinary/ attributable to

registered share capital the Company Principal activities

Zhenro International Limited

Zhenro International Limited

Blooming Force Limited

Blooming Force Limited

R A -

Indirectly held:

Zhenro Hong Kong Limited
Zhenro Hong Kong Limited

Sheen Billion Investment Limited

Sheen Billion Investment Limited

True Dragon (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

True Dragon (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

FRE LS 50,000 % T¢ 100% BEHEK
British Virgin Islands US$50,000 Investment holding
PR E LTS 50,000% T¢ 100% $ K E
British Virgin Islands US$50,000 Investment holding
ik 10,0009 ¢ 100% $ EER
Hong Kong HK$10,000 Investment holding
it 10,0009 ¢ 100% B & R
Hong Kong HK$10,000 Investment holding
i 5,000,000 1 1l % 72 100% $EHER
Singapore SGD5,000,000 Investment holding
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Notes to Financial Statements
—E A=+ —H
31 December 2023

1]

o w) B B E B (AF)

A1 Bl VT 2> ) B4 R (A7)

A A E 2 4 A A R S

R ()

) A

Subsidiaries

MEHH - (F)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
TN A B 7 A PR ]

Fuzhou Huiheng Trading Co., Ltd.

M RREEAR AR

Fuzhou Fengzewei Industrial Co., Ltd.

MER R ERA R A
Fuzhou Huace Enterprise Management
Co., Ltd.

AR N B e 7 S B R

Fuzhou Juntai Commercial Management

Co., Led.

ERMELRRARAR
Zhenro Property Holdings Company Limited

ER (L) B LB RA R+
Zhenro Yupin (Shanghai) Real Estate Development

Co., Ltd.*

IESR VR (1) B RA R A+
Zhenro Yuyuan (Shanghai) Real Estate Development

Co., Ltd.*

ERMT (L) BXFEEARA T+
Zhenro Yuzun (Shanghai) Real Estate Development

Co., Led.*

EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(Continued)

RE I B R

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

g AR AL

(T B 1) /b i 3

People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”)/
Chinese Mainland

L/
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ B A
PRC/Chinese Mainland
B/ R

PRC/Chinese Mainland

ot /o
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B AT A R A

Issued ordinary/

registered share capital

B 10,000,000 7T
RMB10,000,000

N B #1,000,000,000 7C
RMB1,000,000,000

N B 200,000,000 7C

RMB200,000,000

B #5800,000,000 TG
RMBS00,000,000

N B H8,200,000,000 G
RMBS,200,000,000
B 100,000,000 7C

RMB100,000,000

N B #100,000,000 76
RMB100,000,000

A B 50,000,000 7T
RMB50,000,000

A F Bl
It 1 4 e
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

95%

95%

95%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

FEEH

Principal activities

feE R

Investment holding

fE MR

Investment holding

BB

Investment holding

BB

Investment holding

Investment holding

VELE ST
Property development

and property leasing
UELE

Property development

B

Property development
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Notes to Financial Statements
—— =4
31 December 2023

N REBEER () 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
A AR R 2w B E R ()
ENEIIEE 3 ) - ACNE  CE

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

WM (8 (Continued)
A 7 Al
it J 2 AL B R E R TR R A i Tipidi A 3
Percentage of
equity interest
Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business registered share capital the Company Principal activities

MR (4
Indirectly held: (Continued)
E5 (B H) BXERARAF

Zhenro (Putian) Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

EEME (BE) BEARAA
Zhenro Fortune (Fujian) Real Estate Co., Ltd.

ER(RY)EEHRAHA
Zhenro (Changsha) Real Estate Co., Led.

B IE 5 GH I 30) & S R 7
((HEE%])
Nanchang Zhenro (Singapore) Real Estate

Co., Ltd. (“Nanchang Real Estate”)

I B A K A A R

Nanchang Shiou Properties Development
Co., Ltd.

R LK EEARA A
Hunan Xiushan Lishui Real Estate Co., Ltd.

PRUIE BB A R
Nanjing Zhenggao Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

B/ R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

oo A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

s/ B

PRC/Chinese Mainland

/o A

PRC/Chinese Mainland

Gl g
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ B A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

Gl g
PRC/Chinese Mainland

N B 310,000,000 76
RMB310,000,000

B #101,100,0007C
RMB101,100,000

\ B 60,000,000 7T

RMB60,000,000

AR #105,000,000 70

RMB105,000,000

AR 99,039,200 7
RMB99,039,200

A R 18,000,000 7
RMBS,000,000

A B 98,000,000 7C
RMBYS,000,000

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

“EC=FER
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VE L YEIE Ll
Property development

and property leasing

ELE Y SIE il
Property development

and property leasing

ES LY SISl
Property development

and property leasing
VELE ST

Property development

and property leasing

ESLES

Property development

UELE

Property development

EEES

Property development

11
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Notes to Financial Statements
—E A=+ —H
31 December 2023

1]

o w) B B E B (AF)

A7 138 Bt 08 2 w1 0% BB (7))

A A E 2 4 A A R S

R ()

I 2+

Subsidiaries

MEE : (5)
Indirectly held: (Continued)
RANEE B A RA A

Kunshan Jianbao Real Estate Co., Ltd.**

I G IE 5 4 7 8 A PR A R+
Nanjing Hongzheng Real Estate Development

Co., Led.*

EH () EXRRARAF

Zhengrun (Putian) Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

ETECFE) BXERARAF
Zhengsheng (Pingtan) Real Estate Development

Co., Led.

AR SO A S A IR R+
Fuzhou Jingmu Enterprise Management
Co., Ltd.#*

B IERBEXERA R A A
Chuzhou Zhengxiang Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

REERET EREARA A
Wuhan Zhenro Zhengsheng Real Estate
Co., Ltd.

EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL B R E R TR R A

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

B/ R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

R/ R

PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

Gl
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ B A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

Gl T
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

Issued ordinary/

registered share capital

B #1,200,000,000 7
RMB1,200,000,000

A #50,000,000 78

RMB50,000,000

\ B 80,800,000 7
RMBS0,800,000

AR 850,000,000 78
RMBS50,000,000

B 900,000,000 7T
RMB900,000,000

N B 20,000,000 7
RMB20,000,000

B 100,100,000 7C
RMB100,100,000

A 7 Al
4 g
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

50%

51%

100%

100%

34%

100%

100%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

FEREH

Principal activities

ESEE

Property development

UELLE

Property development

ESEE

Property development

ELES

Property development

UELE

Property development

ELE

Property development

B

Property development
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Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2023

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

o w) B B E B (AF) 1.

A1 Bl VT 2> ) B4 R (A7)
A A E 2 4 A A R S

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

() (Continued)
AR i JE A
it J§ 2% w1 AR BRREENE  CRALER/GEMEA MR A EEEH
Percentage of
equity interest
Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business registered share capital the Company Principal activities

A (4)

Inditectly held: (Continued)

B A s B A RAR
Xiamen Ronglianjia Real Estate Co., Ltd.

il LA o 8 A PR A R

Foshan Xunmao Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

EMTEREXARARA
Xiamen Zhengliang Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MR ERTTESERRARAA

Nanjing Zhenro Jiangbin Investment Co., Ltd.

AR G5 B B A IR R+
Fuzhou Haiguangrong Real Estate Co., Ltd **

PR IE A B R B R A R ]
Nanjing Zhento Real Estate Co., Ltd.

RUBHERARA A+
Changsha Yueyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd.*

BRI 5 B A R R+

Suzhou Xinzhengmei Real Estate Co., Led #*

IS5 BERE (BRM) BB AR+

Zhenro Group Sunan (Suzhou) Investment
Co., Ltd.*

B/ R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

oo A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ B R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

oo A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

o /o A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

o /e e
PRC/Chinese Mainland

Gl I
PRC/Chinese Mainland

N #1,570,000,000 7C
RMB1,570,000,000

A K %500,000,000 7C
RMB500,000,000
A R 300,000,000 76

RMB300,000,000

N B 100,100,000 7
RMB100,100,000

A #500,000,000 7C
RMB500,000,000

N B 110,000,000 7
RMB110,000,000

A R 300,000,000 76
RMB300,000,000

N #350,000,0007C
RMB350,000,000

N B #105,265,000 C
RMB105,265,000

100%

100%

100%

100%

27%

100%

51%

34%

95%
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ESEE

Property development

B

Property development

Lk

Property development

UELLES

Property development

ELE

Property development

UELEE

Property development

ESEE

Property development

B

Property development

B L

Property development
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2023

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

1. »wAkEEEFR () 1.

A7 138 Bt 08 2 w1 0% BB (7))
A A E 2 4 A A R S

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

WM (4 (Continued)
A 7 A
Hif i 2 AL R R TR R A /4 Tip A = 3
Percentage of
equity interest
Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business registered share capital the Company Principal activities

114

MERE : (F)
Inditectly held: (Continued)

TLTE & IE 55 B B A IR ) B/ 7 B 1,000,000,000 78 100% %5 %

Jiangxi Zhenro Real Estate Development PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB1,000,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd.

MR EREREREARA A B/ B #2,500,000,000 78 100% Y% %

Nanjing Zhengkang Real Estate Development PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB2,500,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd.

B RCIE SR TR s o A PR W oo T AR H1,430,306,200 78 100% WX LHERE

Nanjing Zhenro Dexin Property Development PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB1,430,306,200 Property development
Co., Ltd. and property leasing

FREEEEREARAR B/ 7 R 1,380,000,0007C 100% )% %

Nanjing Zhengtong Real Estate Development PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB1,380,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd.

B ERE R RA WA A R/ A B #2,460,000,000 78 S1% MR

Nanjing Zhengye Real Estate Development PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB2,460,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd.*

R E B A R A s/ B 7 A B #900,000,000 U ESE

Nanjing Shansheng Property Development PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB900,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd.#*

RE (RN B ERBARAR « B/ 7 R 1470,000,000 7 70% %%

Rongju (Fuzhou) Investment Development PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB470,000,000 Property development

Co., Ltd.*

EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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A1 Bl Vi 2 ) B4 R )
A A E 2 4 A A R S

R ()

I 24

Subsidiaries

A (4)

Indirectly held: (Continued)
AR A R
Nanchang Jianmei Property Co., Ltd.**

AREEEEMBREARA A
Hefei Zhenghua Real Estate Development

Co., Ltd. *

EMmREEEARAA
Xiamen Rongzhu Real Estate Co., Ltd.

REEEERBRARA A
Wuhan Zhengchu Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

IE B (76 1) B 36 5 A IR 2 ]
Zhengrui (Fuging) Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

R CF8) BXERARAF

Zhengxin (Pingtan) Real Estate Development
Co., Led.

ERELWRERERARAR
Chongging Zhenghong Langyuan Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. *

RMEE BEARA ] =
Quanzhou Rongjin Real Estate Co., Led. **

\—

BATSERARMRE

Notes to Financial Statements

—p——

— L —

F+-A=+—H
31 December 2023

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL R R E R CEE R R A

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

B/ R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

ot /o ] A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ B R
PRC/Chinese Mainland
Gl

PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ B R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

o /o A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ B R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

Issued ordinary/

registered share capital

\ B 10,000,000 7
RMB10,000,000

N B 196,000,000 T
RMB196,000,000

N B 246,940,000 T
RMB246,940,000

A B 50,000,000 7C

RMB50,000,000

A B 50,000,000 7T
RMB50,000,000

AR 850,000,000 7
RMB50,000,000

N #175,000,000 78
RMB175,000,000

N B 150,000,000 G
RMB150,000,000

A2 w A

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

BHET 2 EEREH

Percentage of
equity interest

attributable to

the Company Principal activities

39% ¥

Property development

98% Y3 b

Property development

100% %5

Property development

100% 9% %

Property development

100% ¥ %5

Property development

100% ¥ %%

Property development

51% YR %

Property development

34% YR

Property development

—E-=FFR
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2023

o ) B 4 W& B )

A1 Bl Vi 2 ) B4R )

A A E 2 4 A A R S

R ()

I 24

Subsidiaries

A (4)

Indirectly held: (Continued)
RULEBEXARAA

Changsha Zhengze Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MR SRR B A R ]
Zhengzhou Xinronggui Real Estate Co., Ltd.*

SRR B A R R+
Quanzhou Ronghui Real Estate Co., Ltd.*

ST (RN BXERARA R
Rongsheng (Fuzhou) Real Estate Co., Ltd.

P RS 1 5 A A A R ) e

Nanjing Liangrongxin Property Development
Co., Ltd.**

NEIEAR G 7 P 3 A PR )

Lu’an Zhengyu Property Development Co., Led. **

EBTRECAEEARAA
Xiangyang Changfang Zhengchuang Real Estate

Co., Ltd.

M 5 2 7 B A R ¢
Chuzhou Hongzheng Real Estate Co., Ltd.*

TEBE (L) BEERARAA
Zhenglong (Foshan) Real Estate Co., Ltd.*

EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL R R E R CEE R R A

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

B/ R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

ot /o ] A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

ot /o A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

Gl I
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ B A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ B R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

Issued ordinary/

registered share capital

N B 800,000,000 7C
RMBS00,000,000

N B #3,000,000,000 70
RMB3,000,000,000

B 100,000,000 7C
RMB100,000,000

N #1,930,000,000 78
RMB1,930,000,000

B 480,000,000 7C
RMBA480,000,000

N E#150,000,000 7
RMB150,000,000

A B 50,000,000 7C
RMBS50,000,000

A B 50,000,000 7C

RMB50,000,000

N #305,145,000 78
RMB305, 145,000

A 7 Al
It 1 i e
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

98%

51%

100%

37%

35%

100%

51%

51%

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

FREH

Principal activities

ESEE

Property development

B

Property development

ELEE

Property development

B

Property development

ESEE

Property development

ELLE

Property development

LR

Property development

ELES

Property development

L LS

Property development
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Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2023

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

2 ) R A BE B ) 1.

A1 Bl Vi 2 ) B4 R )
A A E 2 4 A A R S

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:

() (Continued)
AR i JE A
it J§ 2% w1 AR BRREENE  CRALER/GEMEA MR A EEEH
Percentage of
equity interest
Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business registered share capital the Company Principal activities

MERE : (F)
Inditectly held: (Continued)

EREFEERRARLA s/ T \ R #100,000,000 76 100% Y5 %
Fuyang Ronghui Real Estate Development PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd.
HERBEREARA R B/ B 200,000,000 7 51% YIER%
Nanchang Ronglin Real Estate Co., Led.* PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB200,000,000 Property development
BN AR 2 7 S 7 A R0 ] s/ T R 500,000,000 7C 4% WERE
Guangzhou Fumao Property Development PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB500,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd.**
B A 68 I B TR ) e B/ 7 A B 294,118,000 78 34% YEME
Nanchang Rongming Property Development PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB294,118,000 Property development
Co., Ltd **
MR EXEXBRARAA oo B T A R 150,000,000 78 100% Y13 b 3%
Nanjing Zhengzi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000 Property development
RN AR B BB A R+ B/ 7 A\ 100,000,000 76 S1% MR
Zhengzhou Rongxi Real Estate Development PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd.*
A IS E BB A A /o AR 100,000,000 7C 100% ¥)3€ 6 %
Hefei Rongrui Property Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000 Property development
RN 2 B TR LA ¢ /o B 100,000,000 7 S1% ¥R
Zhengzhou Rongrui Real Estate Development PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd.*
“BCCFFR
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118

o ) B 4 W& B )

A1 Bl Vi 2 ) B4R )

A A E 2 4 A A R S

R ()

I 2+

Subsidiaries

A (4)

Inditectly held: (Continued)
ARREFHEREARR A

Hefei Rongjin Property Development Co., Ltd.

RS ERF A R B A RA A
Xiangyang Zhengyao Property Development
Co., Ltd.

I SR R B R IR
Zhenghuicheng Chengdu Real Estate Co., Ltd.

HRLEEERERARA A

Sugian Zhengxiang Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

W% IEGL S ERA RA A+
Xi'an Zhenghongfeng Real Estate Co., Led.*

B 2 IE 7 B A R ¢
Nanchang Zhuzheng Real Estate Development

Co., Led ¥

BN IE 7 5 o 7 8 A PR A R+

Suzhou Zhengguan Property Development
Co., Ltd.*

ZhenHui Starworld Limited
ZhenHui Starworld Limited

ZhenKai Gloryvictor Limited
ZhenKai Gloryvictor Limited

EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL R R TR R A

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

B/ R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

oo A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ B A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

el I
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ B R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

L/ R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ B A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

KRELHE
British Virgin Islands

ERELTES
British Virgin Islands

Issued ordinary/

registered share capital

B 100,000,000 7
RMB100,000,000

N B 50,000,000 70
RMBS50,000,000

A 30,000,000 7C
RMB30,000,000

B #1,850,000,000 7
RMBI,850,000,000

A #10,363,000 7
RMB10,363,000

N B 330,000,000 7

RMB330,000,000

B 500,000,000 78
RMB500,000,000

29,000,000 TG
US$$29,000,000

21,000,000 T
US$21,000,000

A 7 A
4 ipid:a
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

100%

97%

62%

51%
51%

100% (ff5%)

(note)

100% (Pt &%)

(note)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

FEREH

Principal activities

ESEE

Property development

B

Property development

LR

Property development

B LS

Property development

LR

Property development

ELES

Property development

UELE

Property development

Investment holding

Investment holding
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Subsidiaries

MH#ERH - (H)

Indirectly held: (Continued)

SOE (BRM) T3 A A A

Athong (Suzhou) Business Management Co., Ltd.

RMEREN S ERRARAA
Fuzhou Hengrui Huasheng Investment Development
Co., Ltd.

AR LB £ B B R A A
Fuzhou Kairui Investment Development
Co., Ltd.

10 CRE M) i A S0 PR
Li Chao (Suzhou) Commerce Management
Co., Led.

BB B R IR AR A
Minhou Shengrui Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MREREXRRARALA
Nanjing Zhengde Real Estate Development
Co., Led.

MR IE R BB AR A

Nanjing Zhengnai Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

\—

‘_/

BATSERARMRE

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2023

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL R R E R CEE R R A

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

B/ R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

ot /o ] A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

Gl R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ B A
PRC/Chinese Mainland
B/ R

PRC/Chinese Mainland

o /o R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

Issued ordinary/

registered share capital

N #39,216,000
RMB39,216,000

A\ #98,039,000 7

RMB98,039,000

N\ B 19,608,000 7T
RMB19,608,000

N E#$39,215,700 G
RMB39,215,700

A B ¥20,000,000 7
RMB20,000,000
N B 384,467,000 T

RMB384,467,000

A\ B ¥ 411,940,000 7T
RMB411,940,000

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

A 7 Al
It 1 i e
Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100% (Hft &)

(note)

100% (%)

(note)

100% (Fft &E)

(note)

100% (Mt )

(note)
1009 (Fff 3E)
(note)
100% (fff5¥)

(note)

100% (Bt &%)

(note)

“EC=FER
Annual Report 2023

FREH

Principal activities

ESEE

Property development

B

Property development

ELE

Property development

36 %

Property development

UELE

Property development

B

Property development

B

Property development

119



iR et

Notes to Financial Statements
—E A=+ —H

31 December 2023

1. 2w KEEER @

A1 Bl Vi 2 ) B4R )

A A E 2 4 A A R S
UGS ))

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

A 7 Al
Hif i 2 AL R R E R CEE R R A /4 Yip i = 3
Percentage of
equity interest
Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business registered share capital the Company Principal activities

A (4)

Indirectly held: (Continued)
MAEREXRERARAA

Nanjing Zhengsheng Real Estate Development

Co., Ltd.

MR LS ERBRARA A
Nanjing Zhengting Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

B (B TR A RA R

Qizhi (Suzhou) Commerce Management
Co., Ltd.

BT A E A R
Xiamen Ronglan Real Estate Co., Ltd.

LTI A A PR
Xiamen Ronglu Real Estate Co., Ltd.

TR IERE B A R A
Xuzhou Zhengcheng Real Estate Development
Co., Led.

RUEREREXHRAR
Changsha Zhengro Zhengjing Real Estate
Co., Ltd.

EH(EM) BEERARAR
Zhengkun (Guangzhou) Real Estate Development

Co., Ltd.

EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

B/ R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

Gl R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ B R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ B A
PRC/Chinese Mainland

/o A

PRC/Chinese Mainland

o /o R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

B/ B R
PRC/Chinese Mainland

N B 100,000,000 7C
RMB100,000,000

N B #196,078,400 T8
RMB196,078,400

\ B 20,000,000 7
RMB20,000,000

N R #824,285,700 7C
RMB824,285,700

B 50,000,000 76
RMBS50,000,000

B 100,000,000 7C

RMB100,000,000

B 10,000,000 7
RMB10,000,000

\ B 10,000,000 7
RMB10,000,000

100% (Hft &)

(note)

100% (Mt &)

(note)

100% (Pt &%)

(note)

100% (Hff )

(note)

100% (P &%)

(note)
100% (fff5¥)

(note)

100% (Bt &%)

(note)

100% (ff5%)

(note)

ESEE

Property development

ELLE

Property development

B

Property development

3 b

Property development

UELE

Property development

B

Property development

B

Property development

B

Property development
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2023

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out below:
(Continued)

AR i JE A
it J§ 2% w1 AR BRREENE  CRALER/GEMEA MR A EEEH
Percentage of
equity interest
Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business registered share capital the Company Principal activities

MERE : (F)
Inditectly held: (Continued)

EE (BN EXRRERAF s/ T AR H10,0000007  100% (HERE) 3 %

Zhengxin (Guangzhou) Real Estate Development ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 (note) Property development
Co., Ltd.

o (M) 4 A R R B/ AR¥EL0000007C 1009 (H3E) H3ER%

Zhongkun (Suzhou) Enterprise Management PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB1,000,000 (note) Property development

Co., Ltd.

B A b B RE A 4 B A R G B
344 M TG | AR S )R R i A OK
EIE SV FARL I
> T RS 4 OE U3 A4 A o b
SO R I B A T B A Rk
MmEXBAERLF -

E R H Ty #E G R HAEE EA
A EERR SO A 4 W R
EEWMBALFME AR - HE
8 J A )t H At B 2 R R
FLEBRITE -

The English names of all group companies registered in the PRC
represent the best efforts made by the management of the Company
to translate the Chinese names of these companies as they do not have
official English names. The legal form of all the above disclosed
principal subsidiaries are limited liability companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

Annuolzliiozr:zfgjﬁ —I 2 —‘



iR et

Notes to Financial Statements
—E A=+ —H

31 December 2023

12

2 ) R A BE B )

T RV 2 ] B R o)
b 3

RoFCSE LT AS A R
1 B 22 ) 0 I 4 e T
i HE 24 1 A B <

ZhenHui Starworld Limited
ZhenKai Gloryvictor Limited

3 (BRI 7 B A R A A
i JH L Ji 3 45 8 R A KR A
e JH S Fs 50 R A R A
J i (k) 7 2E A A BR A A
I % o i 3R R A PR W
M IR B R A R A A
MR EREEERARAA
PAIE A EERRARA A
PR IET EERRARA A
REEL (R T £ B A IR A A
&2 P T A A R W

J& 1 T A B S PR D
RN IE 38 R R A R A A
RUWIEREREERRA A
IE 3 (BN B 258 A R A W
EZE (M) BB RA R A
frhv 3w (R ) 4 3658 P BR A A

AR b At 22 B o AN SR A AT A
AR A R A B 3% [ A (R
2 R i A R PR -

EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Note:

The Group legally transferred the equity interests in the following subsidiaries

collateral to trust financing companies as at 31 December 2023.

ZhenHui Starworld Limited
ZhenKai Gloryvictor Limited
Aihong (Suzhou) Business Management Co., Ltd.

Fuzhou Hengrui Huasheng Investment Development Co., Ltd.

Fuzhou Kairui Investment Development Co., Ltd.

Li Chao (Suzhou) Commerce Management Co., Ltd.
Minhou Shengrui Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
Nanjing Zhengde Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
Nanjing ZhengNai Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
Nanjing Zhengsheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
Nanjing Zhengting Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
Qizhi (Suzhou) Commerce Management Co., Ltd.

Xiamen Ronglan Real Estate Co., Ltd.

Xiamen Ronglu Real Estate Co., Ltd.

Xuzhou Zhengcheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
Changsha Zhengro Zhengjing Real Estate Co., Ltd.
Zhengkun (Guangzhou) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
Zhengxin (Guangzhou) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
Zhongkun (Suzhou) Enterprise Management Co., Ltd.

/[ N S
+ZA=Z+—HM®
B RE £ H 4 b

Percentage of equity
pledged as at
31 December 2023

49%
49%
99%
49%
100%
49%
70%
49%
39%
42%
49%
49%
100%
49%
14%
67%
49%
49%
99%

Under the aforementioned arrangements, the Group was obliged to purchase the

related equity interests at a fixed amount on a future date upon repayment of the

borrowings from the trust financing companies.
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Notes to Financial Statements
—— =4
31 December 2023

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

In addition, the Group retains the power to control these companies in the ordinary
course of business by confirmation from the legal equity holder of each company (i.e.,
the trust financing company). In this regard, considering the facts that the substance
of the arrangements is to collateralise some equity interests in these subsidiaries for the
borrowings for project development and the Group retains the practical ability to
govern the financial and operating policies of these project companies so as to obtain
benefits from the operating activities of these project companies, the directors of the
Company are of the view that the financial position and operating results of these

companies should be consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

* These companies are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the

Company’s control over them.

gt The Group was granted more than a majority of voting rights in the
shareholders’ meeting according to the contractual arrangements with the other
shareholders of the subsidiaries, and the articles of associates of the subsidiaries,
which gives the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
these companies. Accordingly, the Group has control over these companies

which are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which
include International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
interpretations) approved by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except when otherwise indicated.

“EC=FER
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Notes to Financial Statements
SRS St

31 December 2023

2.1 SR AU ) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

i R AL e

AEFBE T _=HF+-H=
T — H Ik EAFER AR
#59,485,562,000 70 » & T &K T =
E+A=+—H>-OAEBMW
R EEEBREE AR
4,813,176,0007C 5 G4 2 H 1y 5t &
SRAT R HoMh (& 3k - B R A F
5~ KBEEREH K EE L
W A B N R ¥61,863,490,000
Joo H o AR H54,603,520,000 TG
i N S 5= N JE2 352 K =
HAl&kBlaSEYH AR
1,716,960,000 JG 5 (iii) A4S £ [H] 1 R 4%
TH € o H R A TE e R
B A& B A A R #12,763,266,000
o6 K T B B AR AR A
R % 1,824,355,0007C > 3 A R
13,377,932,000 7C [ 75 T JE S 45 72
A9 5 Gy AR ¥ TH E R K H
B 7% 5B R AT B LAt £ B A &
4w A R %9,459,284,000 7C - A E
N B ¥ 6,684,544,000 7€ 1 #5 T = 4
TR SR AT B o th £5 R ZH e R
B oAEERBHERR -
Mt — A BN A S AR A
[ 5 1,187,772,000 7C 5 K (vi) A4S £E [H]
KAEHEREKEEABHROARLAN
K ¥ 1,610,788,000 JC °

"‘ 2 4 Rt EEEARAE

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Going concern basis

The Group recorded a net loss of RMB9,485,562,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2023. As at 31 December 2023, (i) the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by RMB4,813,176,000;
(ii) the Group’s total interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
senior notes, corporate bonds, perpetual capital securities and asset-
backed securities amounted to RMB61,863,490,000, out of which
RMB54,603,520,000 will be due for repayment within the next
twelve months, while its cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB1,716,960,000; (iii) the Group had not repaid an aggregate
amount of principal and interest of RMB12,763,266,000 for certain
senior notes and an aggregate amount of interest amounting to
RMBI1,824,355,000 for certain senior notes according to their
scheduled repayment dates, triggering events of default for certain
senior notes amounting to RMB13,377,932,000; (iv) an aggregate
amount of principal of RMB9,459,284,000 for interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings had not been repaid according to their
scheduled repayment dates, triggering certain long-term interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings amounting to
RMB6,684,544,000 becoming repayable on demand; (v) the Group
failed to repay the principal and interest amounting to
RMB1,187,772,000 for a corporate bond due in November 2022;
and (vi) the Group failed to repay the principal and interest
amounting to RMB1,610,788,000 for the perpetual capital

securities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

e
31 December 2023

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The above conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties

which cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as a

going concern. In view of such circumstances, the directors of the

Company have undertaken a number of plans and measures to

improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, including:

(a)

The Group has been actively working with its legal advisor and
financial advisers on its offshore holistic liability management
solutions, in order to achieve a long-term sustainable capital
structure, resolve its liquidity issue and stabilise the Group’s
operations, taking into account the interests of all its
stakeholders.

The Group has achieved significant progress on the offshore
holistic liability management solutions. The Company entered
into a restructuring term sheet and restructuring support
agreement (“RSA”) with the AHG members (an ad hoc group
of holders of the existing debt as constituted from time to time
who are advised by the AHG advisors) on 1 November 2023
and 2 January 2024, respectively. Participating creditors
holding over 79% of the existing offshore debts acceded to the
RSA by 5:00 p.m. Hong Kong time on 24 January 2024.
Furthermore, the convening hearing in respect of the proposed
restructuring scheme (“Scheme”) is scheduled to be heard
before the High Court of Hong Kong on 2 May 2024.

“EC=FER
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31 December 2023

2.1 Hi W FEHE )
BRI )

12

(b)

(c)

(d

AL -HHEBAERAR
T S A8 2 4 T i RO B B AR
BT o A 4R B ST R R T
FH B ST B A fis K A 3K
5 ] o SR o AT IR AE ) Y fE R
RGN WN:E - iR ]

FHE -

A 45 E O =R At B fE R A
T & & 7 OB R RO
o il tn> #& £ = F = =
£+ _HAH=+—H> &%
I i N
A R %186,288,0007C - A B
M 142,082,000 K& AN RO
1,036,620,000 JG [ & 7 32 #F 7%
FHHEI A oA TR s —F
TONENLH Y E NET
— AR - F NAENA S &
ALK AR S HE RS N
& #1,000,000,000 7€ ([ IE % {#&
FviL)) ~ A B %1,000,000,000
Jo ([ IE % & Hvarl) & AR
#1,320,000,000 G ([ 1E 28 & %
IX ) B2 |4 5 09 8 8 A 4
AlERE L4 —H -
CECEFEZAR F N
AE— H o A A BERE R A 4% AR
B E T -

A —H 2 K S A
W DA BB A 15 ORT RO
bR A A A > DA fR O TE
Y)2ETE B 134T

A 4 ) S A A = oK H A AR
T g KR R DR
HBARETED R RRE
BEREARSCRMEES -

Rt EEEARAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

(b)

(©)

(d

The Group has been actively negotiating with existing lenders
on the extension for repayments of certain borrowings. The
Group may be able to extend the payment schedule for certain
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. Nevertheless, the
confirmation of such extension is subject to the final approval

from the lenders.

The Group has achieved considerable success in securing
extensions for repayments of certain borrowings. For example,
as of 31 December, 2023, the Group successfully extended the
maturity date of asset-backed securities of the aggregate
outstanding amounts of RMB186,288,000, RMB142,082,000
and RMB1,036,620,000 to September 2026, November 2026
and April 2024, respectively, and the Group successfully
extended the maturity date of corporate bonds of the aggregate
principal amounts of RMB1,000,000,000 (“Zhenro Bond
VII”), RMB1,000,000,000 (“Zhenro Bond VIII”), and
RMB1,320,000,000 (“Zhenro Bond IX”) to January 2027,
March 2027 and January 2028, respectively, alleviating the

pressure on liquidity within a reasonable timeframe.

The Group has been actively negotiating with several financial
institutions to obtain new loans at a reasonable cost for

ensuring delivery of its property projects under development.

The Group will continue to seek for other alternative financing
and borrowings to finance the settlement of its existing
financial obligations and future operating and capital

expenditures.
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Notes to Financial Statements
—— =4
31 December 2023

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

() The Group has prepared a business strategy plan mainly

focusing on the acceleration of the sales of properties.

() The Group has implemented measures to speed up the
collection of outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control

costs and expenses.

(g) The Group will continue to seek suitable opportunities to
dispose of its equity interests in certain project development

companies in order to generate additional cash inflows.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections
prepared by management, which cover a period of not less than
twelve months from 31 December 2023. They are of the opinion
that, taking into account the above-mentioned plans and measures,
the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within twelve months from 31 December 2023. Accordingly,
the directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the

consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as to
whether the Group is able to achieve its plans and measures as
described above. Whether the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern would depend upon the following:

(@)  successfully completing the holistic restructuring of its offshore

indebtedness;
(b) successfully negotiating with the Group’s existing lenders for
the renewal or extension for repayment of the Group’s interest-

bearing bank and other borrowings;

(c)  successfully securing project development loans for qualified

project development in a timely manner;

(d) successfully obtaining additional new sources of financing as

and when needed;

Annuolzliiifiﬁjz —I 2 7
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2.1 SR Rt U ) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

i #0848 o AL e ()
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BB B EE KRB ALK -
S R R B IGOR R AR S RS i
KB

A OF 3k 4
HEEA MM EAT AN A K
HB g N F (FEAR A T AE M) =
—E =+ _A=+—HILEF
FEW RS R 3% o BB A W A R AR
) L BT E 0 R (G A
HMEEE EAEHAHZHTE
G 2E W T 15 10 77 B (9] )R 98 JE
B B 2 A HE A DA K g 5 R B
B G HE 7 (B A 4 4 R T B
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1 BE A7 M R ) 5 28 5% 5 i Re o B
B A5 2 il A -

"‘ 2 8 EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Going concern basis (Continued)

(e) successfully carrying out the Group’s business strategy plan

including the acceleration of the sales of properties;

(f)  successfully implementing measures to speed up the collection
of the outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control costs

and expenses; and

(g) successfully disposing of the Group’s equity interests in certain

project development companies when suitable.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the above-mentioned plans
and measures and operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the carrying values of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected

in the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of

the investee).
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continned)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(¢) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated

until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continned)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the
related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-controlling
interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair
value of any investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or

liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time

for the current year’s financial statements.

P A 25 0 R R B R R RN B Y 9 B

B A S 298 B R T
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2
P & st e RIS 8 98 B FT
Amendments to IAS 8
B & E RIS 1298 B 5T
Amendments to TAS 12
P g wt UE RIS 12 98 B9 R T
Amendments to IAS 12

"‘ 3 EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

& 71 A Y E 7
Definition of Accounting Estimates

Bl B — 35 5 A A 2 B R P I Y A A B IR

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
5[5 B 5 A — S L A AR
International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

Zd
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31 December 2023

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

Amendments to IAS 1 require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory guidance on
how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. The Group has disclosed the material accounting
policy information in note 2 to the financial statements. The
amendments did not have any impact on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the Group’s

financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. Since the Group’s approach and policy align with the
amendments, the amendments had no impact on the Group’s

financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(0

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow the scope of
the initial recognition exception in IAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required
to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient
taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for

temporary differences arising from these transactions.

The Group early applied the amendments on temporary
differences related to leases. Upon initial application of these
amendments, the Group recognised (i) a deferred tax asset for
all deductible temporary differences associated with lease
liabilities (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available),
and (ii) a deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary
differences associated with right-of-use assets, with cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the balances of retained
profits and non-controlling interests at that date. The
amendments did not have any significant impact on the

Group’s financial statements.
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31 December 2023

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(d)

Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary exception from
the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules published by the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development.
The amendments also introduce disclosure requirements for the
affected entities to help users of the financial statements better
understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income taxes,
including the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar Two
income taxes separately in the periods when Pillar Two
legislation is effective and the disclosure of known or reasonably
estimable information of their exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes in periods in which the legislation is enacted or
substantively enacted but not yet in effect. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively. Since the Group did
not fall within the scope of the Pillar Two model rules, the

amendments did not have any impact to the Group.
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23 A MEA A B BB 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

BA 5 e o e INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS
7 45 E R A 5% A B IR R A HE The Group has not applied the following revised IFRSs, that have
FH R 21 B A M H R A 3R BB ET been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.
[ F 5 s v R o AN 4B ] R BN 5% The Group intends to apply these revised IFRSs, if applicable, when
SRS HT I R B TS A e R (G they become effective.
F) A 20 R % 5 KRB AT 1B R
75 i i HE A o
W T 75 o5 Y JU) 5 10 9E B IR B g wH YR U] AR B BEHC B O R B G A S 9 B B BT B
5 28 BRI 1B 7T
Amendments to IFRS 10 and TAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture’
1B % B 5 e o B 5F 16 5 R A AT B 1 (7] o g & A
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback'
B [ g wEE B2 SR B R B (57 HH 2% 0 B 5 T B ([ = F ZFEAFAERT))!
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”)"
P g it v R AR 1 9 R B RT Wt 224 09 FF I B A e ([ —F = A ERT )
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)"
B % B it YE R 55 7 5% S I R B e YE R AU o A B
7R TT

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements'
B % wEUE R AR 21 BT BT Bt Z AJ gh >
Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’
L WoEE—H—HEZ & ! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

i FY A BE A ] A
2 W oE - HFE—H—HBEZEM ? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

b6 ) 47 J5E 0 ] A= &%
’ o S i AR s H > AT ) ik 2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

R 4R
TE A % 8 B A 4R B 2 % A IR Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
B s 45 e I 2 o — A R AR Al applicable to the Group is described below.
R e

"‘ 3 4 EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain
or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the

Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-lessee
uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback
transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount
of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale and
leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application
of IFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on

the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current, including what is meant by a
right to defer settlement and that a right to defer must exist at the
end of the reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected
by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled
in its own equity instruments, and that only if a conversion option in
a convertible liability is itself accounted for as an equity instrument
would the terms of a liability not impact its classification. The 2022
Amendments further clarify that, among covenants of a liability
arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity
must comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification
of that liability as current or non-current. Additional disclosures are
required for non-current liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the
reporting period. The amendments shall be applied retrospectively
with early application permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the 2022
Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the amendments and whether existing loan agreements
may require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the

Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 clarify the characteristics of
supplier finance arrangements and require additional disclosure of
such arrangements. The disclosure requirements in the amendments
are intended to assist users of financial statements in understanding
the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities,
cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier application of the
amendments is permitted. The amendments provide certain
transition reliefs regarding comparative information, quantitative
information as at the beginning of the annual reporting period and
interim disclosures. The amendments are not expected to have any

significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continned)

Amendments to IAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess whether a
currency is exchangeable into another currency and how it shall
estimate a spot exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require disclosures of
information that enable users of financial statements to understand
the impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application
is permitted. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot
restate comparative information. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits or to the cumulative amount of
translation differences accumulated in a separate component of
equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial application. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the

Group’s financial statements.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it has significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the

investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent

of the parties sharing control.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share of
the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures is included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or
joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in

associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is

recognised in profit or loss.
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24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the

separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any

resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Annuolzliiifiﬁjz —I 3 Q



SRR

Notes to Financial Statements
SRS St

31 December 2023

24

14

Ok # t BOR 0
GO KR )

T B ) AP 5 AR wHE > B AR
A0 IR 2 BB 4 SR O A A
£ 1 5 AT RR ARG B0 O BB AR HE
gt B AT AT 2% P (E 2 A0 BT Ui
Ak R K BT R IS ARG AR
g3 o i 5% AUE K H At I B 2 AR
I AL Bl T BN T A B 2
TE 5 Al 42 7 18 2 70 e B2 2% 4T {8 ik
i i i o

) 46 T RRAR > R R AR AT AT R
al I (B G F TR o p R AR AT
(B B > it 3 1V O 4 B 3k W
% Th L W BE (L - P ZEEE AT S 3K
ARl - AEEMBFER T A=+
— H 37 R AT BUE B o wBE
BB & > A S5 OF IR WS 1Y 7
B H W B R o T TE
it & B oh [7] 208 52 38 2 A 46 B &%
HeEtBEasBeEEmaua
Sl o T A i A 4 T 2 A E B
B2 15 Bl o) BiC % 5% 55 B 0L ol B 7
HLH o

T80 {E ) %8 A ¥ Al BEL R A B A B
SRR (B A A AR B
W W (o] 4 AR T AR AE o i B 4 EE AR R
fir (B < 2 A B2 A7) A9 T ol [l
AR A AR (> B A SR (E S 1R -
7 BT e DR BE R 1R R
AR 0 ] A [ o

i R B o) C 2 R B 4 A AR B
(BG4 2 A B A A A - AT % LA
A Y R o S B A - B B 2K
B A B B I Y R E R iR
Y 18 I E A R SE B O MR T (H - 7
G S DT B R B0 R R B
EEBHMEEELRENE £
[oa S RDA i A

Rt EEEARAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

NS}
AN

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continned)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain

on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the

Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment

loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative financial
instruments and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment properties), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in
use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.



2.4 K& EHBUR )

Ik & it B B AR (40)

M 7 5 4 2 3 00 0
{25 e E 0 T (R0 — 46 4 Bl
i 45 £ B — B0 3 o 5 DL Al
e A ES YN Y L
SR> H3E A B4 B B4
A -

18 7E 6 7 AR T (E R R EL T i [
BAE UL T - 77 & RS B H -
Al A5 R IR 5 il R A B & U
T R] ST (R IRE (% R R
SE JEL B B BL IR T 3 Wl B9 B A R
B B2 B o I (E s 1R 1% B
% 90 (¥ E T HE AR A 14 BR SRR
T FLEE A TR 4R i AT BR

TP A% i R - & iR T A B 5
71 51 il T fE R B8l (E R 48 T RE A
FEAFTE BA] BE 3 A 5P A o A
7 AE L A5 BF 5 - S & il ml i ]
B o H T DL E B E (T ER AN
T W [ < R A A A S T B Bt
Ie] 5 i 9 % L E A R A B (E RS 4H
{EL 458 (5] <5 B AN Fi 8 2 e R A8 1 4F
JEE Sl 406 i % A R K (E s 1R T
JE i S B B T (411 BR AT A7) 37 8%,
HEG) o W (E i 18 B T RE A CHE
A R AR

N
N— B HRENE

Notes to Financial Statements
—— =4
31 December 2023

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-

generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the

impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is

credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family

and that person:

(1)

(i1)

(ii1)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(1)

(i1)

(ii1)

(iv)

)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the

Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with

specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 B K EHER 4 2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful

lives and the annual depreciation rates are as follows:

fili it W B 45 3 AT B R

Annual

Estimated depreciation

useful lives rates

M Buildings 204 5%
20 years 5%

g )y 5 Motor vehicles 43 54 19% 2 24%
4 to 5 years 19% to 24%

WK L ETEE Office equipment and electronic devices 3R SAE 19% %£32%
3 to 5 years 19% to 32%

EN=CES X Leasehold improvements 3E QAR 12.5% %2 33%
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3to 8years 12.5% to33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year

end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
uture economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. An
fut benefit ted f; t d 1. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
etween the net sales proceeds an e carrying amount of the
bet th t sales p d d th ying t of th

relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate category of

property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
right-of-use assets) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at

the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in

which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year

of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If
a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Right-
of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to the date
of change in use, and any difference at that date between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference between the fair
value of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 K5 BUOR 2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after

completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs directly attributable to such
properties incurred during the development period and net realisable

value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
those will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties
held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated in the statement of
financial position at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined by an apportionment of the total costs of land and
buildings attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value
takes into account the price ultimately expected to be realised, less
estimated costs to be incurred in selling the properties.

Allocation of property development costs

Land costs are allocated to each unit according to their respective
saleable gross floor area (“GFA”) to the total saleable GFA.
Construction costs relating to units were identified and allocated
specifically. Common construction costs have been allocated
according to the saleable GFA similar to land costs.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period

of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying

assets.

(a)  Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. When the
right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold land held as
inventories, they are subsequently measured at the lower of cost
and net realisable value in accordance with the Group’s policies
for “properties under development” and “completed properties
held for sale”. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

20 £ 404F
20 to 40 years
2E S

2 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated

useful life of the asset.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continned)

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold
land held as inventories, they are subsequently measured at the
lower of cost and net realisable value in accordance with the
Group’s policy for “properties under development” or “completed
properties held for sale”. When a right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property, it is included in investment
properties. The corresponding right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, and subsequently measured at fair value, in

accordance with the Group’s policy for “investment properties”.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.



2.4 HRKGEHBR @
M )
A S [ AR A AR AN ()

(b)

©

& A 65 (4)
T wE A B A KRG B (E B
Hi AL A B BE A A R R A
o e WA B R E
BH o O3 5 ORI
oG A% HERMH
AL R B A B BB T
0 B BRI R AL A 3RO ek
oo BLAL > WA A B~ AH I A
A~ FHE A K B (1) 4n 4 %
B A < 5 i 4 BOR A ] AT
X)) B AR B
TG EE HEAMN
R TH (B A 3BT Rt o

R AL A & E
HE

A 45 1 2 30 AR R AR R
JE A L B B BT K b O B
AL (B0 B B4R H R
FEAE M+ @ AU B
ARG EEHEREENAE) -
LT 6 AR R (O AR Y T
[ I N A I
(B9 I 2 5% A % 2 e A BB
HE -

A S 1 IR 8 (B WD L
BRI EE R TERZHEMAR
B eI AR T AL o dE
BEREHEEEEHENHE
A5 kA R T AR O e AR
B

QQ:;
N— [ E s e
Notes to Financial Statements

—E =4 HE
31 December 2023

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of

an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of motor vehicles and office equipment
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases of
low-value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an

operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the

period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as

finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive

income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for

“Revenue recognition” below.



P8 S At & bR E ()

W) U e R T & (4)

2y (8 4 Rl R R B A B
T {H 5 HoAth & Tk 2 HE AT
Kete s HFEELEMELE A4
T Al v A 4 ) L (T S0BE 2 32 A1 A
ERAMBDHBERE - BERE
S I #0534 AR 4 KRB 4
Bl & FE > R 2R A ] - By
N PEFT A B B NG E o

SR B R B A A E Y S B K
T i A5 P RC 6 A FE DLEE AR
B Ui o SEH A E BB
EERAKRESHBRERE  BE
<& il B A o 1% B R A
ot B & RE R B R
AEmMEEDBNEHBR SR E
Wy SEBAEA R A > T % AP E
A At 4 T U AR o B e R B &
Bl R B E A DS A B
SRR E N EBEEANES -
A AR Bk B A kA &
fil S E P (E RE B AR 2 R

B B S R — B T R
BRI SR N B D <y
FER S RMEER S H (AL
7R kR 6 A ) wERR

1% 5 &
G RlE Y 1R 4 S B B R H
MR

HEHE 9 B K Gt A g i (f
HILR)

2 5 A F R 6 R A R
BT E BE A Ak SR AT T R
{6 - & & # LR - 1B BUsE
5 - i g A i RS 4R A o T AR

N
N— BRI

Notes to Financial Statements
—— =4
31 December 2023

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified

and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date

that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains

and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the

asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 K& 5FBUR @ 2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
P& K Il 4 Bl & E () Investments and other financial assets (Continned)
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Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair

value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on the equity
investments are also recognised as other income in the statement of

profit or loss when the right of payment has been established.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial

position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

J the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects

the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that

the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit

enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information. The Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30

days past due.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering

the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which

apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured

at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-

looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component
and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to
adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
and payables at amortised cost or as derivatives designated as hedging

instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities primarily include trade and bills
payables, other payables, amounts due to the related companies,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes and

corporate bonds.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other payables, and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, interest-bearing
borrowings, and payables (including payables under asset-backed
securities) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is

included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set
out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income

recognised.
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24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Corporate bonds

Corporate bonds issued by the Company that contain both liability
and early redemption option (which is not closely related to the host
contract) are classified separately on initial recognition. At the date
of issue, both the liability and early redemption option components
are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the corporate bonds are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The early redemption option is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the corporate
bonds are allocated to the liability and early redemption option
components in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction
costs relating to the early redemption option are charged to profit or
loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the periods of the corporate bonds using
the effective interest method.

Senior notes

Senior notes issued by the Company that contain both liability and
early redemption option (which is not closely related to the host
contract) are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. At the date of issue, both the liability and early

redemption option components are recognised at fair value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the senior notes is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
early redemption option is measured at fair value with changes in fair

value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the senior notes are
allocated to the liability and early redemption option components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to
the early redemption option are charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over the

period of the senior notes using the effective interest method.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Perpetual capital securities

Perpetual capital securities with obligation to repay principal or to
pay any distribution are classified as part of liabilities. In subsequent
periods, the perpetual capital securities are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Transaction costs relating to the
perpetual capital securities are included in the carrying amount of
the liability and amortised over the periods of the perpetual capital

securities using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss .

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle

the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly liquid
deposits with a maturity of generally within three months that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of

meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term
deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on

demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any

reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the

statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit

or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the

Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

U when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and

deductible temporary differences; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

J when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences;

and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax

liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are

expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit or
loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced

depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sales of properties and services provided in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of

taxes.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of properties

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the purchaser. Depending on the terms of the contract
and the laws that apply to the contract, control of the asset may
transfer over time or at a point in time. Control of the asset is

transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

J provides benefits which are received and consumed

simultaneously by the purchaser; or

o creates and enhances an asset that the purchaser controls as the
Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the purchaser obtains

control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of the performance obligation that best depict the
Group’s performance in satisfying the performance obligation.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effect of a financing component if it

is significant.

For property development and sales contracts for which the control of
the property is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised
when the purchaser obtains the physical possession or the legal title
of the completed property and the Group has a present right to

payment and the collection of the consideration is probable.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on

delivery of the goods.

Management consulting services

Management consulting service income derived from the provision of
support services in connection with development of property projects
is recognised when the relevant services are rendered and the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided

by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying

amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the

Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,

transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).
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24 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a
contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the

following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance

obligations in the future.
(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract cost assets are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Chinese
Mainland are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with

the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.4 R EFEEOR ) 2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends

are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Group’s presentation currency. The functional currency of the
Company is the Hong Kong dollar while RMB is used as the
presentation currency of the financial statements of the Company for
the purpose of aligning with the presentation currency of the Group.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised

in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or

loss, respectively).
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cContinued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for

each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of

the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve, except to the extent that the differences are attributable to
non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that particular foreign

operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of

the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

Perpetual capital securities

Perpetual capital securities with no contracted obligation to repay
their principal or to pay any distribution are classified as part of
equity. Perpetual capital securities with obligation to repay principal

or to pay any distribution are classified as part of liabilities.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected

in the future.

Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, apart
from those involving estimations, management has prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that the Group
will be able to operate as a going concern in the coming year, which
is a critical judgement that has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements. The
assessment of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgement by the directors of the Company, at a particular point of
time, about the future outcome of events or conditions which are
inherently uncertain. The directors consider that the Group has the
capability to continue as a going concern and the major events or
conditions, which may give rise to business risks, that may
individually or collectively cast a significant doubt upon the going

concern assumption are set out in note 2.1 to the financial statements.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements:
Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such
as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of
the commercial property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments not amounting to substantially all the fair value of the
commercial property, that it retains substantially all the significant
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties which

are leased out and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease.
That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After
the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its
control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option
to renew or to terminate the lease (e.g., construction of significant
leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased

asset).

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately
or leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an
individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services are

so significant that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

described below.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for properties under development and completed properties
held for sale

The Group’s properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Based on the Group’s historical experience and the nature of the
subject properties, the Group makes estimates of the selling prices,
the costs of completion of properties under development, and the
costs to be incurred in selling the properties based on prevailing

market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net sales
value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may result in a
provision for properties under development and completed properties
held for sale. Such provision requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, the carrying value and provision for the properties in the
periods in which such estimate is changed will be adjusted
accordingly.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables, other

receivables and deposits and due from related parties

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits and due from related
parties. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
customer type and rating). The provision rates are based on
profitability of default and the loss given default for other receivables
and deposits, and amounts due from related parties.

The expected loss rate is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the properties
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables, other

receivables and deposits and due from related parties (Continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits and due from related companies is disclosed
in notes 23, 24 and 40 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC. As a
result of the fact that certain matters relating to the income taxes
have not been confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimation
and judgement based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and
other related policies are required in determining the provision for
income taxes to be made. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will impact on the income tax and tax provisions in the

period in which the differences realise.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is
based on management’s best estimates according to the
understanding of the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the
determination by the tax authorities upon the completion of the
property development projects. The Group has not finalised its LAT
calculation and payments with the tax authorities for all its property
development projects. The final outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and any differences will impact
on the LAT expenses and the related provision in the period in which

the differences realise.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of sources,

including:

(a) current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those

differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since

the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(¢) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (when possible) by external evidence
such as current market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount

and timing of the cash flows.

At 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of investment properties
was RMBS8,006,900,000 (2022: RMBS8,627,400,000). Further
details, including the key assumptions used for fair value

measurement, are given in note 14 to the financial statements.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the
end of each reporting period. These non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those

cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable

profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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Zhenro Properties Group Limited

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of the Group’s business
which includes property development and leasing and commercial
property management by project locations for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment,
while no single location’s revenue, net profit or total assets exceed
10% of the Group’s consolidated revenue, net profit or total assets,
respectively. As the economic characteristics are similar in all the
locations, where the nature of property development and leasing and
management are similar, and the nature of the aforementioned
business processes, the type or class of customer for the
aforementioned business and the methods used to distribute the
properties or provide the services are also similar, all locations were

aggregated as one reportable operating segment.

Geographical information

No geographical information is presented as the Group’s revenue
from the external customers is derived solely from its operation in
Chinese Mainland and no non-current assets of the Group are located
outside Chinese Mainland.

Information about major customers

No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under common
control accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023.
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W2 H e A ¥ 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,

fix > F At P 52

OTHER EXPENSES

Bt 14 AT AN An analysis of revenue is as follows:
“RI=4 S
2023 2022
AR ¥ Tz AR WET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
IR 4 Revenue
KT E A 5 Revenue from contracts with customers 38,697,406 25,805,465
A< 1 A A I 1 4L 7 Revenue from other sources
REZEYELEHEN Gross rental income from investment
Tt A SLHE - property operating leases:
T RKIH > A4 [ E 3OH Lease payments, including fixed
payments 77,529 90,013
By Total 38,774,935 25,895,478
%P a8 Revenue from contracts with customers
G)  rE s ER (i) Disaggregated revenue information
—EFC=R S
2023 2022
A R ¥ T AR ¥ T
RMB’000 RMB’000
5 ek IR B A Types of goods or services
SHEY) 2 Sale of properties 38,648,331 25,707,613
HEBY Sale of goods 6,224 12,287
&P Al IR RS Management consulting services 42,851 85,565
i Total 38,697,406 25,805,465
W % W W2 I ] Timing of revenue recognition:
Y Bt — Wy [#] B Properties or goods transferred at a point
L2 in time 38,654,555 25,719,900
AR 755 i FR ] i RS Services transferred over time 42,851 85,565
i Total 38,697,406 25,805,465
S
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,
OTHER EXPENSES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

@

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised
in the current reporting period that were included in the

contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and

AT A e 5 B i £ 4 A recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previous
periods:
R =R e S
2023 2022
AR ¥% T ANR¥ T
RMB’000 RMB’000
A SO AER Revenue recognised that was included in
e R i 4 contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period:
SHE Y 2 Sales of properties 36,074,192 22,636,501
FH 4 Rental 9,821 9,749
Mt Total 36,084,013 22,646,250
JB# EAL (i)  Performance obligations
A AL E & EAL W E R Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
BEZE 4R T summarised below:
5B Y % Sale of properties

MY EME AT A%
M 7 AR W P A R
B3R T 3 35 € B A 1 IR
A W A B R 2 R R R A A
S o

HERY
B B iR R B
il HE B RS 2 % 5 Iy (R B9 52
T & F ZRE) s X5
A% A B 5 Wb o T BB
B AT -

EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

For property sales contracts, the Group recognises revenue
equal to the contract amount when the purchaser obtains the
physical possession or the legal title of the completed property.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred to the customer, being at the point the
goods are delivered to the customer. Payment of the transaction
price is due immediately at the point the customer has accepted

the materials.
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G B o K HB A B EE R B
A Al 4[5 2 B BR o 38 A Al
T b w0 TR 5 45 49 B0 391 PR — %
FEE B E T O A
T 5 A S IR R T O

Rt-A=+—H %5HE
A 5 B A0 T =5 R B B 40 FUAT
(R 28 JL SR A R O T

&J/
\\_// BHISSRRMIET

Notes to Financial Statements
—— =4
31 December 2023

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,
OTHER EXPENSES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations (Continued)

Management consulting services

For management consulting services, the Group recognises
revenue in the amount that equals to the right to invoice which
corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the
Group’s performance to date. The majority of the management
consulting service contracts do not have a fixed term. The term
of the contracts for pre-delivery and consulting services is
generally set to expire when the counterparties notify the

Group that the services are no longer required.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
petformance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as

at 31 December are as follows:

2023 2022
AR ¥ T ANR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000

T S0 1% Tl R % WAL A < A Amounts expected to be recognised as

revenue:
— 4R Within one year 30,780,642 30,646,827
— 4K After one year 19,671,230 52,168,921
Aaat Total 50,451,872 82,815,748
“EC=FER
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31 December 2023

5. Wegs~ H itk A R W 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,
OTHER EXPENSES (Continued)

/

i ~ Al B 32 )
A A T 3 5

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

2023 2022
A R¥ T A B ¥F o
RMB’000 RMB’000
oAt e A Other income
I I A Interest income 50,813 128,349
H Aty Others 6,306 3,521
HoAth g A H8 A Total other income 57,119 131,870
i %5 Gains
Wk 2 4 Forfeiture of deposits 13,050 13,376
B i B Government grants 7,074 15,576
HEYE- WELFEMHEEER  Gain on disposal of items of property, plant
Wi £ and equipment 4,795 2,689
HE AP EFTAEE N AR Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair
O Y U A value through profit or loss 206 10,155
[m] B 4 e EE R G 2% Gain on repurchase of senior notes = 47,375
HEL SN E LB S NG Gain on disposal of joint ventures and
I % associates = 33,108
i 4 AR AR Total gains 25,125 122,279
oA T A B i g AR AR Total other income and gains 82,244 254,149

| 8() Exumsmamis

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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W 3%~ Hoftt e A K& ¥ 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,
ft > H At B 32 ) OTHER EXPENSES (Continued)
HARBA SZ A h An analysis of other expenses is as follows:
TR —F--
2023 2022
AR ¥ Tz AR WET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B ) 2 R E B Impairment losses recognised for properties

L3R T 2 58 00 W (E s 18 under development and completed

(B 5E21 ~ 22) properties held for sale (notes 21, 22) 4,375,883 8,395,500
T 50, 2 A5 V% AR Foreign exchange differences, net 160,866 432,523
B B 2 ] e 1E T AR Losses on disposal of subsidiaries, net

(B 5E6 ~ 37) (notes 6, 37) 25,243 64,253
HERATFEF AHEHDA LM Losses on disposal of financial assets

B E 1) R at fair value through profit or loss 9,710 1,295
HEY 2 WS M E H Y Losses on disposal of items of property,

i 18 plant and equipment 367 270
B Donations 500 4,200
HoAth Others 22,038 22,756
oAl BH S M AR Tortal other expenses 4,594,607 8,920,797

Annuolzliiozrtﬁ;zaﬁ —I 8 —‘
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31 December 2023

6.

13

B B i s 48
75 4 I O 4R 91108 G A

F+H=1—H

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

PLTF 45 TH A% 72 2L
Bt 5 RO - S
Notes 2023 2022
A R¥ T AR ¥TF oo
RMB’000 RMB’000
B & W A Cost of properties sold 22 36,582,585 24,114,013
Wt B ) 2 N FRE & Impairment losses recognised for

B 2 T W) 2E e 58 A0 I (E properties under development and

&5 18 completed properties held for sale 5, 21,22 4,375,883 8,395,500
W~ R E KA TE H Depreciation of items of property, plant

PrE and equipment 13 24,231 34,511
{5 P BE & P Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15 33,275 40,104
HAthy 48 T2 & 2 B Amortisation of other intangible assets 16 20 144
HE f AP FE AR R Losses/(gains) on disposal of financial

4 Rl E R 1R assets at fair value through profit or

(U 25) 14 loss, net S5 9,504 (8,860)
HEYZE - S &% #HTE  Gain on disposal of items of property,

ERONE TR X plant and equipment, net 5 (4,428) (2,419)
B B 8§ 2N 7] A S $E VR AR Losses on disposal of subsidiaries, net 5,37 25,243 64,253
72 B il 3557 P Auditors’ remuneration 6,700 11,300
4 G FE WLE G 1R AR Impairment losses on financial assets,

net 24, 40 1,426,423 1,838,180
& B 4% FI B 52 (045 = Employee benefit expense (including

Bt R AT BON B directors’ and chief executive’s

(Bff 5E8)) - remuneration (note 8)):

TEEH & Wages and salaries 369,615 481,654

TG Pension scheme contributions and

8 A social welfare 61,928 80,272
IEsth AR AT

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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FINANCE COSTS

Tl & AR B A AT N R An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
CERCEA -
2023 2022
AR ¥ Tz AR ¥ T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HERAT R H M fE 2K~ A FIfE  Interest on interest-bearing bank and other
I B N E E @ borrowings, corporate bonds, senior notes
I3 T 15 5k A 1 LS. and proceeds from asset-backed securities 4,602,796 4,721,068
Wi 4 G & A AR 1 AR BE S Interest expense arising from revenue
contracts 1,222,247 870,135
8 A EHE Interest on lease liabilities 2,645 3,631
S JE N AR ARG AY 4 Ml Total interest expense on financial liabilities
A 1Y FIEL B S A AR not at fair value through profit or loss 5,827,688 5,594,834
B E AL F B Less: Interest capitalised (3,238,795) (4,224,495)
swt Total 2,588,893 1,370,339

& 3 Y % 8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

GiE - TS I /AN )
383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (c) B ()W LA B 7 ) (B
75 T8 =5 1] 25 ORE) KR A9 5F 23 B R 1Y
A4 BETE 3K B AT BN B 3

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is

as follows:

o

2023 2022
AR¥ T A R#F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
i 4 Fees 900 900
oAl M 4 Other emoluments:
T& ~ HEEE K CE Y AR A Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,656 13,918
7 B4 84 1 AT Performance-related bonuses 856 4,284
% & 5t #) Ak KAl e g A Pension scheme contributions and social
welfare 532 624
7,044 18,826
Mt Total 7,944 19,726
* KANFETHITES HFREES £ Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments

LA SR AR 36 U BRI AE AL
(E-

which are associated with the operating result of the Group.
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8. 7 HWIH M ) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Coninued)
@ BWYIIEPITEDSR (a) Independent non-executive directors
N AT T oL AT E The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
A& T the year were as follows:
TR —EF-=
2023 2022
AR %+ AR #T 5
RMB’000 RMB’000
Ml 4 Fees
I 98 b St A M. Loke Yu 300 300
EHF A Mr. Wang Chuanxu 300 300
e e Mr. Xie Jun 300 90
MEE S A M. Lin Hua = 210
Z =t Total 900 900
AE A s M L b E A5 Sr 9 There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
HMATEF M F - non-executive directors during the year (2022: Nil).
A ) o
by PITEDSF - JEHITEF (b) Executive directors, non-executive director and the
RSt NG chief executive

BeAgEHE  EEREE

T8~ Eh KB TRt A RETE itk &
e RENHEMN  HAEL REREL 6 A 3B T 4t
Pension
Salaries, Equity-settled scheme
allowances Performance- share-based  contributions
and benefits related payment and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses expenses welfare  remuneration
ARBTFLE ARWTLZ ARWTLT AR¥TLZ AR¥ETLE AR¥TIL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—RCER 2023
HWEESE: Executive directors:
AL S A Mr. Huang Xianzhi = 507 = = 40 547
BBk Mr. Liu Weiliang = 1,755 205 = 164 2,124
RV SE Mr. Li Yang = 1,549 256 = 164 1,969
FHITHESE Non-executive director:
B fEfeE Mr OuGuowei - 1,845 395 - 164 2,404
st Total - 5,656 856 - 532 7,044

] 84 ESEEREERAT

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

HiTEFR-FEANITES (b) Executive directors, non-executive director and the
KEEiITHANE 4#) chief executive (Continued)
ARGER L BEEGH
L& B BB Trb Bk 3 K
e REWEA B RAREX it & 78 Al i I A 5T
Pension
Salaries, Equity-settled scheme
allowances  Performance- share-based ~ contributions
and benefits related payment and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses expenses welfare  remuneration
ARBFIL ARETT ARETTE ARETIEZ ARETT ARETIL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Y- S 2022
Wi H Executive directors:
A e A M. Huang Xianzhi - 2,851 350 - 153 3,354
R R A SR A Mr. Chan Wai Kin = 5,100 3,000 = 12 8,112
BlfEs ek M. Liu Weiliang = 1,945 285 = 153 2,383
VA Mr. Li Yang = 1,845 307 = 153 2,305
FiTES: Non-executive director:
i B f S AR Mr. Ou Guowei - 2,177 342 = 153 2,672
A Total - 13,918 4,284 - 624 18,826
wmlA AT B ES T E Mr. Huang Xianzhi has resigned as the chairman of the board

fE-MfTER RAZREE
i~ M Z B &R AAR
ARERER A -F =4
—HZtHEAE-

AT E R EE R ESE
R EFFTREER D
EHZThARAZEGER
AL =Rl =W & NN K
AL A -F =F—H
T HBAR-

wif B S A O 2 AT 2 B oL OF
WHEF BT __FhL
H o+ = B AR % Bl o
4B REAL AT S ROAREE S
A RAEE L FRATES
HoZ A +=Hi
MR e

of directors, an executive director, the chairman of the
Nomination Committee, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and an authorised representative of the Company
with effect from 20 January 2023.

Mr. Liu Weiliang, an executive director, has been re-designated
from the vice chairman of the board of directors to the
Chairman, and has been appointed as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and an authorised representative of the Company
with effect from 20 January 2023.

Mr. Xie Jun has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director with effect from 13 September 2022. Mr.
Chan Wai Kin and Mr. Lin Hua have resigned as an executive
director and an independent non-executive director,

respectively, with effect from 13 September 2022.
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8. F W N ()

b)) BATEFR - EAITES
K m AT BN B (4

FHEECEZRESTHA
B-B_ZF__#FLHT+=
ERGREY s o

#wE_F-_=4t+-"A=+
— H IR AF B A 4R A 1)
AT AT FE = 5 A AT T I 2 (1
Ty N A S B B A A 4
R SEMY) > IR 2 1) AE {7 B AT
T o AT AT 3 3 ST T
& (E R E) (—F =2
) o

N B # R AT
N B 5 B[R] 3O S AL T By
PG 22 P (% = 4R ) o

9. =M iE B

FEN > TS R B R B =4
EH(CE M ZLEE) B
Hr T R L SO RS o i JF A
NEEEREEITBEAB N T
M (AR W4 dee i
g B 4F A1 A9 38 BN R a0 T

8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive director and the
chief executive (Continued)

Mr. Li Yang has been appointed as the chief executive officer
with effect from 13 September 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no emolument was
paid by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or to any directors or past
directors as compensation for loss of office (2022: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2022: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
directors (2022: three directors), details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of
the remaining two (2022: two) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

2023 2022

AR ¥ T o ANR¥TF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

T& - HRE B Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,559 3,359

7 B 84 AL AL Performance-related bonuses 1,014 1,658
=% a3 R B AR A Pension scheme contributions and social

welfare 181 305

4 =t Total 4,754 5,322

"‘ 8 EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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hameEHES @ 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)
PN A7 7 DLR R Y g R OJE The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
EEITHANE RS HMIEES N employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
mR follows:
BB AN%
Number of employees

2023 2022
2,000,000 % 7T % 2,500,000 5t HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000 1 -
2,500,001 # JC £ 3,000,000% ¢ HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 1
3,000,001 % 7T % 3,500,000 5~ HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 - 1
st Total 2 2
HE T =4#+_H=+—H During the year ended 31 December 2023, no emolument was paid
1F A BE > A 4E [E] N 4 [ AT 0] LAY By by the Group to any of the five highest paid employees as an
EHEIE B XA A E A inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
)11 AN N S 1 s | AN N S T S S loss of office (2022: Nil).
JBh B A 2y e TRk A A (U A
) o
i 15 B 10. INCOME TAX

A 42 [ JR0 0 A 4R T R 2 D RE i
K K88 BT 7E BL WS w5 M IR E AR K
TR HG R0 M) R R R YE A P
BB MR B 2 B R T DR i L B
B BRI B ak L > A 4 1S B 2
5y o 5 Ja R Lo BE S R A A ST Y B
J& 7 W) JE AN AT AR BT AR B o AR 4R
B A A o S B B JE A R
TR P A B - R By % 55 4 B A
2 F_=#+-_HA=+—H1L
A B 37 4 BERF R A EE AR A9 AT T
R Rt A o

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands, the
Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the Cayman Islands and British
Virgin Islands are not subject to any income tax. The Group’s
subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong were not liable for income
tax as they did not have any assessable profits currently arising in
Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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m.mﬁ%ﬁbm)

7 4R B T B A b R R R
T 4 N ZH 3% 259 1A 0 25 40 A b
PR -

- 338 (B TS $% BE30% £ 60% 11 2
Y Bl R )+ b R (R AR RO > bl
{8 78 2% B W 26 BT 15 3K TE Bk AT 4
WS (4R b A O A
o H At ) 2 BH 5E ST ) o AR 4R EIAR
TE A B B A B I R R
RS B 1 (= 5 (=B M (8
Bl TR A o (B AR
H b B B B AT I B
HEUE -

10. INCOME TAX (Continned)

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Chinese Mainland were
subject to PRC CIT at a rate of 25% for the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the sale of
properties less deductible expenditures including land costs,
borrowing costs and other property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated, made and included in taxation a provision for
LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant Chinese
Mainland tax laws and regulations. The LAT provision is subject to

the final review and approval by the local tax bureau.

2023 2022
AR ¥ F oL AR ¥Fr
RMB’000 RMB’000

RV HA B 1A Current tax:
B A ZE B 15 B PRC CIT 214,416 526,293
R L b 3 (E B PRC LAT 2,202 104,647
% AE B IE (Bt 5k 19) Deferred tax (note 19) 264,662 1,144,774
AE TR B B S Y A Total tax charge for the year 481,280 1,775,714

"‘ 8 8 EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory tax rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax

expense at the effective income tax rate is as follows:

FTHEIEMT :

2023 2022
AR #F oo YNEY &
RMB’000 RMB’000
5 Ay s 45 Loss before tax (9,004,282) (12,841,509)
e E TS B R 5B At the statutory income tax rate (2,251,071) (3,210,377)
A A2 WS N B MEAG 3 Al Profits and losses attributable to joint
B 18 ventures and associates 44,469 63,855
ASA] FnFL B 5 Expenses not deductible for tax 11,144 17,568
8 AR AR B R ) ) B TE B #8 & FT Tax losses and deductible temporary
1Yk T IR 2 differences utilised from previous years (179,246) (21,376)
o B R I R 1 T Iy 2 B Deductible temporary differences not
recognised 1,313,460 3,386,723
7% e 58 1 B JE s 45 Tax losses not recognised 1,540,873 1,460,836
I b 348 (B B A Provision for LAT 2,202 104,647
by 348 (R B 09 B 2 Tax effect on LAT (551) (26,162)
A A PR A R FH B A B IE  Tax charge at the Group's effective rate
A 481,280 1,775,714

R B8 A RS N R EAS 1
BiIE A A A R %70,589,000 70 (—
F AR AR 102,487,000 7€) ©
R G582 RS N | EAS 1)
BEOIE K e A R 129,881,000 70 ( —
F 4 NR ¥ 187,627,0007T)
AR AR FNIIET &8 4 3 KW
BN T A A K kR e

The share of tax charge attributable to joint ventures and associates
amounted to RMB70,589,000 for the year (2022: RMB102,487,000).
The share of tax credit attributable to joint ventures and associates
amounting to RMB129,881,000 for the year (2022:
RMB187,627,000) is included in “Share of profits and losses of joint
ventures and associates” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.
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10.

11.

12.

19

ﬁ}f ?%" m (48) 10. INCOME TAX (Continued)
F A TR R UL FE A A JRE A5 B E 4 Tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents:
2023 2022
AR ¥ Tz AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE A} PR [ A1 3 T A5 PRC CIT payable 2,989,394 3,241,816
JREAST o ] 4 b 3 (E B PRC LAT payable 1,482,924 1,466,268
JRE A+ 5 TH 48 AR Total tax payable 4,472,318 4,708,084
B S 11. DIVIDENDS

HEHEERARMEE T =
E+ A=+ —HILEEZ KRB
BB (T = 4 ) o

BE 2 7] % 3 BE 25 3% A\
i 1 4 1% s 48

BB I AR AR YR BB A
R s i SR (S SNl = WD
KA E B AT A R CE 3
#4,367,756,000 i ( — & = = 4F
4,367,756,000 %) wHE o

HRAREREE_—F _=F K
SR CEF A=+ —HIEE
B Sl 406 © % A7 V5 16 79 0 A i >
WRRBE -FZ=F L%
ZHEFZA=tT B IRFEE RS
Z g B A i A A 4 0 R

ERHERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

12.

The board of directors does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on the loss
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 4,367,756,000
(2022: 4,367,756,000) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022
in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.
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B )\ W] % ;E WA A 12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
JEE A 5 i s 18 ) ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PAREN T (Continued)
B M L AR % HE R 1R & B AR IR The calculations of the basic and diluted loss per share amounts are
IFIHHEFA based on:
TR TR
2023 2022
i 18 Loss
4> A R A N AL Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders
[ EAUNNL i ) of the parent (RMB’000) (8,467,942)  (12,877,046)
Jie 3 Shares
BN B AT A Y n Weighted average number of ordinary shares
2 8 in issue during the year 4,367,756,000  4,367,756,000
5 11 e 18 Loss per share
B T Basic and diluted AR®Q9H7E ARH @95 T
RMB(1.94) RMB(2.95)
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13. W3 ~ W bs B ok i

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

] V=
15 WaeE REFRHE BRTH  fARTH
Office
equipment
and electronic Leasehold Construction
Buildings Motor vehicles devices improvements  in progress

Total

ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARKFTIL

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
I S 31 December 2023
+ZH=1+—H
. — S At 1 January 2023
—H—H
A Cost 525,332 55,247 46,718 16,182 827,740 1,471,219
P Accumulated depreciation (95,193) (48,183) (44,703) (13,365) = (201,444)
HE T 1§ (. Net carrying amount 430,139 7,064 2,015 2,817 827,740 1,269,775
R = At 1 January 2023, net of
—H—H> accumulated depreciation
Tk Ak 430,139 7,064 2,015 2,817 827,740 1,269,775
NE Additions = 1,683 15 = = 1,698
& Disposals - (2,621) (321) - - (2,942)
A T 4 E A Depreciation provided during
the year (20,441) (685) (1,091) (2,014) = (24,231)
e s 3 At 31 December 2023, net of
+-H=+—H> accumulated depreciation
kxR 5+ 409,698 5,441 618 803 827,740 1,244,300
/. o At 31 December 2023
+-HA=+—H
%N Cost 514,105 50,257 45,718 16,267 827,740 1,454,087
ES SR Accumulated depreciation (104,407) (44,816) (45,100) (15,464) = (209,787)
e TH V3 Net carrying amount 409,698 5,441 618 803 827,740 1,244,300

1 Q) Erimmmaman

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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13. Y13€ ~ B 55 B ikt i ) 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

PO A HE
B BHE LETEE HRTE AEHRIR Mt
Office
equipment
and electronic Leasehold ~ Construction
Buildings  Motor vehicles devices  improvements in progress Total
ARHEFIL AREFIL ARKFILT ARKFITL ARBEFIL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E 31 December 2022
+ZA=+-n
. S At 1 January 2022
—HA—H
A Cost 525,332 85,470 64,443 128,607 746,988 1,550,840
i Accumulated depreciation (74,760) (74,998) (56,816) (87,680) - (294,254)
I 1H 7 (EL Net carrying amount 450,572 10,472 7,627 40,927 746,988 1,256,586
/e = At 1 January 2022, net of
—H—H> accumulated depreciation
1 B 5t 3 450,572 10,472 7,627 40,927 746,988 1,256,586
RNE Additions - 732 96 - 80,752 81,580
& Disposals = (614) (167) = = (781)
i S e s Disposal of subsidiaries
(WaE37) (note 37) - (546) 71) (31,982) - (33,099)
AF i 3 2 48 A Depreciation provided during
the year (20,433) (2,980) (4,970) (6,128) = (34,511)
i Sy At 31 December 2022, net of
+=-H=+—H> accumulated depreciation
Eilo3 iy 430,139 7,064 2,015 2,817 827,740 1,269,775
A S At 31 December 2022
T+T-H=+—H
A Cost 525,332 55,247 46,718 16,182 827,740 1471219
A Accumulated depreciation (95,193) (48,183) (44,703) (13,365) - (201,444)
ISR Net carrying amount 430,139 7,064 2,015 2,817 827,740 1,269,775

W FE - =F+=_H=+—H =&
AE ) B v (E 2 AR 192,906,000
Jo (& = A AR ¥210,487,000
JC) M R R B
By A S B B 00 RE R R AT K E At
B A HE A (K 5E29) ©

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s property, plant and equipment
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB192,906,000 (2022:
RMB210,487,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).
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14. EME

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Py &% R fa st
Under
construction Completed Total
ANR#¥TILT AR¥EFLT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
WE 4 —H—HMK Carrying amount at 1 January 2022
M T 3,547,821 6,314,179 9,862,000
N B Additions 55,032 - 55,032
Vi T A% e G Transfer upon completion (234,515) 234,515 -
= Disposal = (36,967) (36,967)
H B E A | (B 5E37) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) - (842,100) (842,100)
NSV R T 18 0T 4 Net loss from a fair value adjustment (49,139) (361,426) (410,565)
W—_E -4+ H Carrying amount at 31 December
=t—H R _F _=4F 2022 and 1 January 2023
— J — H Y AR 3,319,199 5,308,201 8,627,400
wHE Additions 23,919 = 23,919
NS T B s 18 1 A Net loss from a fair value adjustment (113,419) (531,000) (644,419)
N s S el =| Carrying amount
= F—HWRmE at 31 December 2023 3,229,699 4,777,201 8,006,900

194

A A2 T 1) 5% W) 2E A T R R A b o
A A [ ARG W 2L T B B T
¥ A G AL E BT PR B AT A LT
i Ko w0 A R 2 | (& B AT )
BEMbR —F =4 T="H=1
— H &E A & A K %8,006,900,000 7C
(& = =4 0 N R %8,627,400,000
JG) o AR [ 1Y e AR B A B R B
b7 NN Sl A iR T
EBLATAEEME EALE®RY
ZE 1Y ST A (R o B AT HE LS T
Mk - BE - BWIMLEEEREGER
SFEATUE o 7S 4E [ (1) 5 AR B A8 B
B 5 A BE L BELA B B R HE AT B
E S IR N IR ER S PSRN S
HEAT R o

W ZEZ =+ H =+ —
Ho A £ 4R mMEA ANR¥
6,277,319,0000C ( & — "4 AR
5 7,008,319,000 70 ) 1 4% & ) 2 CL &L
> A% 4R IR 0 EE B SR AT KOCH:
il 18 FKAE FEAT (B 5 29) o

Rt EEEARAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Chinese Mainland.
The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2023 based on valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL”), an independent
professionally qualified valuer, at RMBS8,006,900,000 (2022:
RMBS,627,400,000). The Group’s senior finance manager and the
chief financial officer decide, after approval from the board of
directors of the Company, to appoint which external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
The Group’s senior finance manager and the chief financial officer
have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed for financial

reporting.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB6,277,319,000
(2022: RMB7,008,319,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).
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14. REYIE @ 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Coninned)
2 FAE 8 2% Fair value hierarchy
A A R S AT The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy
[EEim of the Group’s investment properties:

B EF A A = BB DTS00 8 4 F G R
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2023 using
WHET S EAWBEE HEAATEE

ZHifH LN & LN ¢

GE—#) (5E = #) GE=#) st
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARW T AR¥TT ARWTLT AR¥TI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
#PLT IH H AT Recurring fair value measurement for:
BN THEF R
GRS ENHE L//E 3 Completed commercial properties - - 4,777,201 4,777,201
TR EY X Commercial properties under
construction = = 3,229,699 3,229,699
HBat Total - - 8,006,900 8,006,900
BB R S LT AT R
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022 using
HEHgE  EARWEE ERATEE
ZHfE LTON €3 LN (€3
(5 —H) (585 %)) (58 =%) 5t
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANRETTE AR¥WTET ARETET ARETI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
LT IE B AETHY Recurring fair value measurement for:
BN FHEFE
Bk Ty Completed commercial properties - - 5,308,201 5,308,201
e EY % Commercial properties under
construction - - 3,319,199 3,319,199
At Total - - 8,627,400 8,627,400

An nuolzliiozr:zfgji —I Q 6
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14. BEWE @) 14.
0 A g & o4

AEIR S B — BB B R 2 ] Sl
SR wH R A SR S O R = A
BEE = (CF A ) o

PATR 7 15 & W) 36 il (8 BT 1 B9 A (B
Tl K E ol A\ B

il 4 % 7l

Valuation techniques

S ENEERYE S WA EAAL

Completed commercial Income capitalisation
properties method

TE 7 SE W) 3 3§78

Commercial properties Comparison method

under construction

ERTHEEYEN S FETTER
WA EARERE > TR RER
Ft KA BE W 36 R B A AR A T AR
B,/ S AE BLAT T UL R AT RE BLAS 1Y
L 4 WA i AR (Bl L 40 19 ¥ 72 A8
W AAE T 5 B - SRR M BLE
AAL > DL R R AR L R
NF{H o TR EAE R EEILT 2% A
bR T 8 £ AT AR R AT E B

L e

At w1 R 2 O e 38 m (i ) 1 45 3
BB W 30 4 T (8 K W 4 (e
) o B A AL B R K R B 0O
D) i EHBEY RN AT E K
Wb () e

"‘ Q EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2022: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key

inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

KA W] A SR i 158 o o e - 3%
Significant unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
2023 2022

fiti wHfH 4
(NR ¥ g J5 ok &g 1)

Estimated rental value 30-263 30-258
(RMB per sq.m. and per month)

AL A

Capitalisation rate 4%—6% 3%—6%

T R
Expected profit margin 10% 10%

The fair value of completed commercial properties is determined by
the income capitalisation method, taking into account the net rental
income of the properties derived from the existing leases and/or
achievable in the existing market with due allowance for the
reversionary income potential of the leases, which have been then
capitalised to determine the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation
rate. Where appropriate, reference has also been made to the

comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant market.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental value would
result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/(decrease) in the
capitalisation rate would result in a significant decrease/(increase) in

the fair value of the investment properties.
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TE #2720 7 (E R L
HHE > BB E MBS LR
14 W] L S By AR S8l (i ) &€
fHER LLT JH H & A5 Y 38 A
EH(RIEHEDRT)

o THIGZ M IR KN E L
Y fili 5F & 5 AR & O #
A &

o G HE A KM
Yy 2k = % T T % 8 G s A

il w2 5 R B A B &
BB Y 2N (E AR - TR R
B MBS EEREYERT
{H A -

il
A S5 1A 2 R LA

AREMEBEAA R HLELEENZ
18] e > ~ o8 EE R L At 3 £ TE HI
MAERK - REMBRATESL—
YA 2k LA 3 i A
(FH A £ 204F £ 404F) » W% % +
i LAY AR K o A SR K S B 4 A
AT Al I o N B Y L
A2 B 5 AE o H At w0 A 0 28 R
Sy 1241 A 5k PA R KBk A 5 A
EEEAK . — MM S AL A
) A 42 [ LA Ah N g % 4y FH A
R - T A B
Al A A 2 MR E A AR T

&//
N— ARG IRRMIEE
Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2023

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value of commercial properties under construction is
determined by using the comparison method, with reference to
comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant market to
derive the fair value of the property assuming it was completed and,

where appropriate, after deducting the following items:

o Estimated construction costs and professional fees to be
expensed to complete the properties that would be incurred by

a market participant; and

o Estimated profit margin that a market participant would
require to hold and develop the property to completion.

The higher the estimated construction costs, the lower the fair value
of the investment properties under construction would be resulted.
The higher expected profit margin, the lower fair value of the

investment properties under construction would be resulted.

LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of office buildings,
motor vehicles and other equipment used in its operations. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the
owners with lease periods of 20 to 40 years, and no ongoing payments
will be made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of office
buildings generally have lease terms between 2 and 5 years. Other
equipment generally have lease terms of 12 months or less and/or are
individually of low value. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. There
are several lease contracts that include extension and termination
options and variable lease payments, which are further discussed

below.

“EC=FER
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15. M8 @) 15. LEASES (Continued)
AL [ R B Ak LN ) The Group as a lessee (Continued)
@ MEHREE (@) Right-of-use assets
RN AL AR E R The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
R T the movements during the year are as follows:
= 3ih £ ) HE e 1 At
Land use Office
rights buildings Total

AREFILT ARWTILE AR¥TFIL
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000

W oE A —H—H As at 1 January 2022 258,774 107,373 366,147
wE Additions - 17,587 17,587
TR &0k Pr 2 A 2 WD Decrease arising from lease term
termination = (65,095) (65,095)
P85 B 7 Depreciation charge (13,015) (27,089) (40,104)
W_E - _4F+_H As at 31 December 2022 and
=t—H R _F = 1 January 2023
—H—H 245,759 32,776 278,535
nE Additions = 13,265 13,265
LA 40k pr i A 2 > Decrease arising from lease term
termination — (11,322) (11,322)
HrEE B ¢ Depreciation charge (13,015) (20,260) (33,275)
A —— As at 31 December 2023
+=-HA=+—H 232,744 14,459 247,203
MW_F =+ H=14— As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s right-of-use assets with
ERS 1 F-Y 1R RPN an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
16577500070 ( = F = = RMB165,775,000 (2022: RMB174,618,000) were pledged to
o N R 174,618,000 78 ) ) secure interest-bearing bank and other borrowings granted to
EHEEECEN AAE the Group (note 29).

@ﬁ&ﬂﬁ B SR AT B H A £
AR R (B 5E29) -

"‘ 98 EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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15. LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)  Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

TR —F__
2023 2022
AR ¥ A B F ot
RMB’000 RMB’000
A — A — H iR E Carrying amount as at 1 January 42,123 115,547
W E New leases 13,265 17,587
A B e SR RS 3 IR Accretion of interest recognised during
the year 2,645 3,631
FiHLHH % 0k Jr i A 22 b Decrease arising from lease term
termination (11,322) (65,095)
N Payments (22,392) (29,547)
“t+-HA=+—HRrEM®{ Carrying amount as at 31 December 24,319 42,123
Gaiiv Analysed into:
B HA 5 4 Current portion 14,026 29,290
JE BV HA 6 4y Non-current portion 10,293 12,833

& & 0 2 B B o bk %
A B S 3R B 5 43 o

18 2% R R AL E AR B K
TEAN R

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 43

to the financial statements.

(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are

as follows:

—E_=H S
2023 2022
AR ¥ T AR ¥ T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ENES=R DS Interest on lease liabilities 2,645 3,631
i FH AT B B Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 33,275 40,104
B S A B A B Y BH S Expense relating to short-term leases
(FFAAT BB %) (included in administrative expenses) 4,932 6,087
BALEEE EHER RN Expense relating to leases of low-value
B 3 (Rt A S 4 J ) 84 assets (included in selling and
BH %) distribution expenses) 1,491 7,148
T8 B P R R R A E AR Total amount recognised in profit or loss 42,343 56,970
“EC=FER
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15. & @)

15. LEASES (Continued)

A SR AR B AL (4)

(d) FHE BB W K B oK B
B9 A B A BE A R A B & TR
e 5 B R R M 3s

A 4R WA 2 LA

AEFRBEEREH S THHER
&Y 2 (K sE14) > Bl =
N EY - HERK —HE
KA AR EE 4 06 E R %
H R T UL 2 P R R 4 o AN 4E
AR N R S U A B N R
77,529,000 70 (& — —4F ¢ AR
90,013,0007C) » #F 1% i B B %
M EEs o

MREZFZ=FFH=+—H &
A5 B AR 4 B HCFH S T S B A AT R
S A8 7 AH B R AR T iR R
S BLAH B E I R

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(d) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in

note 35 to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting of six
commercial properties in Chinese Mainland under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was RMB77,529,000 (2022:
RMB90,013,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the
financial statements.

At 31 December 2023, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases

with its tenants are as follows:

R =4 -

2023 2022

AR ¥+ AR ¥TFor

RMB’000 RMB’000

— 4R Within one year 84,049 89,791
—4ERL EAHWAE AN After one year but within two years 79,818 11,251
WA LI FH =4 IR After two years but within three years 77,991 9,948
AR DL EAH YA RL Y After three years but within four years 6,226 6,226
PO 4E L EAH HA4FE DA A After four years but within five years 6,226 6,226
HAERE After five years 30,774 37,000
st Total 285,084 160,442

20)() Deummmman

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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16. H fth %€ B & @& 16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ZEI=E g
2023 2022
AR #F oo YN &
RMB’000 RMB’000
oA Software
w—H—H At 1 January
A Cost 6,664 22,522
S 3 Accumulated amortisation (6,616) (18,493)
TR Net carrying amount 48 4,029
w—H—HZ A Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated
B 2 FH amortisation 48 4,029
A B a2 (B 37) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) = (3,837)
A TR 43 A 18 6 Amortisation provided during the year (20) (144)
wWtH+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 28 48
W H=+—H": At 31 December:
AR Cost 6,664 6,664
25T 6 Accumulated amortisation (6,636) (6,616)
[ETTREKIE] Net carrying amount 28 48
17. R BAENBEE 17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
TR OEAE E:CF
2023 2022
AR¥ T A R ¥Fox
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR E Share of net assets 2,179,692 2,207,870

JBE Wi Be JE A & 7 A 36 RKIH I B B

LM RE 40 77 -

to the financial statements.

“BO=FER
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17. 584

20

()

(b)

>R BE @) 17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
REFHN F _=4FHEE (@) Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures in 2023 are
EatEFBHOT as follows:
R 55 W A
B HET 2 b
BHEAR Percentage of
Paid-in capital ownership interest F E{GH)
VATEA w2 86 2 AE A ARMBFI  attributable to the Principal
Name of company Place and year of registration RMB’000 Group activities
A M S 4 5 L B A A 20,000 33% W%
AMRAT ZE—NE
Hefei Liangjin Enterprise Hefei, PRC Property
Management Consulting 2019 development
Co., Ltd.
LA I B ST R ] Ehlﬁlﬁeﬁ 1,501,841 50% 3% B
—E T
Nanjing Jiangyucheng Real Nanjing, PRC Property
Estate Co., Led. 2020 development
A MR e8> S T B A R (b) Hefei Liangjin Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd. is

ANHE (R A ALEEEHE - F
CEERCE - F1T A
=t—HIEFEENEESE
4 3E) B [ pA H Y H At S
B A L[] 4% — {0 1 3£ B EE
HH » KA IEALR-

R TL AR R 26 IR A (B
BAAEBERZE T =4
T A=+t—-HIEFENE
EegBEhxX ERB&E_F
CCoHEtY A=+ —HIE#E
Eﬁxﬁﬁﬁﬁk@*lw

Hb i) At A % Bk IR R &K
— Y EHEEE - %m%
fi 125 AR o

IEsth AR AT

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

considered a material joint venture of the Group for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. It operates a property
development project with the other joint venture partner in
Chinese Mainland and was accounted for using the equity
method.

Nanjing Jiangyucheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. is considered a
material joint venture of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 but was not material for the year ended 31
December 2022. It operates a property development project
with the other joint venture partner in Chinese Mainland and

was accounted for using the equity method.
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
(b)  (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Hefei Liangjin Enterprise
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. adjusted for any differences

in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in

2% T 11 R T R 3 R the consolidated financial statements:
—EF_=4 —F-C

+ZH=+—H +ZA=+—H

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

AR ¥ T ARWT T

RMB’000 RMB’000

e kB E&%EEY Cash and cash equivalents 157,735 374,136
A 37 B Other current assets 867,988 1,058,935
B & Current assets 1,025,723 1,433,071
I Wi B G Non-current assets 7 18

CRARE AEEE S K Financial liabilities, excluding trade and
At 1 £ 3KIE other payables (533,222) (970,194)
RN =R Other current liabilities (212,374) (246,761)
Ui E) A fE Current liabilities (745,596) (1,216,955)
FEE Net assets 280,134 216,134
HALEENREGEEFEMML  Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in
HE the joint venture:
A% 4 [ T A A R L 45 Proportion of the Group’s ownership 33% 33%
AEEMENL G S AZEFEE Group's share of net assets of the joint

9 B Wt 07 5 G WA R B B4R 4R
1t A B

venture 92,444 71,324
Adjustment for unrealised profits and

losses from related party transactions - -

& 1 B 1 (A Carrying amount of the investment 92,444 71,324
I %5 Revenue 453,234 917,133
B % Expenses (389,234) (777,922)
BiIH Tax - (34,803)
A A Vi A B 4 T K 4 AR R Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year 64,000 104,408

Annuolﬁiﬁiﬁﬁjﬁ 2 O 3
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TR F R A B AL AR A
KA RN E WM B E R
Zo DM g Rt Bk ER
1 H o R B A A BB Rk R

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
(b)  (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Nanjing Jiangyucheng Real Estate
Co., Ltd. adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and

reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial

AT 4 R T R statements:
+=ZHA=+—H
31 December
2023
AR ¥ T
RMB’000
B B B4 S5 AE ) Cash and cash equivalents 19,489
At 3 ) Other current assets 4,669,789
i B Current assets 4,689,278
I i B Non-current assets 2
AR AR S R Financial liabilities, excluding trade and
At 8 AT 3 IE other payables (2,898,390)
Ho A % B & Other current liabilities (374,187)
Ui ) A & Current liabilities (3,272,577)
FEE Net assets 1,416,703
B A [ 7 B v A 36 00 A g AR - Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in
the joint venture:
A 45 18 JIT A 4 A RE L 491 Proportion of the Group’s ownership 50%
AEEELGECETFERE Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture 708,352
Wt B W T 58 S 1 R 5 B HE Adjustment for unrealised profits and losses from
At 8 B related party transactions =
& 1 1 1w {E Carrying amount of the investment 708,352
W % Revenue 1,039,312
B S Expenses (859,325)
Bt IH Tax (81,073)
N Vi A B A T UK 25 48 AR Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 98,914
Rt EEEARAE

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(¢) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not

HH individually material:
Sy SR
2023 2022
AR ¥ T AR ¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
NG A B 4R %5 . Share of the joint ventures’ profits and
A T A £ A AR losses and total comprehensive income
for the year (98,755) (64,316)
ALK EEMSEREN Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
HE T (B 44 %A investments in the joint ventures 1,378,896 2,136,546

ARFREERL BRRE
BAENBEWH LT 2
W > R —F =+
H =+ — H & &2 E 5%
B CFF ) -gES
EQRE L ERr YN R R
BN -

18. R E A RHE

oAb R E

Share of net assets

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment was necessary as at 31 December
2023 as the investments in joint ventures were considered fully
recoverable (2022: Nil). The joint ventures have been accounted

for using the equity method in these financial statements.

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

- SN TR
2023 2022
AR®TFLZ  ARWTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
6,346,465 7,598,662

JRE xR JRE AT W 2 W) E R B s
R M sk 40 5% -

The amounts due from and to associates are disclosed in note 40 to

the financial statements.
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18. B AR BRE @)

()

(b)
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continned)

7 4 B OE RSN A GE Y (a)  Particulars of the Group’s material associates are as follows:
LU
A 5 1) 1
WA
HHER Percentage of
Paid-in ownership
capital interest EELHH
ek ik I 6 B Ay AR#T attributable Principal
Name of company Place and year of registration RMB’000 to the Group activities
JEE P M S O SR PR ) i L 2,660,000 25% W
e Sk S
Xiamen Lianrongyue Properties ~ Xiamen, PRC 2021 Property
Co., Ltd. development
RN 5 U P EE A BR A R o B 4% N 92,000 33% WKBE
—F— N\
Xuzhou Yafeng Real Estate Xuzhou, PRC 2018 Property
Development Co., Ltd. development
B B B AT PR “ B 1,300,000 45% MM
—E— i
Nanjing Zhaoyang Real Estate ~ Nanjing, PRC 2019 Property
Co., Ltd. development

Wi AR A A R AR AN A AN 4R
P 2 R B B A R
NEAIAEREE TR Z
BHRETRN S — 4 KkE
B A 7E R Y B 5 DL
BRI o RIUL o A 4R
B %A R H M 45% Ik
HE T HCAR A — K A
A AN -

JE [ B 4% I B A PR | (B
FEORCOCER R

+ = H =+ — B 1k 4 E AR
A S Y B RS N R B
Hh AL L Y SR S R R R R
W RE N ED > BRI RE 25 3k A
HE o LK g 4 F) 2 4 Yy 2 B
BIHH o

0 A UGS B A R A
Al K eI B E A R A
(WE_F_—_F+_H=+
— H 1k 4 B W B A S B
EEBESARMAREE &
=8+ _H=+—HIL&E

JEE S AN WL Ay B K ) B b B
b B S R E 3L R 2
fifl ) 36 B 85 JH H o bR T BE fi
BN -

EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

(b)

Note: Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group only has significant
influence on Nanjing Zhaoyang Real Estate Co., Ltd. as another
shareholder of the investee has enough voting power to control and
operate the entity. Thus, the entity was accounted for as an associate by

the Group through the Group’s holding of 45% of equity interests in it.

Xiamen Lianrongyue Properties Co., Ltd., which was
considered a material associate of the Group for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022, was an investment holding
company with strategic partners in Chinese Mainland and is
accounted for using the equity method. Its subsidiary operates
property development projects.

Xuzhou Yafeng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and
Nanjing Zhaoyang Real Estate Co., Ltd., which were
considered material associates of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 but were not material for the year ended
31 December 2023, operate property development projects
with strategic partners in Chinese Mainland and are accounted
for using the equity method.
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(b)

(%)

RSB R A B A B A D
KA RN E WM B E R
Zo DM g Rt Bk ER
1 H o R B A A BB Rk R
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Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2023

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continned)
(b)  (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Xiamen Lianrongyue Properties Co.,
Ltd. adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial

AT ) B T L 3 B statements:
+ZH=+—H +=HA=1+—H
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
AR¥ T AR ¥F oL
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hae kHE%EY Cash and cash equivalents 63 63
HoAth 7 B & A Other current assets 2,712,812 2,769,759
W E Current assets 2,712,875 2,769,822
I B & Non-current assets 10,000 10,000
HoAth i B & & Other current liabilities (63,245) (120,192)
T B B E Current liabilities (63,245) (120,192)
& Net assets 2,659,630 2,659,630
SHLAS AR S i 7 A W Y Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in
HE %5 3R the associate:
5 55 8 BT AL B A HE LE 4 Proportion of the Group’s ownership 25% 25%

AL NG A F AR

BRI 6 07 2 7 ) oK 2 BLAR 4R
Tt 9

Group’s share of net assets of the
associate 664,908 664,908
Adjustment for unrealised profits and

losses from related party transactions - -

G R BE T (E Carrying amount of the investment 664,908 664,908
I i Revenue — _
BH % Expenses = (369)
BiIH Tax — _

A 1A M 1R K 4 T i 4R AR

Loss and total comprehensive loss
for the year - (369)

Annuolﬁiﬁiﬁﬁjﬁ 2 O 7
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18. AW & A v W& )

(b)
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(%)

RN A B AR T D5
7 B 3R A R 2> R BB A R
= Ot AE ] & 5 BUR 2=
SR R Rl B AR A B S

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continned)

(b)  (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information in respect of Xuzhou Yafeng Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd. adjusted for any differences in

accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in

2% A W) B T (R SR the consolidated financial statements:
+=ZH=+—H
31 December
2022
A R ¥F o
RMB’000
e kB &% EY Cash and cash equivalents 23.672
Ho A v B & Other current assets 1,353,092
i B & A Current assets 1,376,764
IE i B A Non-current assets 20,573
SRAE AOEE S K Financial liabilities, excluding trade and
At A5 3K IE other payables (106,087)
HCAth 3 38 & Other current liabilities (183,998)
il N= Current liabilities (290,085)
FEE Net assets 1,107,252
B 7 45 [ A W 2 D R A IR Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the
associate:
A AL [ T A AT RE L 451 Proportion of the Group’s ownership 33%
7 £E 3 AL B S N T IR R R Group’s share of net assets of the associate 365,393
LB Ty 32 2 WY oK B B AE AR Adjustment for unrealised profits and losses
PE 3R from related party transactions (257)
& 1 1 1w {E Carrying amount of the investment 365,136
I %5 Revenue 1,109,803
b 32 Expenses (869,626)
BiIH Tax (84,357)
N Vi A B A T UK 25 48 AR Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 155,820

EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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by (#)

TR R A B A B S
AR~ E R R
C AT AT & sl BOK 22 BAE
o B 37 B AR S BB R R A

&//
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Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2023

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continned)
(b)  (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Nanjing Zhaoyang Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and

reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial

R T (B IR statements:
+—-H=+—H
31 December
2022
A R ¥F o
RMB’000
e RRE%EY Cash and cash equivalents 339,028
Ho A v B & Other current assets 2,843,049
i B & A Current assets 3,182,077
IE W) & Non-current assets 12,559
SRAE AOEE S K Financial liabilities, excluding trade and
At JE A5 2K I other payables (1,451,020)
HoAth 7% B & fE Other current liabilities (486,062)
B Total liabilities (1,937,082)
T EE Net assets 1,257,554
B 7 45 [ A W 2 D R A IR Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the
associate:
A AL [ T A AT RE L 451 Proportion of the Group’s ownership 45%
7 ] HE AL B S N R TR R Group’s share of net assets of the associate 565,899
LB Ty 32 2 WY oK B B AE AR Adjustment for unrealised profits and losses
PE 3R from related party transactions -
& 1 1 1w {E Carrying amount of the investment 565,899
Wi £ Revenue _
BH 52 Expenses (31,509)
i JH Tax 6,734
A A e 15 B 4 T fRs 4R AR R Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year (24,775)

Annuolﬁiﬁiﬁﬁjﬁ 2 O Q
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18. R E A HRE

(©

21

T VEST NET T
GO PV SR
B R

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(¢) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually
material:

R =4 TR
2023 2022
AR ¥ F oL AR ¥ Foo
RMB’000 RMB’000
Rl R /NIRRT Share of the associates’ profits and losses

2 T U 3 A %E and total comprehensive income (149,697) (265,738)

ARAEE NS N A BE R Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
Eﬁﬁ{ﬁﬂ@"ﬁ investments in the associates 5,681,557 6,002,719

NN A G A
/NIRRT A g
W [l s R = F D =4E A+
A = — H % 5548 6 0E 5
(T AR ) o BN
A B 4% RE 2 k0 5% 4F B TS ik
FAME -

EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment was necessary as at 31 December 2023 as the investments
in associates were considered fully recoverable (2022: Nil). The
associates have been accounted for using the equity method in these
financial statements.



N\
m— SRR M
Notes to Financial Statements

—— =4
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3B & B JH 19. DEFERRED TAX
W E B TEE A N AR AR The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
R are as follows:
IR ok B JE G Deferred tax assets
MRS EARK
AREARR  ERBEN  EHTE Wit RES ERLH SEEE
AR ®AmEE  RERSR REA BRERK RlokaE BER WEEHR At
Losses
available
for offsetting  Advertising fee Unrealised Impairment
against future  for offsetting ~ Payroll and Accrued revenue losses on
Lease taxable  against future welfare  construction received Accrued financial
liabilities profits  taxable profits accrual cost  inadvance LAT assets Total
ARWTFL ARWTE ARFTT ARBFL ARBTT ARNTFT AREFLT AR¥FT ARWFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
MZFZZHF—-H—H  AclJanuary 2022 28,887 104,702 2,841 2,863 201511 2210940 176976 4382 2,733,102
& B A 7 (M 5E37)  Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 37) = @3,131) (41) - (393160 (162339 (32,900) - @12
SER (B E)/FEABE Deferred tax (charged)/
AR IE R IE credited to profit or
loss during the year (18,356) (66,392) (2,800) (1,930) (56,225) (1,115,942 (8,302) 102 (1,269,845)
R-F-_F At 31 December 2022
TZH=Z+—H 10,531 15,179 = 933 105,970 932,664 135,774 4484 1,205,535
R BRA) /FEABE Deferred ax (charged)
f 4 B H credited to profit or
loss during the year (4451) (9,020) - 1) 9,052 (444,742) (1,076) - (450,258)
RoZEZ=& At 31 December 2023
+ZH=1+—H 6,080 6,159 = 912 115,022 487,922 134,698 4484 755,277
“BOCFFR
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19. #& HE 5t JH (4

8 S L UH B R e B AR R R B
Br : (#)

3 € B JH AL 1R

1() DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year

are as follows: (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

REME  WE-WE
BAERATE KR EE RHAHEE

R AR MATEWE  EAEEE At
Fair value
Fair value  adjustment Fair value
adjustment  arising from  adjustment
arising from property,  arising from
investment plant and business  Right-of-use
properties equipment  combination assets Total

AR®FL ARBETET AR®TT ARKTT ARKEFIL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

BoE - HF—H—H Atl January 2022 740,400 55,692 146,059 26,843 968,994
FENFF A& Deferred tax credited to
1R ALl I profit or loss during
the year (102,643) (3,085) (694) (18,649) (125,071)
i B B i /8w ([ 5% 37)  Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 37) (29,622) - (83,808) - (113,430)
. S At 31 December 2022
+—-H=+—H 608,135 52,607 61,557 8,194 730,493
N A 5 Deferred tax credited to
I ol I profit or loss during
the year (161,105) (3,085) (16,827) 4,579) (185,596)
i S At 31 December 2023
+=-HA=+—H 447,030 49,522 44,730 3,615 544,897
2 —‘ IEsth AR AT
Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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BB R AR A BB IR DL A
PATR Z% 5t B 85 HR ik R B R AE B

19.

&/
N— BTSRRI
Notes to Financial Statements
e
31 December 2023

DEFERRED TAX (Continned)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

& R 0 AT

reporting purposes:

- e TR TR
2023 2022
AR ¥ T A B #F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
T &R A B R LR A R R Net deferred tax assets recognised in the
0 S A TH O E consolidated statement of financial position 578,263 971,749
A &R A B R L 2R A R R ) Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
A ST Fl T B fE 5 (E consolidated statement of financial position (367,883) (496,707)
HE Total 210,380 475,042

A 42 B A B OR FE E A 0 B A S
B A N K #9,542,760,000 78 (& —
A N R ¥7,164,704,00000) > #%
TE— 2 A N B HE LK 8 R 2k B
SRR i I o S 4 % S e 18 T R R
HE B TE A E > R A HE AR B R
— BB AR HRAAK
A B8 A M SRR R A K 8 B E kS 18 -
A AR ] R 0B 2 A A R
20,422,404,0007C ( = & — " 4F 1 A
K %16,336,484,000 7C) ©

AR 2 R 36 A0 B 4 S P A5 B
) A B A R S B A A
1 3 1 1 A0 £ E F H IR A9 B
Blios K FHIMBL - B2 B = F
FONAF— A — H & A3 AR
“EXEELHET A=+ —HEE
A B o A1 A B A e 45
B P B ) 2 AT A B B E
AT BR AR TE AN B A o A R
B By 10% o B > A 4 B ZH i
% 5 1E B A H A ST R 2 R
HZZNANFE-A-HRBELEMN
B BT 53 IR B S AN T AT B o

The Group has tax losses arising in Chinese Mainland of
RMB9,542,760,000 (2022: RMB7,164,704,000) that will expire in
one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised. The Group has
deductible temporary differences of RMB20,422,404,000 (2022:
RMB16,336,484,000).

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Chinese Mainland. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Chinese Mainland and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Chinese
Mainland in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

“EC=FFR
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19. % iiE_ *ﬂ" IE (%45 19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
W_E =%+ _HA=+—H> As at 31 December 2023, no deferred tax has been recognised for
R A 1 N S N S T N I VA £ withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
R 2N ] ZE B 4N TE 0B 1 oK BE that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
Z9 A E AF B TE 0 B 5B AT AT 48 4L established in Chinese Mainland. In the opinion of the directors of
BiIH o RAFEED L AEER the Company, the Group’s fund will be retained in Chinese Mainland
Bt R A AR Y KRB TR for the expansion of the Group’s operation, so it is not probable that
o [5R] R b AR RE o REZ A T B AN T R these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
] YH AR A S ] BE 4 IR A B 2L A o future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
BiL A Sl A A SRR AE B T B A W R with investments in subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland for which
A Hb B 2 F R 3 A B e deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
R RAAm ety hEE (. approximately nil (2022: nil).
F:F) o
45 R JE s 48 0 4% AT g E AR R Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the
2 JRE R B e A B ER A AH BE B B extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through future
| 25 T HE R 0% AE B VE A o taxable profits is probable.
20. A PG A4 20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
il THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2023 2022
AR ¥ Tz A B ¥F o
RMB’000 RMB’000
WAFEF 2N LT RAERE  Listed equity investments, at fair value - 417
N FEFE MR BT H A Unlisted other investments, at fair value
BHE 2,701 282,056
At Total 2,701 282,473

REFZ=H+"H=1+—HH
bR TR E A&
Wb B ¥ N P R AR 25 1Y

2 “ 4 Rt EEEARAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

The above equity investments at 31 December 2023 were classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were held

for trading.
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21. B vh Y &

21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

e - - S
2023 2022
AR¥ T AR ¥FC
RMB’000 RMB’000
H— H — H i BE T (H Carrying amount at 1 January 113,364,362 131,073,246
NE Additions 11,921,383 23,115,555
WM ERELEE R TYE Transferred to completed properties held for
(Bt 5% 22) sale (note 22) (63,863,847) (23,848,612)
H B A\ (B 5E37) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) = (9,549,188)
1l 5 ek (B s 18 (FfF %S ~ 6) Impairment losses recognised (notes 5, 6) (4,257,253) (8,153,767)
I ERMEHEDL R TYWHER  Impairment losses transferred to completed
WE (K EE22) properties held for sale (note 22) 7,265,563 727,128
Wt H=+—HMEmE Carrying amount at 31 December 64,430,208 113,364,362

7 S B AY B8 R W € R P B
A9 AH L E o

W_F =4+ _H=1T—
H> AREMMAERGMHEHARKE
33,019,538,0007G ( = & = T4 ¢ A
R #56,708,147,0007G) 1 B %5 1 4
ECEM > &AL E MR ®
A7 o Al A5 3K AR HE A (B 55 29) o

BH B b ) S S A B AT

The Group’s properties under development are situated on leasehold
lands in Chinese Mainland.

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s properties under development
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB33,019,538,000 (2022: RMB56,708,147,000) were pledged to
secure interest-bearing bank and other borrowings granted to the
Group (note 29).

The movements in provision for impairment of properties under

development are as follows:

s — A — H YT

O W 52 8 (E s 48 (K 55~ 6)

EEEREREDR TYEN
WA N 1R (B 5k 22)

Bt A=+ — H IR E

TR = - S
2023 2022
AR #F o AR #T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Carrying amount at 1 January 7,988,798 562,159
Impairment losses recognised (notes 5, 6) 4,257,253 8,153,767
Impairment losses transferred to completed
properties held for sale (note 22) (7,265,563) (727,128)
Carrying amount at 31 December 4,980,488 7,988,798

Annuolﬁiﬁiﬁﬁjﬁ 2 —‘ 6
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21. WP E @)

B B rh W 20 B (E N A RS R
FE AL o it B T (EL AR A R A g B
> BIAEAE W (H o AT %88 B (E )9 R
T8 B AT 4G W 8 B S 2
2 B T R E o A BE R P TR
TR (L B A 1% B 228 B Hh ) 2E
M E &L EEETRY
S0 NI 5 BV (R R A E R v A -
HI7E JREL w132 19 B 25 A 4 3 ek (A
Tl G BE A T DA (] 5 o] 9 42
EILNEE R B

22. RfEHBEC % TY%E

i —H — H B MR HEE
WA B 8% ) 2 (i RE21)

development (note 21)

g 2 B B AR (B 5E6)
T3 5 B R R W) 20 (S 1R

21.

22.

Carrying amount at 1 January

Transferred to cost of sales (note 6)

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued))

The value of properties under development (‘PUD”) is assessed at
the end of each reporting period. An impairment exists when the
carrying value exceeds its net realisable value. The net realisable value
is determined by reference to the selling price based on the prevailing
market price less applicable selling expenses. After making the
provision for impairment of PUD, in case the factors causing
impairment of PUD no longer exist, and the net realisable value
exceeds the carrying amount, the original provision for impairment

shall be released to the profit or loss for the current period.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Transferred from properties under

SRS .

2023 2022
ARWTFT  ARWTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
9,904,155 11,554,582
63,863,847 23,848,612

(36,582,585)  (24,114,013)

Impairment losses transferred from properties

(Fft5E21) under development (note 21) (7,265,563) (727,128)
L 58 Ik (E s 48 (B R8s > 6) Impairment losses recognised (notes 5, 6) (118,630) (241,733)
B I8 s | (FfFEE37) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) (416,165)
Wt =A==+ — 3 iR (E Carrying amount at 31 December 29,801,224 9,904,155

M:f:*j$+iﬂ%:+*
1126089800075( ::::E A
R #1,579,940,000 C) 1Y FE/E H & B
LY ECEM > AL SR
wl S R AT B At £ 2k AE HE AR (B 5
29) °

2 "‘ EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s completed properties held for
sale with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB11,260,898,000 (2022: RMB1,579,940,000) were pledged to
secure interest-bearing bank and other borrowings granted to the
Group (note 29).
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22. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

(Continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of completed properties

held for sale are as follows:

e =Y TR T T

2023 2022

AR ¥ F AR ¥T T

RMB’000 RMB’000

w—H—H R E Carrying amount at 1 January 1,646,272 678,985
o (EL M5 TR N (K5t 6) Impairment losses written off (notes 6) (3,019,230) =

R E PR Y E M I (E K Impairment losses transferred from properties

(Bt 5% 21) under development (note 21) 7,265,563 727,128
B A 52 b (e B 1 (B 5Es ~ 6) Impairment losses recognised (notes 5, 6) 118,630 241,733
5 B 2 Disposal of subsidiaries - (1,574)
WA = H R T (E Carrying amount at 31 December 6,011,235 1,646,272

FELECR TYENEMER A
i A A FT A o v B T (7R L AT
BT (E > A7 AR AE o AT BB
{6 5 AR 98 B AT T 8 807 1 86 B B
Sl 2% 1 R I E o AL RRAE
C 3% T4 3wt 42 Bl (E # 1% > fin &2
BEFHECR TYERMENR
ROEHA B FHECRT
Wy S ) AT A B (6 A AR T
B> IERCFAROFFELEDR
T S (A 48 e AU T DA (]
I B s AT E A

YR EERECRTY
36 1 T B E B B E W &
AR AH AR BB #E DA S 58 G
W 3 8 1 P 5 19 BA o B B P 3
B R fE B B R T ¥k W%
w F A AT R BT A R
T A o A4 B B R 1 AN AT
il B 36 2 T ) S AT B LA (L -
Hh I A M A [R] T Y T R T
S it B 5 M E T 8 PR LA i > fL
175 PR SR AN R I SR > Wl RE AR B
% S YT A B b E (R A B ) o

The value of completed properties held for sale (‘PHS”) is assessed at
the end of each reporting period. An impairment exists when the
carrying value exceeds its net realisable value. The net realisable value
is determined by reference to the selling price based on the prevailing
market price less applicable selling expenses. After making the
provision for impairment of PHS, in case the factors causing
impairment of PHS no longer exist, and the net realisable value
exceeds the carrying amount, the original provision for impairment
shall be released to the profit or loss for the current period.

The determination of the net realizable value of PUD and PHS
involves expected future selling prices, the relevant taxes, and costs
necessary to complete the sale of these properties. The calculation of
the net realisable value for PUD and PHS at the financial reporting
date is performed by the Group’s management. The Group’s
management engaged an external valuer to perform independent
valuations for certain properties. Recent property market cooling
measures imposed by the local governments in different cities in
Chinese Mainland, which include policies of limiting prices and
home purchase restrictions, could lead to volatility in property prices

in these cities.

Annuolﬁiﬁéfiﬁjﬁ 2 —‘ 7
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23. H o MWk 8

g

=870 & e

Trade receivables

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

CEREAg . S
2023 2022
AR T 75 AR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
574,284 747,858

5 I WK JH £ AR R L S A
& B EY - B R Y K%
afl) e 5 o A% 4R ] 55 5K 3 H R i (] g
AR I A R e A T o PR
J1 i BE 26 0 A5 B o BE Y DA B Pl
AL E 5 WK EY XL T
L% 5 ) 8 3l 48 B K {5 L B
Lk - AEBEHEDENE S
JRE Wi TE T B A R B A A 3 R
R E M A BOH o A 42 S 4 H
H T 18 W JE A B 1R A A AT 4 A
i BB 5 3R T T H o 5 5 i
HIHSAFE

B 5y HE WO E f AR R TR -
B 5y 18 WK JE B R T (B B A O
EAR AT o A2 i il R R 3% 52 H
B0 B ) M SRR SEL AR B 2 AT A0 T

Trade receivables mainly represent rentals receivable from tenants,
sales of properties, sales of goods and sales of consultation service.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management.
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. Included in the Group’s trade receivables
of sales of properties are mainly due from state-owned enterprises and
government departments. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade

receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Trade receivables are unsecured and non-interest-bearing. The
carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate to their fair values.
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2023 2022

AR ¥ T o ANR¥TFc

RMB’000 RMB’000

— 4 A Less than 1 year 152,986 291,556
— &P E Over 1 year 421,298 456,302
st Tortal 574,284 747,858

2 “ 8 Rt EEEARAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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23. ¥ 5 WK IE ) 23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
WE o 71 30 7% % U (B A9 E i R TH Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
Ko B 95 18 A A 25 K BRSO 2 diversified customers including state-owned enterprises and
TERF > SR ETELNT government departments, for whom there was no recent history of
% HOGR R = o default and high collectability.
2 45 AR 9 B R B s HE R 2B o The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for ECLs
9% 0 HE R 8 5 1k 4 TE S A prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected
EHEE BN ZE AT A loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the ECLs, trade
Sy ME i R TE B 2R A A receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
T R o A A E G B characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rate of trade
B - B ERRECREBELZGEH receivables is assessed to be 0.4% (2022: 1.3%). Based on evaluation
JE 55 e B H o e B 5 on the expected loss rate and gross carrying amount, the directors of
W R TE R FE 1 1 R ST AE A 0.4% the Company are of the opinion that the ECL in respect of these
(CE T F 1 13%) - BEEEHN balances is considered to be immaterial, and therefore, there has not
5 48 2R K W THT AR (B0 BT AL > AR F] been a loss allowance provision.
HHRE > AHZE&RNENG
A e 1B A A AN R B i
A 0 L AT R 1B A A
24, T AF#kJE - H bW 3k  24. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
JH R 3 Ath ¥ E OTHER ASSETS
TR TR TR
2023 2022
A R F iz A RIETF e
RMB’000 RMB’000
% & Deposits 1,302,947 2,704,734
HeAth AT i [m] B TE Other tax recoverable 2,603,006 3,106,738
JRE Wi Bt JBg 2N =] JE HE LR B 3K JE Due from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries 14,683,930 15,371,376
B KA G E Contract cost assets 1,441,693 1,732,326
A M7 BUR A B #EAE IR T Proceeds from pre-sales of properties
ORER=R/EJIECE @1 deposited in accounts of local governments
and related agencies 1,818,423 2,599,375
3 5T B A TE A FOE Prepayments for construction cost 25,412 57,603
At A 2K IE Other receivables 859,332 836,620
22,734,743 26,408,772
A 15 Impairment allowance (269,600) (75,732)
M Total 22,465,143 26,333,040
SBO=FER
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24.

22

THAT 2 JH - H fib BE W%k 24. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
J 2 & > ﬂﬂ {é }2: (45) OTHER ASSETS (Continued)
Al JE e % T K AF AR Y TR (E B The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables and
BAEIAR : deposits are as follows:
2023 2022
AR T AR ¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
w—H — H R (E Carrying amount at 1 January 75,732 17,525
. e R v (e 18 (B 5 6) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 304,703 58,207
B B 2 Disposal of subsidiaries (110,835) _
R+ H=+—Hr R E Carrying amount at 31 December 269,600 75,732

TEA R~ A B i R T % A B
FE s AR - R EEE H A [ 2 R K
IR -

A4 ] i T A AE Al 1R A o
il Wi 3k TE B2 A7k (ZE0AR 45 ) [ B
W5 i 4 ME BN 26 o 9% 3 8 19 A )
HEAT WA FEAL - G SR &%
A BT R > DR BE B JE
Wr B WA MERR AR 2 58 8] o i =&
T A=T—HEHUGE
548 2 N B 269,600,000 76 ( = &
T+ _H=1+—H: AE¥
75,732,000 7C) ©

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets are unsecured, non-

interest-bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model on

other receivables and deposits, which are subject to impairment

assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each

reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition.

As at 31 December 2023,

the ECLs were

RMB269,600,000 (31 December 2022: RMB75,732,000).

I L )53 Iﬂ ,‘: 1% % ~ A7 25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED
FE ﬂi‘lj I é’} *EE jﬁfl ﬁ ;ﬁ CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS
TR =4 TR
2023 2022
AR ¥Fix AR ¥Tor
RMB’000 RMB’000
W4 RRAT 45 R Cash and bank balances 5,035,609 9,249,715
W 32 BRI 4 Less: Restricted cash 3,187,254 5,892,753
B A7 3K Pledged deposits 131,395 86,851
4 M4 5EY Cash and cash equivalents 1,716,960 3,270,111
R ESREARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited



25. Bl M Bl & FE W

Z B B R B
ﬁ%k (48 )

WA BB LR AEBNET
55 b 7E BA B s W ZE I A T &K
HAr B8 € |ATIRF fE4F 2 H
e R EZZAFE A =+ —
H > 5% 30 20 1 52 R B4 2 N R Hs
2,938,623,0007C ( ~ & — " 4E : AR
#55,812,649,0007C) © & & =
+A=+—H> ZRHHELE PN
A A REREESNSES A
R ¥ 248,631,000 70 (& 4 © A
K #80,104,000 JC) °

MRoE =4+ _"A=+—H: 5
BN R %131,395,00000 (=& = —
£ N R 86,851,000 7T ) H 48 17 17
R B A 4 ) T 58 = O 1R R
fE5 S et Bk~ T H &k 81
A7 Bl SR > SO AR T SR AT

By BEAT SR AT AR S PR HE G

25.

%J_/
N— BTSSR MIEE
Notes to Financial Statements
e

31 December 2023

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED
CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place certain
amounts of cash in the designated bank accounts for a specified use.
As at 31 December 2023, the restricted cash for this part amounted
to RMB2,938,623,000 (2022: RMB5,812,649,000). As at 31
December 2023, the restricted cash included an amount of
RMB248,631,000, which was seized by the People’s Court due to
lawsuits (2022: RMB80,104,000).

As at 31 December 2023, bank deposits of RMB131,395,000 (2022:
RMB86,851,000) were pledged for the Group and third parties as
security for purchasers’ mortgage loans, construction of projects,
bank facilities, or pledged to banks as collateral for issuance of bank

acceptance notes.

TR TR
2023 2022
AR¥ T A R ¥F o
RMB’000 RMB’000
Bl& LBl aEHEY Cash and cash equivalents

IWNEY: = Denominated in RMB 1,705,939 3,257,121
L E T EHE Denominated in US$ 8,765 7,920
Lo EHE Denominated in HK$ 2,256 5,070
1,716,960 3,270,111

AN RBEFHER ZBR % Bl 4 ) Restricted cash and pledged deposits
B i1 77 3K denominated in RMB 3,318,649 5,979,604

N B MRS 5 e 2 A B W
EAR 45 o B 1 i ) O I A7 B A0k 1)
Fe K% BE ~ 5 ME Je AF BE A BE AL E )
A 4 ] T A A A A HE O 4T A M 6
B SR AT A N R WS R B
£ o

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Chinese Mainland’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

“EC=FER
Annual Report 2023

221



iR et

Notes to Financial Statements
—E A=+ —H

31 December 2023

ST B LU H ST A7 3R %
e VB0 ) A o GRAT A BR A7 R 90
U J0 4 £ SR AT
B4 B4 % 1 0 W T
AT -

R-F_=#+-_A=+—H>
A4 OE 3 7 R B & - 2R AT
I B R Bl S H Y E AT A
{5 R RE & o A 4 B TR il 32 FR i B
& DM R B LB % E
Yy 2 A5 R B 04 i ER DA SR I
26 AW 3 > Sl 9%+ A 2 A
R S E A BB E - H Ol
(ER TR NG N

26. ¥ 5 VE F 3k H K BE £
=%
TR A A o S B U006 A
25 M £ 3K T T M F 3% 9 B
ST

206.

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED

CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the

cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 December 2023, the internal credit rating of restricted cash,
pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents was performing. The
Group has assessed that the credit risk of the restricted cash, pledged
deposits and cash and cash equivalents has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and measured the impairment based on
12-month ECLs, and has assessed that the ECLs are immaterial.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2023 2022

AR¥ T AR ¥Fc

RMB’000 RMB’000

—4E K Within 1 year 16,507,435 14,632,614
— &£k Over 1 year 1,226,587 972,363
T Total 17,734,022 15,604,977

BF 5 EAT 3K A 7 S AR AT > — R
TREEHEE R T =F 1+
H=4—H > &N w kg6 T
1 &) N R %1,225,210,000 0 (&
TAE N 1,364,855,0000C) 7 2
7R 50 T A B SR A o

EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited

22

The trade payables are unsecured and are normally settled based on
the progress of construction. As at 31 December 2023, commercial
acceptance bills of approximately RMB1,225,210,000 (2022:
RMB1,364,855,000) issued by the Company’s subsidiaries were

overdue and unpaid.



N
N— BRI

Notes to Financial Statements
—— =4
31 December 2023

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2023 2022
AR¥Fi A R#F i
RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt T8 2 il S 42 i e R ARk Advances from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries 4,686,623 5,682,388
HEEMEEERS Retention deposits related to construction 1,428,020 1,575,390
EASH T8 f 45 Al Payroll and welfare payable 92,592 126,256
Yy 2 61 5 A B 4 Deposits related to sales of properties 79,868 330,014
B Business tax and surcharges 488,838 366,471
MRS Maintenance fund 233,681 288,544
EiE L EH I EZIAE (i)  Proceeds from asset-backed securities (note) 2,355,149 2,237,786
JREAF 1] IS Interest payables 4,459,873 1,881,147
HoAt Others 26,713 43,792
13,851,357 12,531,788
L I S Less: Current portion 13,522,987 11,589,405
FE B 1A 356 4 Non-current portion 328,370 942,383

BRERE : 45 BR 45 B A B A e A A

Note: The balance represented proceeds received from a special purpose entity (“SPE”)

SRR BEE M E M (TR kB W E
) B EE AT A A SRR R IR
T A5 B TE 5 1 A4S 4 [ M 6 B ) 2
5 T Ui A 002 T R AR B 5 RE MK
THAEHEH - A48 A 45 B KRRk H
MR A T R A B R
5 i B8 4 T A5 3K TE IRE > A 4E
T e 7 S O R
BROEMESRE - R T =
FtHH=+—H > GEZHFH
I3 BT A5 3k TE 2 B ES 4 2 N R M
2,026,779,000 G ( — & = T4 ¢ A
R #1,295,403,0007C ) > JE B 1 &6
4y B N R 328,370,000 70 ( — &
TR s AR5 942,383,0000) e
WA WE RS RR
1 5 3 IH A R ¥ 990,159,000 G 11
BREERE ~F WAENA
S NH®WEE O =EF
H=+—HIL4EE > AEH KN
BHLE B ST R B IR R ME N BE T A
B AR - RAEEREANRKE
186,288,000 JG ~ A & ¥ 142,082,000
gt K N B #1,036,620,000 7C H &
BOAAEHE F RNENHAH
+EtH —FE ARE+—HANEA
K= FZPU4AEP H - JuH o

set up by a financial institution in Chinese Mainland for issuance of asset-
backed securities, to which the Group has collateralised certain future trade
receivables for the remaining receipts from sales of properties. Under an
assignment arrangement between the Group and the SPE, as and when the
Group receives the sales proceeds from customers, the Group would remit any
cash flows it collects on behalf of the SPE. As at 31 December 2023, the
current portion of the proceeds from asset-backed securities was
RMB2,026,779,000 (2022: RMB1,295,403,000) and the non-current portion
was RMB328,370,000 (2022: RMB942,383,000). During 2022, repayments
of the outstanding amount of RMB990,159,000 for asset-backed securities
have been extended to 28 April 2024. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group successfully negotiated with creditors of asset-backed
securities on the extension for repayments of principal and interest thereon.
Repayments of the outstanding amounts of RMB186,288,000,
RMB142,082,000 and RMB1,036,620,000 have been extended to 17
September 2026, 8 November 2026 and 19 April 2024, respectively.
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4

7. H fib E £} 3% JH & B G
2 )

Bk A\ B ¥ 2,355,149,000 70 (& —
oo N R %52,237,786,00070) & E L
Fi a8 5 &N R 460,313,000 70 ( —
T NRH573,610,000 70)
T Ik HE e B TR B GR A (% S5 K T
NF6nZE13% (—F 4 %
13%) 1) [ 2 A A 2R EEE) 0 2R H R
J& N W JE 1 AR At i A 2K
TH R g N B3GR A A AR5
JRE 22 B2 5K i 3 o Al B AST 3 JH A 4%
oAt B R Y 4 1 (B B AH RE A R
AT (E AH 2 -

28. MBI
& H B BRI

"FHREA

TR

27.

28.

Contract liabilities

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Continued)

Except for the asset-backed securities and certain advances from non-
controlling shareholders amounting to RMB2,355,149,000 (2022:
RMB2,237,786,000) and RMB460,313,000 (2022:
RMB573,610,000), respectively, which bear interest at fixed interest
rates ranging from 6% to 13% per annum (2022: 6% to 13%), other
payables and the remaining advances from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
repayable on demand. The fair values of other payables at the end of
each of the reporting periods approximated to their corresponding

carrying amounts.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Ro'—= S S woE—
+t=ZA=+—H +ZHA=+—H —H—H
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
A BT e A BT AR# T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
45,469,076 76,723,225 90,987,118

AEFBREYEHESIHESH
I S B A5 O 2 PR UCHRURR PR A K
KGR A S BT Z AT
HACHSHE MHE -

2 2 4 Rt EEEARAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing
schedules as established in the property sales or rental contracts.
Payments are usually received in advance of the performance under

the contracts which are mainly from sales and rental.



29. wt B SR AT B 2 Atb £ 5K

=

—

BATSERARMRE

Notes to Financial Statements
—— =4

31 December 2023

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

ZREZHEFZAZF—R
31 December 2023

SR FET

—“A=+—H

31 December 2022

] B A K (%) AMA ARETL FEBAE%) HMA ARETL
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
H 9 Current
TR -A MM Bank loans — secured 4.6-9 20244/ 242,189 9 2023 126,303
B K
2024/
on demand
WIATER-MIEM  Bank loans — unsecured 4.19-10 20244/ 478,877 4.19-4.82 2023 379,536
Bk
2024/
on demand
HMEH-FHIEM  Other loans — secured 9.8-12 20244/ 2,674,189 9.9-12 2023 2,715,432
RER
2024/
on demand
H A B - MBI Other loans — unsecured = - = 10 2023 109,696
BT EHME  Current portion of long 4-8.8 20244,/ 17,423,140 4.15-8.8 2023 16,448,535
B - K4 term bank loans WE R
— secured 2024/
on demand
EMMTERME  Current portion of long 4.68-8.88 HER 1,345,892 4.68-8.88 2023 1,675,221
A {7 — Jme i A term bank loans on demand
— unsecured
R H A B KA B Currene portion of long 2.8-11 20244/ 3,670,561 8.8-11 2023 4,246,357
B 0 — A AT term other loans HER
— secured 2024/
on demand
=t — ) Total — current 25,834,848 25,701,080
EIE Non-current
RATEH-AHEM  Bank loans — secured 43-85  2024-2035 2,022,481 43-62  2024-2035 4,587,247
HMER-FM  Other loans — secured 2.8-7.4  2025-2026 1,143,150 2.8-11 2025 595,270
i e S e Total — non-current 3,165,631 5,182,517
Y=t Total 29,000,479 30,883,597
2023 2022
AR ¥ T ANR¥Tox
RMB’000 RMB’000
(g N 4 S Interest bearing at:
[f] 58 F1) % Fixed rate 24,844,489 26,423,035
77 B | R Floating rate 4,155,990 4,460,562
st Total 29,000,479 30,883,597
—B=FFR
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29. wt B SRAT B 2 At £ 5K o)

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

e - kT
2023 2022
AR¥ T A R ¥ oo
RMB’000 RMB’000
I3 BT Analysed into:
JRE 8 7 SR AT B K Bank loans repayable
SH A — 4F (A B 47 oK Within one year or on demand 19,490,098 18,629,595
e In the second year 1,451,081 3,422,497
B = 5 AR In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(B & B R 4F) 571,400 1,058,750
W HAEE Beyond five years = 106,000
INEE Subtotal 21,512,579 23,216,842
JRE I 75 JFC Al 3K Other borrowings repayable:
ZH A — 4 TN B 4 SR Within one year or on demand 6,344,750 7,071,485
TR In the second year 1,045,150 127,270
REE = F 5 AR In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(L& & R 4F) 98,000 468,000
/Nat Subtotal 7,487,900 7,666,755
Mt Total 29,000,479 30,883,597

R_F_=F#+-_A=+—H>

As at 31 December 2023, the Group failed to repay or breached the

22

A 4R ok 8 R kR A 4 5T
B AT & H A %R A AR
9,459,284,000 TG (ZF "4 : AR
¥ 5,850,640,000 76 ) > o 1 7 )
i o [a] H > H I Y SR AT A AR
T BF G 2 A R R R o B OR % 4E
J& N F M R R A ST B R AT M H At
2 N R ¥52,735,166,000 7 ( — & —
ZAE s N R %3,190,998,0000T ) 5 H
Fh A bl A £ R

R 48 A 45 180 3508 40 1 3K b s > A HEE
B AR EH G B RIT X
HoAth £ ZIE N B9 AT ] A R
AH BE A RO R R R - R R
=FE+A=+—H > AE@EHNE
TEB R - & TR AT K HAh
Bk — N AR REY B
o ut AR % 6,684,544,000 TG (. F
— AR NR WK 7,347,230,00008)
B ER AT B o Ath £ FRZE e Bk
RoBE_FE =+ A =1—
H > bl 8 29 5 5 R 19 A8 338 51 R
TE A 5 [ %5 A RS OIR 00 2% 00 I )
BAHIE T o

Rt EEEARAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

covenants of certain interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
amounting to RMB9,459,284,000 (2022: RMB5,850,640,000),
which constituted an event of default. At the same date, there were
outstanding litigations commenced by banks in the PRC against
certain subsidiaries of the Group requesting such subsidiaries to
repay certain interest-bearing bank and other borrowings amounting
to RMB2,735,166,000 (2022: RMB3,190,998,000), which were
included in the above-mentioned defaulted borrowings.

Pursuant to agreements of some of the Group’s borrowings, any
default under the Group’s senior notes, corporate bonds or interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings will trigger the relevant
borrowings becoming repayable on demand. As at 31 December
2023, the Group was in default of certain senior notes, certain
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and a corporate bond,
causing interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of a total amount
of RMB6,684,544,000 (2022: RMB7,347,230,000) having become
repayable on demand. The above-mentioned borrowings that under
events of default are presented under current liabilities in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023.
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
are secured by the pledges of the following assets with carrying values
at the end of the reporting period as follows:

N S R F

+ZA=+—B +ZA=t+—H

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

AR Fx AR ¥FiL

RMB’000 RMB’000

Investment properties (note 14) 6,277,319 7,008,319
Right-of-use assets (note 15) 165,775 174,618
Properties under development (note 21) 33,019,538 56,708,147
Property, plant and equipment (note 13) 192,906 210,487
Completed properties held for sale (note 22) 11,260,898 1,579,940

WoEZ =A==+ —H &
45 2R A N IR M 415,499,000
Jm T4 NR 403,829,000

) B A B E B 2R R R T
%ﬁ s VB B WS 2 BN R K
132,154, 00075( T AR
325,423,000 76 ) 1 w5F B SR AT K H A

(ERGOE U

WoE_=F+_H=1T—H:"
KL MG s W IR B R R OR B
MAEHE FHRITERXRAR
2,460,750,000 70 ( =& = 4 AR
52 402,709,000 7T) 1 HiHE (R <

W_EF =+ _H=1T—H:
— 2 = B AR A TR AT
B N R 216,000,000 70 ( — & —
AR N R 216,000,000 00 ) 1E
Wk o

AN T BRRE CAT AL > B SRAT K
Al i BRAY 2 F- f B2 H AR T (E AR
Ao EARRAR BE b R % 4 i K
Ty 3 A BUAT T 45 A RO A £ 1 S
T 5755 =77 <o Pl M M D o

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has pledged future proceeds in
respect of properties sold amounting to RMB415,499,000 (2022:
RMB403,829,000) as collateral to secure interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings amounting to RMB132,154,000 (2022:
RMB325,423,000).

As at 31 December 2023, the non-controlling shareholders of the
Group’s subsidiaries have guaranteed certain of the Group’s bank
loans amounting to RMB2,460,750,000 (2022: RMB2,402,709,000).

As at 31 December 2023, a third party have guaranteed certain of the
Group’s bank loans amounting to RMB216,000,000 (2022:
RMB216,000,000).

The management of the Company has assessed that the fair values of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the fact that such borrowings were
made between the Group and independent third party financial

institutions based on prevailing market interest rates.

—=—
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30. SENIOR NOTES

ZRIEEFCAZES R ZEICEFCAZSH
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
84 Ji
K& g
Principal Principal
atoriginal  AHIAIE acoriginal A%
currency Contractual currency  Contractual
T ineresc ~ FMIA AREFL T inerest  FMIH ARMTIL
000 rate (%)  Maturity RMB’000 000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
SR TEFM 2 BREHI  Senior notes due 2022 11T VINRE T NIEST
(gt Smtnt: 3¢ -3i )] (2022 Notes I1I") US$22,777 8.70% 2022 161,853 US$22,777 8.70% 2022 159,159
CEZCHBIMZ BRFHEL  Senior notes due 202311 300,000% 76 300,000 G
(ZF-=fpEg)) (2023 Notes II") US5$300,000 9.15% 2023 2,158,229 US$300,000 9.15% 2023 2,115,305
SR CER 2B EIET  Senior notes due 2024 1 290,000 G 290,000 &
([ZZP4EE ) (2024 Notes I') US$$290,000 7.88% 2024 2,085,497 U8$290,000 7.88% 2024 2,044,772
CECNERMZ BRI Senior notes due 202411 200,000 76 200,000 G
([ZRPEEE) (2024 Notes II") US$200,000 8.35% 2024 1,451,044 1$$200,000 835% 2024 1,422,183
- 3: SR Z BRI Senior notes due 2023 1T 200,000 76 200,000 1T
‘z:zﬁ‘-gﬁlm (2023 Notes I1I) US$200,000 8.30% 2023 1,451,974 1$$200,000 8.30% 2023 1,422,641
CECHENMZELRERL  Senior notes due 20251 349,000 78 349,000% 7T
(ZZZREERE) (2025 Notes I’) US8$349,000 7.35% 2025 2,516,671 US$349,000 7.35% 2025 2468459
RN Z BEREHEL  Senior notes due 20261 393,000 G 393,000 7T
([ZRZAEZER) (2026 Notes I') US$393,000 6.63% 2026 2,833,992 US$393,000 6.63% 2026 2,806,085
CETNERM Z BREET  Senior notes due 202611 291,0005 7 291,000% G
([ZBZAEZERI) (2026 Notes I1") US$$291,000 6.70% 2026 2,104,976 US$291,000 6.70% 2026 2,066,385
SR EIMZBREEIV  Senior notes due 2022 IV B361ETE B361ETT
([ZRZZHEFERV) (2022 Notes IV") US$23,361 5.98% 2022 154,015 US§23,361 5.98% 2022 151451
CECERM Z BERZI  Senior notes due 2024 11T 340,000 78 340,000 70
([ZF 4R (2024 Notes TIT") U$8340,000 7.10% 2024 2,385,752 US$340,000 7.10% 2024 2,370,769
CECCESIMZ BERTEY  Senior notes due 2022V N RO AE¥s 14170
(ot Spet: 3% -3 1) (“2022 Notes V") RMBS, 141 7.13% 2022 8,897 RMBS, 141 7.125% 2022 8,580
ZEZEHIMBRERVE  Senior notes due 2022 VI AR W 1.87970 AR 187970
([ HEEEv) (2022 Notes VI") RMBI,879 7.13% 2022 2,041 RMBLST9  7.125% 2022 1974
CEZFEHIM BRI Senior notes due 2022 VII 17,739 % 78 17,739 % 78
([ZR-HEEREV) (2022 Notes VII') US$17,739 6.50% 2022 130,162 US$17,739 6.50% 2022 127,99
MELEE New USD Notes 728623% T 7863 F T
(CE-ZHEEEV) (2023 Notes IV") US$728,623 8.00% 2023 5,098,395 US$728,623 8.00% 2023 5,084,900
FINL T New RMB Notes AR 1,589,980 78 N 1,589,980 76
([ZZZ=ZFEEV]) (2023 Notes V") RMB1,589,980 8.00% 2023 1,618,715 RMBI,589,980 8.00% 2023 1,608,887
Wi 2 st Total current portion 24,162,213 23,859,544
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5 =P ) 30. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

+ZA=+—H +ZA=+—H
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
AR Fix AR #F oo
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RENE S R The Group's senior notes were repayable
as follows:
JEFN — 4F A B 4 B R fE R Repayable within one year or on demand 24,162,213 23,859,544

SR AERERI

W F—JLFE+TH=H> AQH
BEAT A 4 #FH £5 300,000,000 3 TG 1)
TR T AR PR L A AR
87% » Wk & = AFEFIH o AR
7?%)‘)?’5 X JH {5 %6 293,962,000 35

TG (KR 40 B A0 85 4 40 B 4 4 DA I

m%i M FEZ_HFNA=H
Z T A AR BRF (] > A % ) AT 288 4% 4 T

bih il G S — S
SERIII - I [B] 18 15 R A B A
o Bk A B R

BE-Z -4 =-H_+—H> &
£ [ 2 1] B AR 4 457,000,000 5 G 1)
TR T AR EI e R S F

A=t H > AREE TR

CETERRIIA A R A K TR A
K (| H B TR H B & 5T ] 78
TEHA) » A 4 B S5 270,223,000 5
T R T AR R I g 8 I 58
Wk & - = F RV O
TR RN AR B M OREE AR S A
22,777,000 76 A & . AR\ H
= H s AR R AR S AT R R M

A 42 22,777,000 3 I # [7] H HE 5T A
B H R E L EA -

2022 Notes III

On 3 October 2019, the Company issued the 2022 Notes III at a
coupon rate of 8.7% due within 2022 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$300,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$293,962,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 3 August 2022, the Company might redeem the 2022 Notes
IIT at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the

redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

By the end of 21 March 2022, the Group has repurchased the 2022
Notes III in a principal amount of US$7,000,000. On 29 March
2022, the Company completed the exchange offer and consent
solicitation for 2022 Notes III, which extended the maturity date
and waived any potential defaults, resulting in an aggregate principal
amount of US$270,223,000 of 2022 Notes III being cancelled and
exchanged to 2023 Notes IV, and the remaining outstanding
principal amount of the 2022 Notes III was US$22,777,000. On 3
August 2022, the Company failed to make the payment of the
remaining outstanding principal amount of US$22,777,000, together

with interest accrued thereon, which constituted an event of default.
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30.

23

%%ﬁ%%ww
TR EEERN

W ZFE—NFE+T—HANH AR
A AT A 4 #4FH £ 300,000,000 3 T
M) % = AR PRI s B AR A
9.15% » Wt = F T ZAEF ] o A
45 ) AT BT AR 3K IE 1 #296,629,000
26 70 (F8 0 B 6 85 B 40 B 4 4 DL &
HABB ) c A ZF =4 H AN
H 2 B A AT I5F [ > 7S 2% &) nl 2 4
L7 o el = R CIIK = = T e
A EEAR T o M )R I R AH BE 5%
EMEBRNEE R T =
AZ+JLH > RS R SRR #ER
BEA NZHR D aE —F
AR SR ITA B A AT AT VR AE R A o
R oFEEZFRHANHE AAFE
BE 2 AT B R R fE 72 4 4:300,000,000

5% 0 (R FLRE R A o FLRE U 4
H o
R CNEREI

W _F_EF—-HATWHE AR
) AT A 4 MR 55 290,000,000 3 T
M) 2 DY AR B R B R R A
7.88% » M A T F DU AR B MY o AR
45 ) AT T AT 3K IH 1 %0 286,288,000
26 70 (FE 0 B 6 85 B 40 e i 4 DL &
HAh B ) o —F AN A+
VY H 2 1 A AT IRF ] AR 2\ &) BT 4% 7]
6 i E Y I ) ) R AR
PR o MR [ AE A FEE R A B uE
sk TN o E =
Zt+JuH > R ROk CEEE
FeA N> DR & - ug
R TA B AT [T T AR ) o

BE-F_=H+_H=+—H"
AN AR BE R A U AR AR
TR I T AT S AT R R 45,675,000
Xt HEBELHEM -

Rt EEEARAE
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30.

SENIOR NOTES (Continned)
2023 Notes 11

On 6 November 2019, the Company issued the 2023 Notes II at a
coupon rate of 9.15% due within 2023 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$300,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$296,629,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 6 May 2023, the Company may redeem the 2023 Notes II at
a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the redemption
price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum. On 29
March 2022, the concurrent consent solicitation has been accepted by
the note holders to waive any potential defaults in respect of the
2023 Notes II. On 6 May 2023, the Company failed to make the
payment of the remaining outstanding principal amount of
US$300,000,000,

constituted an event of default.

together with interest accrued thereon, which

2024 Notes I

On 14 January 2020, the Company issued the 2024 Notes I at a
coupon rate of 7.88% due within 2024 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$290,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$286,288,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 14 April 2024, the Company may redeem the 2024 Notes I
at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the redemption
price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum. On 29
March 2022, the concurrent consent solicitation was accepted by the
note holders to waive any potential defaults in respect of the 2024
Notes I.

By the end of 31 December 2023, the Company failed to pay interest
in the amount of US$45,675,000 before expiry of the grace period
for the 2024 Notes I, which constituted an event of default.
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%%ﬁ%ﬁcm
R CYEEREND

MoEZEERHA A+ —H AR
) BE AT A 4 #UEE 15 200,000,000 3 I
M) % Z U AR R PR - B R R A
8.35% » M A & T U AE B M o A
45 ) AT BT AT 3KIH 1 #197,345,000
26 70 (F8 0 B 6 85 B 40 B 4 4 DL &
HABB ) -y —F ZWE=H +
H 2 Fif AE AT IF ] > AN 20 &) nl 4% 786 %6
i A I Dl ] R Y AR R
PRI o B[] 5 0 5 R A A B
EERTE R T =
RINEINCEATID-¢- S L% T8
BN > DUER o B g AR B
PEILA B Y AT ] Y8 A2 47 o

BE-F_=#+-_H=+—H>
AN F R AR A T AE E PR
B R BA AT 2 AT R 33,400,000
FTr o HAE R A F A -

AN AN E]H OB R F AR =
AR H NS RHE
ZHE+FH=Z+—H%E AR
& BE AT R E R A 42 200,000,000 3
gt (A0 & A &) N R %1,416,540,000
g6 ) [ HRE SRR H R R A
HAF o

TR BRI

W oZEEZEANATHEHHE AR
) B AT A 4 HEE 55 200,000,000 3 T
M) =& T AR R SRR G
83% » Mt —FE = AEFIH] o AN
] 349 BT 45 3K IH 3 #H197,594,000
JG (K6 $00 Bk B 8 3 0 S AR 4 DA R B
Bl %) o —E =FNAA TR
H 2 1l A AT I ] > AR 20 &) nJ 4% 786 46
R A E R e S o )
PRI o JE [ (B 0 5 I R AH B BE A A
SRS R S E =
RINEINCEATID-¢- S L8 T8
BN DI - % = = F 5
P B AP TSR - R &
TEENATRE > AN EREE
% R AE 75 AR 42200,000,000 5 5T 2 7]
HEFT RS R L HA -
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SENIOR NOTES (Continned)
2024 Notes II

On 21 May 2020, the Company issued the 2024 Notes II at a coupon
rate of 8.35% due within 2024 with an aggregate principal amount
of US$200,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$197,345,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 10 March 2024, the Company may redeem the 2024 Notes
II at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.
On 29 March 2022, the concurrent consent solicitation was accepted
by the note holders to waive any potential defaults in respect of the
2024 Notes II.

By the end of 31 December 2023, the Company failed to pay interest
in the amount of US$33,400,000 before expiry of the grace period
for the 2024 Notes II, which constituted an event of default.

Subsequent to 31 December 2023, the Company failed to make the
payment of the outstanding principal amount of US$200,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,416,540,000), together with
interest accrued thereon, which constituted an event of default, as
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 6 March 2024.

2023 Notes 111

On 15 June 2020, the Company issued the 2023 Notes III at a
coupon rate of 8.3% due within 2023 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$200,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$197,594,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 15 September 2023, the Company may redeem the 2023
Notes III at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.
On 29 March 2022, the concurrent consent solicitation was accepted
by the note holders to waive any potential defaults in respect of the
2023 Notes III. On 15 September 2023, the Company failed to make
the payment of the remaining outstanding principal amount of
US$200,000,000, together with interest accrued thereon, which

constituted an event of default.
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23

BRI )

AR IR T

MR -FEEZFIA+—H > AR
7?‘ ﬁ%fﬁ”ﬁﬁ'&asooooooo%m
m%>ﬁﬂ:%*£¢ﬁ%°$
45 ) AT BT AT 3K IH 1 345,592,000
50 (F8 41 B A 85 1 40 B 4 DA
HABB L) - A —F _HE A A
H 2 Fif AE AT IF ] > AN 20 &) nl 4% 786 %6
Rt U E R e S I o)
PRI o JE ] AR 0 FE O A BE B
SEk PR R F T A S
RINEINCEATID-¢- S L% T8
BN I = = A FE
PEIUH B AT AR & 4 o AL E
B[] i 4 42 51,000,000 3 T [ — &
THAEEEL -

_AFF,_A

HEF - =#£+_H=1+—H:

AN T ARG F AT RN
BT BR 3 T T AT S A AR 51,450,000

KL > KA MR A F A

CERIOANERREI

WoFE—F—HLH AQHA
B AT A 4 MR £ 400,000,000 9 TT
M) N AR AR S AR A
6.63% > W & TN BB o A
7 ) AT T 45 3K JH 7 %H395,850,000
2 70 (K840 Br 00 85 37 0 K A 4 DA K
HAME L) - R_ZE_ANFE— A+t
H 2 A AT AT IR [H] > AR 28 &) n] 4% 78 4
i A2 I I A ] O N AR R
PRI o B[] 0 I R AR B R R A
SRR FE  F=H
TILH [P ECR O SRR
BN D = N
BIA BT EERL - AEEH
E 1] A 4 /57,000,000 3 T Y —F
TONMEEREL -

BE_Z-_=Ft+ZH=1—H>
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30.

SENIOR NOTES (Continned)
2025 Notes I

On 11 September 2020, the Company issued the 2025 Notes I at a
coupon rate of 7.35% due within 2025 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$350,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$345,592,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 5 February 2025, the Company may redeem the 2025 Notes
I at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the redemption
price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum. On 29
March 2022, the concurrent consent solicitation was accepted by the
note holders to waive any potential defaults in respect of the 2025
Notes I. The Group has repurchased the 2025 Notes I in the
principal amount of US$1,000,000.

By the end of 31 December 2023, the Company failed to pay interest
in the amount of US$51,450,000 before expiry of the grace period
for the 2025 Notes I, which constituted an event of default.

2026 Notes I

On 7 January 2021, the Company issued the 2026 Notes I at a
coupon rate of 6.63% due within 2026 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$400,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$395,850,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 7 January 2026, the Company may redeem the 2026 Notes I
at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the redemption
price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum. On 29
March 2022, the concurrent consent solicitation was accepted by the
note holders to waive any potential defaults in respect of the 2026
Notes I. The Group has repurchased the 2026 Notes I in the
principal amount of US$7,000,000.

By the end of 31 December 2023, the Company failed to pay interest
in the amount of US$39,780,000 before expiry of the grace period
for the 2026 Notes I, which constituted an event of default.
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SENIOR NOTES (Continned)
2026 Notes I1

On 4 February 2021, the Company issued the 2026 Notes II at a
coupon rate of 6.7% due within 2026 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$300,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$296,661,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 4 August 2026, the Company may redeem the 2026 Notes
The details of the

redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

II at a pre-determined redemption price.

On 29 March 2022, the concurrent consent solicitation was accepted
by the note holders to waive any potential defaults in respect of the
2026 Notes II. The Group has repurchased the 2026 Notes II in the
principal amount of US$9,000,000.

By the end of 31 December 2023, the Company failed to pay interest
in the amount of US$38,994,000 before expiry of the grace period
for the 2026 Notes II, which constituted an event of default.

2022 Notes IV

On 15 April 2021, the Company issued the 2022 Notes IV at a
coupon rate of 5.98% due within 2021 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$220,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$218,468,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 13 April 2022, the Company might redeem the 2022 Notes
IV at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the

redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.
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2022 Notes IV (Continued)

On 29 March 2022, the Company completed the exchange offer and
consent solicitation for the 2022 Notes IV, which extended the
maturity date and waived any potential defaults, resulting in an
aggregate principal amount of US$196,639,000 of the 2022 Notes
IV being cancelled and exchanged to the 2023 Notes IV, and the
remaining outstanding principal amount of the 2022 Notes IV was
US$23,361,000. On 13 April 2022, the Company failed to make the
payment of the remaining outstanding principal amount of
US$23,361,000, together with interest accrued thereon, which

constituted an event of default.

2024 Notes III

On 10 June 2021, the Company issued the 2024 Notes III at a
coupon rate of 7.1% due within 2024 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$340,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$333,240,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 10 September 2024, the Company may redeem the 2024
Notes III at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.
On 29 March 2022, the concurrent consent solicitation was accepted
by the note holders to waive any potential defaults in respect of the
2024 Notes III.

By the end of 31 December 2023, the Company failed to pay interest
in the amount of US$48,280,000 before expiry of the grace period
for the 2024 Notes III, which constituted an event of default.
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SENIOR NOTES (Continned)
2022 Notes V

On 2 July 2021, the Company issued the 2022 Notes V at a coupon
rate of 7.125% due within 2022 with an aggregate principal amount
of RMB1,300,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
RMB1,292,350,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 30 June 2022, the Company might redeem the 2022 Notes
V at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the

redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

On 29 March 2022, the Company completed the exchange offer and
consent solicitation for the 2022 Notes V, which extended the
maturity date and waived any potential defaults, resulting in an
aggregate principal amount of RMB1,291,859,000 of the 2022
Notes V being cancelled and exchanged to 2023 Notes V, and the
remaining outstanding principal amount of the 2022 Notes V was
RMBS,141,000. On 30 June 2022, the Company failed to make the
payment of the remaining outstanding principal amount of
RMBS8,141,000,

constituted an event of default.

together with interest accrued thereon, which

2022 Notes VI

On 2 July 2021, the Company issued the 2022 Notes VI at a coupon
rate of 7.125% due within 2022 with an aggregate principal amount
of RMB300,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
RMB298,717,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 30 June 2022, the Company might redeem the 2022 Notes
VI at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the

redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

“EC=FER
Annual Report 2023

235



iR et

Notes to Financial Statements
—E A=+ —H

31 December 2023

30.

23

B R E
RO CEZEEVIGE

MRZFZ_F=ZHZFILHE > AR
F) B GE AL AR SRR VI 28
A LFEEER (B WECERE
ARBR_EZ-_=F=ZHAHE#H R
T EREED)  AEREHAR
#208,121,000 G ) — & — AR B gE
VIE GRS e iy — % = =R
Vo I R T AR R VIR B T
T AE R AR 4 B N R 1,879,000 G ©
At s A & [ sl = PR N/
REZEE T RMEBEAS ARE
1,879,000 G % [7] 1 fE &1 A & H A%
FHE A A

RO OHEEE VI

W oFE - —FIH=ZH > AN F
47 AR 4 8 FE £ 250,000,000 3 TG [
SRRV ARG
65% > Wk T AFEFNW o AR
) 28 15 7 45 3K I 1 4H 247,595,000

JG (48 310 Bk 2 81 3 400 K A 4 DA B H
B %) o i —F Z AFJLH —H
2 AT ] IR [R] > A 2 ) w28 45 4 7
S R 2 B e ) R
AR VID o B ] A8 E G P A BE EE
05 Bk A B R -

BE_Z-__HF=H_+—H &
%@EEE%ZK%?%BWOOOO%%

B K O EEVI R &
:EEH:+hH>$“7Bmm
TR T AR EVIIN AL E A

F &k (B HEEREAER
TR =MEZH HE BT

TEHEA)) > A4 B 15 218,761,000 3
JUI R T AR R vID 58I
Ty & SRRV

_E%%m%%Tﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
& £517,739,000F 76 o A —~F
JUH—H > AT KRBT T £
8 8 AR 4217,739,000 3¢ G L W] H
FTARLE o FLAE A A4 S A o

Rt EEEARAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

30.

SENIOR NOTES (Continned)
2022 Notes VI (Continued)

On 29 March 2022, the Company completed the exchange offer and
consent solicitation for 2022 Notes VI, which extended the maturity
date no earlier than March 2023 and waived any potential defaults,
resulting in an aggregate principal amount of RMB298,121,000 of
the 2022 Notes VI being cancelled and exchanged to the 2023 Notes
V, and the remaining outstanding principal amount of the 2022
Notes VI was RMB1,879,000. On 30 June 2022, the Company
failed to make the payment of the remaining outstanding principal
amount of RMB1,879,000, together with interest accruing thereon,
which constituted an event of default.

2022 Notes VII

On 3 September 2021, the Company issued the 2022 Notes VII at a
coupon rate of 6.5% due within 2022 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$250,000,000. The Company raised net proceeds of
US$247,595,000 (after deduction of underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses). At any time and from time to time
prior to 1 September 2022, the Company may redeem the 2022
Notes VII at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the

redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

By the end of 21 March 2022, the Group has repurchased the 2022
Notes VII in the principal amount of US$13,500,000. On 29 March
2022,
solicitation for 2022 Notes VII, which extended the maturity date no

the Company completed the exchange offer and consent

earlier than March 2023 and waived any potential defaults, resulting
in an aggregate principal amount of US$218,761,000 of the 2022
Notes VII being cancelled and exchanged to the 2023 Notes IV, and
the remaining outstanding principal amount of the 2022 Notes VII
was US$17,739,000. On 1 September 2022, the Company failed to
make the payment of the remaining outstanding principal amount of
US$17,739,000,
constituted an event of default.

together with interest accrued thereon, which
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SENIOR NOTES (Continned)
2023 Notes IV

On 29 March 2022, with the completion of the exchange offer and
consent solicitation, the Company issued the 2023 Notes IV at a
coupon rate of 8% due in March 2023 with an aggregate principal
amount of US$728,623,000, in exchange for the 2022 Notes III,
2022 Notes IV, 2022 Notes VII and 5.95% Senior Notes due March
2022, which were guaranteed by the Company and issued by ZhenAn
Glory Investment Limited, a joint venture of the Company. At any
time and from time to time prior to 6 March 2023, the Company
may redeem the 2023 Notes IV at a pre-determined redemption
price. The details of the redemption price are disclosed in the relevant
offering memorandum. On 6 March 2023, the Company failed to
make the payment of the remaining outstanding principal amount of
US$728,623,000,
constituted an event of default.

together with interest accrued thereon, which

2023 Notes V

On 29 March 2022, with the completion of the exchange offer and
consent solicitation, the Company issued the 2023 Notes V at a
coupon rate of 8% due in March 2023 with an aggregate principal
amount of RMB1,589,980,000, in exchange for the 2022 Notes V
and 2022 Notes VI. At any time and from time to time prior to 6
March 2023, the Company may redeem the 2023 Notes V at a pre-
determined redemption price. The details of the redemption price are
disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum. On 6 March 2023,
the Company failed to make the payment of the remaining
outstanding principal amount of RMB1,589,980,000, together with

interest accrued thereon, which constituted an event of default.
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30.

SENIOR NOTES (Continned)
2023 Notes V (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had not repaid an aggregate
amount of principal and interest of RMB12,763,266,000 (31
December 2022: RMB455,572,000) for certain senior notes and an
aggregate amount of interest of RMB1,824,355,000 (31 December
2022: RMB1,520,715,000) for certain senior notes according to their
scheduled repayment dates, triggering events of default for certain
senior notes amounting to RMB13,377,932,000 (31 December
2022: RMB23,410,386,000), which are presented under current
liabilities in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2023.

If an event of default has occurred (such as the 30-day grace period
lapses) and is continuing, the trustee or holders of at least 25% in the
aggregate principal amount of the senior notes then outstanding
may, by written notice to the Company and to the trustee, declare
the principal of, premium, if any, and accrued and unpaid interest on
the relevant senior notes to be immediately due and payable (the

“Acceleration Notice”).

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
the Company has not received any Acceleration Notice as a result of
the non-payment of principals or interest for aforementioned senior

notes.

The 2022 Notes III, IV, V, VI and VII, the 2023 Notes II, III, IV
and V, 2024 Notes I, IT and III, 2025 Notes I, and 2026 Notes I and
I are guaranteed by certain of the Group’s existing subsidiaries.

The fair values of the early redemption options of the 2023 Notes II,
III, IV and V, 2024 Notes I, II and III, 2025 Notes I, and 2026
Notes I and II were not significant and therefore were not recognised
by the Group on inception and at 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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SRS
SRR +=A
—H—H o B % B #% =+—H
e E Name of bonds 1 January Interest 31 December
2023 Issued expense Payment 2023
ARBTL ARBETFT ARWFLT AR¥TLT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EREHRY Zhenro Bond V 1,123,101 - 64,671 - 1,187,772
EAE v Zhenro Bond VII 1,079,297 = 54,598 1,128 1,132,767
1E &5 v Zhenro Bond VIII 1,062,003 = 54,492 1,120 1,115,375
EAMEIRIX Zhenro Bond IX 1,430,986 = 88,346 1,505 1,517,827
Tt Total 4,695,387 = 262,107 3,753 4,953,741
SE L E
=B== +=H
—H—H D1 BB £ 3K ==F
&5 4 1 Name of bonds 1 January Interest 31 December
2022 Issued expense Payment 2022
ANRBTIT ANRBTIT ARBFTT AREETFIT ARETFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
IE G5y Zhenro Bond V 1,058,429 - 64,672 - 1,123,101
EREHVI Zhenro Bond VII 1,016,157 = 64,003 863 1,079,297
IEAE v Zhenro Bond VIII 1,012,194 - 55,140 5,331 1,062,003
N2 e3¢ Zhenro Bond IX 1,352,070 - 80,163 1,247 1,430,986
4t Total 4,438,850 - 263,978 7,441 4,695,387

AR BER o AN 4 T R AE R 19 4 R AR

As at the end of each of the years, the Group’s corporate bonds were

FHWR repayable as follows:
+ZH=Z=+—H +ZHA=1+—H
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
AR ¥ T ANR¥TFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
) AN R S -t Repayable within one year or on demand 1,187,772 4,695,387
N =B AAEE R Repayable within third to five years 3,765,969 =
At Total 4,953,741 4,695,387

—B=FFR
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31.

CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)
Zhenro Bond V

On 4 November 2019, Zhenro Property Holdings issued a three-year
corporate bond with a principal amount of RMB1,050,000,000
(“Zhenro Bond V). Zhenro Bond V is denominated in RMB and
bears interest at a rate of 6.0% per annum, payable annually in
arrears, beginning on 4 November 2020. After deducting the
issuance costs, the Group received net proceeds of
RMB1,045,275,000 from the issuance. The effective interest rate was
6.17% on an annual basis for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

As at 31 December 2023, Zhenro Property Holdings had failed to
repay the principal and interest of RMB1,187,772,000 (31 December
2022: RMB1,123,101,000), which constituted an event of default.

Zhenro Bond VII and VIII

On 27 July 2020, Zhenro Property Holdings issued a five-year
corporate bond with a principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000
(“Zhenro Bond VII”), which was listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Zhenro Bond VII is denominated in RMB and bears
interest at a rate of 5.75% per annum, payable annually in arrears,
beginning 27 July 2021. After deducting the issuance costs, the
Group received net proceeds of RMB991,437,000 from the issuance.
The effective interest rates were 5.82% and 5.95%, respectively, on
an annual basis for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Pursuant to the a series of announcements in 2023, Zhenro Property
Holdings successfully extended the repayment of interest and the
outstanding principal to 27 January 2027, and waived any potential
defaults with respect to Zhenro Bond VII.
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CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)
Zhenro Bond VII and VIII

On 14 September 2020, Zhenro Property Holdings issued a four-year
corporate bond with a principal amount of RMB1,000,000,000
(“Zhenro Bond VIII”), which was listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Zhenro Bond VIII is denominated in RMB and bears
interest at a rate of 5.45% per annum, payable annually in arrears,
beginning 14 September 2021. After deducting the issuance costs,
the Group received net proceeds of RMB994,369,000 from the
issuance. The effective interest rates were 5.42% and 5.61%,
respectively, on an annual basis for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

Pursuant to the a series of announcements in 2023, Zhenro Property
Holdings successfully extended the repayment of interest and the
outstanding principal to 14 March 2027, and waived any potential
defaults with respect to Zhenro Bond VIII.

Zhenro Bond IX

On 23 July 2021, Zhenro Property Holdings issued a four-year
corporate bond with a principal amount of RMB1,320,000,000
(“Zhenro Bond IX”). Zhenro Bond IX is denominated in RMB and
bears interest at a rate of 6.3% per annum, payable annually in
arrears, beginning 23 July 2022. After deducting the issuance costs,
the Group received net proceeds of RMB1,314,875,000 from the
issuance. The effective interest rates were 6.14% and 6.41%,
respectively, on an annual basis for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

Pursuant to a series of announcements in 2023, Zhenro Property
Holdings successfully extended the repayment of interest and the
outstanding principal to 23 January 2028, and waived any potential
defaults with respect to Zhenro Bond IX.
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31.

CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)
Zhenro Bond IX (Continued)

Pursuant to the announcement of the bondholders’ meeting
resolutions, the outstanding principal amount along with accrued
unpaid interest has been included in the unit price of Zhenro Bond
VII, Zhenro Bond VIII and Zhenro Bond IX.

Furthermore, Zhenro Property Holdings has agreed to provide
enhanced security measures for Zhenro Bond VII and Zhenro Bond
IX by leveraging the equity income rights associated with the
following equity interests:

o The aggregate 100% equity income rights pertaining to the
“Nanjing Zhenro Center Mall and Office Tower” held by
Jiangxi Zhenro Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and Zhenro
Zhengtai Hongkong Limited;

o The aggregate 100% equity income rights related to the “Foshan
Zhangcha Jihua Zhenro Mansion Project” held by Zhengding
(Foshan) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and Zhenro
Zhengheng Hongkong Limited;

o The aggregate 100% equity income rights concerning the “Wuhan
Guanggu Zhenro Mansion Project” held by Wuhan
Zhengxiang Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd.;

o The collective 100% equity income rights attached to the “Yichun
Yuelinlong Phase II Project” held by Jiangxi Zhengrong Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. and Nanchang Zhengteng Real
Estate Co., Ltd;
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3 1. CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)

Zhenro Bond IX (Continued)

o The 40% equity income rights in the “Dongtou Zhenro
Mansion Project” held indirectly by Nanchang Shiou Properties
Development Co., Ltd.;

o The aggregate 51% equity income rights associated with the
“Nanchang Qingyun Chenyuan Project” held indirectly
through Nanchang Zhenro (Singapore) Real Estate Co., Ltd.
and Nanchang Zhengding Real Estate Co., Ltd..

These equity income rights serve as collateral to ensure repayment of
the Zhenro Bond VII and Zhenro Bond IX.

As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of the corporate bonds was
RMB2,516,379,000 (2022: RMB1,381,289,000). The fair value is
calculated using the market price of the bonds on those dates. The
fair value measurement of Zhenro Bond VII, Zhenro Bond VIII and
Zhenro Bond IX issued by Zhenro Property Holdings is categorised
within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy as they are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. The fair value measurement of Zhenro
Bond V issued by Zhenro Property Holdings is categorised within

Level 2 of fair value hierarchy as it is not listed.
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32. A 32. SHARE CAPITAL
W% Shares
TR TS e Santunt
+ZH=+—H +ZA=1+—H
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
B E
Us$ Us$
E8AIT AR Issued and fully paid:
4,367,756,000 it (=% — 4 4,367,756,000 (2022: 4,367,756,000)
4,367,756,000 ) E&Hﬁﬁfﬁ ordinary shares of US$0.00001 each
0.00001 F JC (ZF = T4F M (2022: US$0.00001 each)
T {H.0.00001 32 JT) 1 % 48 A 43,678 43,678
AN T A 55 B M B AR A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as
follows:
o817
i 4y % H it A%
Number of Share
shares in issue capital
AR #TF T
RMB’000
WoEZZAFE—H—H - At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and
ZE T ZH =Z+—HK 31 December 2023
“E =+t ZH=+—H 4,367,756,000 282
o
&ty B H Ji A
Number of Share
shares in issue capital
A B ¥F o
RMB’000
W_E - —H—H—H - At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and
“E -+ A =+—HMKk 31 December 2022
“F-__HE+ZA=+—H 4,367,756,000 282
FERARNFE §§ TR A NI A A ) There were no movements in the issued share capital of the Company
(T — 4 i) during the year (2022: Nil).

2 Ar 4 Rt EEEARAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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33. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for

the year ended 31 December 2023 are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par
value of the shares issued and the consideration received.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the issued capital
of the then holding company of the companies now comprising
the Group and the capital contributions from the equity
holders of certain subsidiaries now comprising the Group
before the completion of the Corporate Restructuring and the

Reorganisation.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the difference between the cost of
acquisition and the non-controlling interests acquired in the
case of acquisition of additional non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries, or, the difference between the proceeds from
disposal and the non-controlling interests disposed of in the
case of disposal of partial equity interests in subsidiaries to non-
controlling shareholders without loss of control. Details of the
movements in the capital reserve are set out in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

Statutory surplus reserves

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, the
Group is required to appropriate 10% of its net profits after
tax, as determined under the Chinese Accounting Standards, to
the statutory surplus reserves until the reserve balance reaches
50% of its registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set
out in the relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of
association of the Group, the statutory surplus reserves may be
used either to offset losses, or to be converted to increase share
capital provided that the balance after such conversion is not
less than 25% of the registered capital of the Group. The
reserves cannot be used for purposes other than those for which

they are created and are not distributable as cash dividends.
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33.

34. 7

24
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Perpetual Capital Securities II

33. RESERVES (Continned)

(e) Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of group entities. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2.4 to the

financial statements.

34. PERPETUAL CAPITAL SECURITIES

Classified as Liabilities

e e R F
+=ZA=Z+—H" +ZHA=1+—H
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

AR¥ T A R ¥F e
RMB’000 RMB’000
1,391,908 1,311,845

Mo E—ENATILA > AN
B 4T R 4 %8 £ 200,000,000 3% T Y 12
oK BB AR R ([ 8 & A& F
101) o 405k 347 B AS 4% 1Y BT 15 3 IE

T A 48 % 5198,274,000 35 T © 7K 4
AR RS S E M 2 BB H > Rl
AKNTEBHR F - F— 7
I H B DA AR F AR SRR A R L
oA Bk 2 R S AT O [ o TH H
BITAEE - 4E - -+
HH B 43 IR 2R A 4 B F10.25% 0 N
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S 0 £ gk A AR 55 5 ILAE A AR Bk
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B 23 UR BAE AT R SR A R
b WA N = N (= N 1 2 i
BT[]~ BB - M [ B DAAT ]
A e B o AR 7 ) AT 988 45 I ] 23
1M FE B 43 78 F5 o A4 6] 0 4 55 AT 3
A TR B4~ AR S 84T

a7 JHL B [ A o

Rt EEEARAE
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On 19 June 2019, the Company issued senior perpetual capital
securities (the “Perpetual Capital Securities I1”) with the principal
amount of US$200,000,000. Net proceeds after deducting the issue
cost amounted to US$198,274,000 in total. The Perpetual Capital
Securities II have no fixed maturity date and are redeemable on or
after 25 January 2022 at the Company’s option at the principal
amount together with accrued, unpaid or deferred distribution
payments. The distribution rate for the instruments is 10.25% per
annum from the date of issue to 25 January 2022, then increases by 5%
per annum thereafter. No guarantee or pledge was made by the
Group for the Perpetual Capital Securities II. The Company may, at
its sole discretion, elect to defer a distribution pursuant to the terms
of the securities. Unless and until the Company satisfies in full all
outstanding arrears of distribution and any additional distribution
amount, the Company shall not declare or pay any dividends or
distributions, or make payment on, and will procure that no dividend
or other payment is made on or redeem, reduce, cancel, buyback or
acquire for any consideration thereof. Securities may be redeemed at
the option of the Company, in whole but not in part. The Company
has no obligation to deliver cash in respect of the perpetual

instruments, pay interest nor exercise its right of redemption.
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31 December 2023

34. PERPETUAL CAPITAL SECURITIES (Continued)

Classified as Liabilities (Continued)

On 29 March 2022, the consent solicitation for the Perpetual Capital
Securities IT was completed. The Company postponed the redemption
of the securities to 6 March 2023, extended the first reset date of
distribution rate to March 2023, and made modifications to relevant
indebtedness default event in order to waive any potential defaults.
Pursuant to the Consent Solicitation Memorandum and relevant
terms of the Trust Deed dated 29 March 2022, the Company
announced that all outstanding perpetual capital securities would be
redeemed in full on 6 March 2023 (the “Redemption Date”) at a
redemption price equal to 102% of the outstanding principal amount
thereof, plus any distributions accrued and unpaid to, but excluding,
the Redemption Date.

In the opinion of the directors, before 29 March 2022, the Company
was able to control the delivery of cash or other financial assets to the
holders of the Perpetual Capital Securities II, therefore the Perpetual
Capital Securities II were classified as equity instruments and
presented as a part of the equity. However, on 29 March 2022, due
to the distribution of redemption notice in relation to the Perpetual
Capital Securities II, which is mandatory and binding upon given,
the directors believe there would be a payment obligation on the
Redemption Date. Therefore, the Perpetual Capital Securities II are
reclassified as financial liabilities and presented as a part of the

liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company failed to repay the principal
and interest amounting to RMB1,610,788,000 for the perpetual

capital securities, which constituted an event of default.

. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of RMB13,265,000 (2022:
RMB17,587,000), in respect of lease arrangements for office
buildings.
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35. B BeRE XMW@ 35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

b WEIWSH ELEN A E (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
% )
K HME
it B AT & BEXH kKEEAR JE F G 3 ) it £ £
Hfbfis  BEER  AF6R L My HMEAR  AFHE i
Total
Interest- liabilities
bearing bank Asset-  Perpetual Due to from
and other Corporate backed capital Lease related  financing
borrowings  Senior notes bonds  securities  securities liabilities  companies activities
ARBFIL ARBEFLE ARBEFL ARBFILE AREFL ARKFL ARBFL ARKFI
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
MZFZZFE—H—H Acl January 2022 47959529 21,740,164 4438850 2,432,687 = 115547 7,167,094 83,853,871
& ﬁi}jﬁﬁ%fﬁ Wi Cash flows from
financing activities (16,675,891) (236,226) (7,441) (353,193) - (29,547)  (1,048,948)  (18,351,246)
FB e 2 Non-cash movements (400,041) 2,355,606 263,978 158292 1,311,845 (43,877) 11212 3,657,015
/S Sy At 31 December 2022
+ZA=+—H 30,883,597 23,859,544 4695387 2,237,786 131184 42123 6129358 69,159,640
MEEBFAHERE  Cash flows from
financing activities (3,149,571) - (3,753) (2,411) - (22,392) (503,228)  (3,681,355)
FH AR Non-cash movements 1,266,453 302,669 262,107 119,774 80,063 4,588 (17,346) 2,018,308
ZEC=E At 31 December 2023
+ZA=+—H 29,000,479 24,162,213 4,953,741 2,355,149 1,391,908 24,319 5,608,784 67,496,593
0 MEMHLEH (c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of

SPABESREENHEAL

AW BT cash flows is as follows:
2023 2022
N AR WT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RBIEE A Within operating activities 6,423 13,235
Tl 35 A Within financing activities 22,392 29,547
et Total 28,815 42,782

Rt EEEERAT
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PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling

interests were set out below:

31 December 2023

7 3 I v I i X

RE#3 F¢ AH W HE 75 1 4 Y Ik e I HE 43

JBBEH 41 1k i F,/ O 48) 25k A i
Percentage of Profit/(loss) for the Accumulated

equity interest held year allocated balances of non-

by non-controlling  to non-controlling controlling
interests interests interests
% AR¥ T AR¥ T
% RMB’000 RMB’000
B RL5LIE 5 i B %8 4 BR Nanjing Hongzheng Real Estate
2wl (T EBAIE]D Development Co., Ltd.
(“Nanjing Hongzheng”) 49 105,797 90,078
PRy i B A M Shaanxi Zhuoyue Jingda
A ) ([ BV 8 |) Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Shaanxi Zhuoyue”) 66 (26,969) 73,288
MmIEXEEEEAR  Nanjing Zhengye Real Estate
AH (THRIEZ]) Development Co., Ltd.
(“Nanjing Zhengye”) 49 109,320 1,220,495
E - F At H=+—H 31 December 2022
ViR R ) Vil Ve XY
1 4 15 A 1Y T 22 10 4F I I 2 BB 4
JCHE 77 73 1L i 1,/ (s 5 R At a5 B
Percentage of ~ Profit/(loss) for the Accumulated

equity interest held

year allocated

balances of non-

by non-controlling  to non-controlling controlling
interests interests interests
% AR#T T ARETT
% RMB’000 RMB’000
MAERmBEXSEEAR  Nanjing Zhenggao Real Estate
A (TH R IER ) Development Co., Ltd.
(“Nanjing Zhenggao”) 49 1) 649,366
FMAIELAEEERAMR  Nanjing Zhengjiang
4y ) (TR X IEYL)) Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Nanjing Zhengjiang”) 49 128,087 402,918
RMELEERMRAF  Quanzhou Baorong Real
(TRMER]) Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Quanzhou Baorong”) 54 149,486 269,966
“EO=FFER
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36. M HEAJEE I MERE W 36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

Ik 2 & Mt 8 2wl ()

R I A N U
B ERL o T 4 8 09 & BOR B B AT AT
25 ] R A 8K
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company eliminations:

31 December 2023

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information

of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-

B2 54 IE B P e bk B atIEE
Nanjing Shaanxi Nanjing
Hongzheng Zhuoyue Zhengye
AR¥Fic AR¥ T AR ¥ T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
I £ Revenue 3,286,298 - 3,117,314
BH Sz 48 %8 Total expenses (2,965,214) (40,862) (2,810,974)
Pt 15 B BA S Income tax expense (105,171) = (83,238)
A A i A1) B A T 4 Profit and total
AR comprehensive income
for the year 215,913 (40,862) 223,102
i B A E Current assets 949,311 1,206,264 3,398,216
Ik i B & Non-current assets 103 = 15,918
Vi B=Kist Current liabilities (762,249) (1,095,222) (923,328)
Ik i B A1 Non-current liabilities (3,332) = -
g Net assets 183,833 111,042 2,490,806
s yEE () 1§ Net cash flows (used in)/
HEemBEEsE from operating activities (17,429) (37,493) 234,237
BEET A BE 4 E  Net cash flows from
R investing activities - - _
Bl &5 B A8 (B 1) Net cash flows from/
B 4 Ui & A (used in) financing
activities 17,428 40,284 (223,706)
HEeERRE%EBY Net (decrease)/increase in
(70 /1 v %8 cash and cash equivalents (1) 2,791 10,531

2 5 EERBARAR
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HFEAKIFEEBEMLZN  36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
EZEE B Al ) MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(Continued)
EC T H=1T—H 31 December 2022
B ACIE R IE L SN &
Nanjing Nanjing Quanzhou
Zhenggao Zhengjiang Baorong
ANER¥T T ANER¥T T AR ¥Tor
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
I % Revenue - 2,279,027 1,390,779
BH = 48 %H Total expenses (1) (1,930,468) (1,006,708)
FiF 18 B BH ¢ Income tax expense - (87,157) (104,658)
A A Vs R B 4 T U 2 Profit and total
AR comprehensive income
for the year (1) 261,402 279,413
i B A E Current assets 1,694,476 966,897 596,918
I Ui By Non-current assets 1,275,000 - 5,329
T REE Current liabilities (1,643,698) (144,615) (97,639)
FE WL E) A & Non-current liabilities — _ _
1,325,778 822,282 504,608
AR E (FF ),/ BT i3 Net cash flows (used in)/
B R e | from operating activities (1) 11,398 175,216
BEEE 58 4 e Net cash flows from
1 #H investing activities - _ _
RlEEE) ir Bl & i ®  Net cash flows used in
Vi %H financing activities = (26,081) (219,375)
B4 R &S EY Net decrease in cash and
W R cash equivalents (1) (14,683) (44,159)

Annuolzligozrtﬂ;ﬁ;i 2 6 —‘
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37. B a2
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112,904,000 70 (2% " T 4F © KR
2,465,511,0007C) © Hi B 1% > %5 H
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group disposed of equity interests in
several subsidiaries to certain independent third parties for
considerations of RMB112,904,000 (2022: RMB2,465,511,000).
Subsequent to the disposals, these entities are no longer subsidiaries

of the Group.

The carrying values of the assets and liabilities on the dates of

disposal were as follows:

e =Y N S
2023 2022
AR¥ T A R ¥F o
RMB’000 RMB’000
2 R HE Net assets disposed of:
B4 B 814 55 (E ) Cash and cash equivalents 902 1,372,229
Z BR i B 4 Restricted cash - 1,065,993
2 S AE 3K Pledged deposits - 68,828
& 5 E W B Trade receivables = 14,634
FEAT ST - A R i 3K TE K Prepayments, other receivables and other
HoAh & assets 386,889 7,782,026
n] Wi [|] i TE Tax recoverable 1,830 45,637
JRE Wiz B T 2 ] EOE Due from related companies 24,781 1,659,487
B 2% v g 2E Properties under development = 9,549,188
FEHREmE B LY E Completed properties held for sale = 416,165
REESEREEAFAKEE  Investments in joint ventures and associates = 1,984,775
LE BN Y & Property, plant and equipment - 33,099
MY A = Intangible assets = 3,837
"EYE Investment properties — 842,100
78 JE Bl TE A E Deferred tax assets = 257,722
B 5y AT 3R IE J AL 2 Trade and bills payables (13,171) (1,016,017)
S H B E Contract liabilities = (8,691,261)
JHC At R AF 3 I R E Other payables and accruals (241,939) (4,098,053)
% G A TH A1 Deferred tax liabilities - (113,430)
JE AT B IH Tax payables (510) (259,029)
wh B SR AT e Ho A 5 3K Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings = (4,004,016)
JRE A5F B W ] K Due to related companies = (1,944,675)
158,782 4,969,239
I I HE 25 Non-controlling interests (20,635) (2,439,475)
2 EEFHE Ner assets disposed of 138,147 2,529,764
B B A\ ) s 4 Losses on disposal of subsidiaries (25,243) (64,253)
$i2 LN 7 B AT - BT B 4 fA{E Satisfied by: Cash consideration paid 109,904 2,449,941
E i A Consideration receivable 3,000 15,570

Rt EEEARAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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37. B8 2wl ) 37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Consinued)
HHE T EWH S RBEES%EY R An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
ATRBEM AR - of the disposal is as follows:
2023 2022
A R¥ T A B ¥F o
RMB’000 RMB’000
4 e Cash consideration 109,904 2,449,941
HENHR S KRS ZEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (902) (1,372,229)
HHHEWE & LB 4% EY Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
A EE | in respect of the disposal 109,002 1,077,712
38. KA HH 38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
T 1R 5 R A B RS Rk 35 TR B A At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided
BRI R for in the financial statements were as follows:
2023 2022
AR#T L A B F ot
RMB’000 RMB’000

] ERAT AR i A B AR T Guarantees given to banks in

REHEYEERME connection with facilities
B 4 £ granted to purchasers of the
Group’s properties 1) 29,210,471 40,128,810

Ti] $8 47 S L Ath 1 1 4 1 Guarantees given to banks and
1A B T B A K other institutions in connection

55 = 7 Rl B BE R with facilities granted to related
companies and a third party ) 2,886,892 4,464,355
A Total 32,097,363 44,593,165

Annuolﬁiﬁcﬁtﬁﬁi 2 6 3
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58 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Notes:

(oY)

(2)

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s completed properties held for
sale. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements, in the case of default
on mortgage payments by the purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying
the outstanding mortgage principals together with any accrued interest and

penalties owed by the defaulted purchasers to those banks.

Under the above arrangement, the related properties were pledged to the banks
as collateral for the mortgage loans, upon default on mortgage repayments by
these purchasers, the banks are entitled to take over the legal titles and will

realise the pledged properties through open auction.

The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance and registration of property
ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will generally be available
within one to two years after the purchasers take possession of the relevant

properties.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage
facilities granted to purchasers of the Group’s completed properties held for
sale. The directors of the Company considered that in the case of default on
payments, the net realisable value of the related properties would be sufficient
to repay the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and
penalty, and therefore, no provision has been made in connection with the

guarantees.

The Group provided guarantees to banks and other institutions in connection
with borrowings made to the joint ventures, associates and third parties. The
directors of the Company consider that provision in respect of the guarantees
provided to the joint ventures, associates and third parties is immaterial as of
31 December 2023 and 2022 since the fair value is not significant. Further
details of the related party transactions are included in note 40 to the financial

statements.
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31 December 2023

58 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(3)

In addition to the litigations commenced by banks and other financial
institutions against subsidiaries of the Group as disclosed in note 29, there
were outstanding litigations commenced by several constructors against certain
subsidiaries of the Group claiming construction fees. Based on the advice of the
Group’s in-house legal counsel, the directors of the Company have estimated
that the Group will likely be liable to pay the construction fees, which had
been provided and included in “trade and bill payables” as at 31 December
2023 and 2022. In the opinion of the Company’s directors, no further provision
for litigation was required to be made for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.

Except as disclosed above, during the year and up to 31 December 2023, the
Group was not involved in any other material litigation, arbitration or
administrative proceedings, claims or disputes. As far as the directors of the
Company was aware, the Group had no other material litigation or claim which
was pending or threatened against the Group. As at 31 December 2023, the
Group was the defendant of certain non-material litigations, and also a party to
certain litigations arising from the ordinary course of business of the Group.
The likely outcome of these contingent liabilities, litigations or other legal
proceedings cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty at present, but the
directors of the Company believes that any possible legal liability which may
be incurred from the aforesaid cases will not have any material impact on the

financial position or results of the Group.
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39, R
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39. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following contractual commitments at the end of

HAYE the reporting period:
2023 2022
AR ¥ T AR ¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EAHEOK NG S ¥ Contracted, but no provided for:
BH 9% sp W) 2E Properties under development 7,492,880 21,235,924

BEAL AR 4R B 1 8 A SR 3 A
TR (B4 A 4R 1 B H A 5 4
3 Sk A AR IfE 1) R I8 O B > % R

In addition, the Group had the following commitments provided to
joint ventures (including the Group’s share of commitments made

jointly with other joint venturers), which are not included in the

s R 4 A Lk 2 o above:
2023 2022
A R¥ T A R F ot
RMB’000 RMB’000
EAHEOK NGB S ¥ Contracted, but no provided for:
EE Capital contributions 1,836,176 1,836,176
A st Total 1,836,176 1,836,176

2 5 EERBARAR
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40. B ¥k 5 22 5 40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
@ BERKBBHIRS (a) Significant related party transactions
2023 2022
AR ¥ T AR WTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

GBS B E N A E#E Advances from joint ventures and

associates 786,164 7,017,127
B 7% A & A 26 L4 /S 7l ) Repayment of advances from joint
B0 ventures and associates 1,332,747 8,066,075
T A A S S A Advances to joint ventures and associates
K 114,396 10,063,608
AT HE S E L4  Repayment of advances to joint ventures
UNGIRE" T4 and associates 148,086 10,004,622

F e 245 I JBE SR 42 1l 9 /A /] Property management and management

AR Y E IE R & consulting services from companies
i wf IR 5 (B controlled by the ultimate controlling
shareholders (note) 50,786 140,436

o P B B R #5972 7] 2 Rental income to companies controlled by
A (B ) the ultimate controlling shareholders
(note) 69,608 78,549

RN N8 /N ﬂ $2 it Management consulting services to joint

Bk R RS (B 5% ventures and associates (note) 25,675 52,839
Mzt 225 i iE2HE R T Note: These transactions were carried out in accordance with the terms and
I [\ W &m0 R & K4 conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved.
@ﬁ ®
(b) B BA Wi Oy By 3 fth 22 5 (b) Other transactions with related parties
W _E _=%#+_H =+ As at 31 December 2023, the Group guaranteed certain bank
—H AEEHBREGESEEK and other loans made to joint ventures and associates of up to
g A v R BEARY RMB2,525,392,000 (2022: RMB4,054,855,000).

2,525,392,0007C (& —
A R %4,054,855,0007C ) ) &
T SR AT B LAt B8 3R AE A IR o

Annuolzliiozr:zfgji 2 6 7
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40. Bl ¥k 05 22 5y ()
(c) 5L B WGk O B R AR &5 B

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

+=2H=+—H +ZH=+—H
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
AR T AR¥FiL
RMB’000 RMB’000
RE kg [ W /A ) 2 0H Due from related companies:
FE TR Non-trade-related:
A A 2 K A F Joint ventures and associates 13,182,757 13,308,956
WE Impairment (2,901,693) (1,779,973)
Mt Grand total 10,281,064 11,528,983
FE AF R W 2 ) I Due to related companies:
B oA Trade-related:
fic 46 22 TR BE SR8 0 14 8 W Companies controlled by the ultimate
controlling shareholders 194,081 205,188
FE T Non-trade-related:
G AR 2 N A Joint ventures and associates 5,414,703 5,924,170
s Grand total 5,608,784 6,129,358

R Wi ] T 2 ) i R (L E A

The movements in provision for impairment of due from

R IR RV (I related companies are as follows:
2023 2022
N AR W¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
w—H—H MR mEE Carrying amount at 1 January 1,779,973 -
T fife 2 e (B s 48 (B 3 6) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 1,121,720 1,779,973
Bt —A=1+—HMIE®{E Carrying amount at 31 December 2,901,693 1,779,973

2 6 8 Rt EEEARAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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40. Bt 5 22 5 ) 40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
() HLER W5 MR A &S B () (c)

A4 R PR T O AE s R
Ao 28 R i BR W 5 Y R IE
A AT W R AL % S RH A
MR 5 B B B W5 5 E A58 9
S5 AT W E BT AL o M E R
g 48 Y & R R R B
oo DA B B 0 46 i RR LA 2R
5 &R B & ik - i &
Z=E+"A=+—H Bk
B WG 7 A E M WE A AR
#2.901,693,000 00 ( — & —
FE+_H=+—H: AR%
1,779,973,000 JG) °

Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
on the amounts due from related parties, which are subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. As at 31 December 2023, the
impairment of the amounts due from related parties was
RMB2,901,693,000 (31 December 2022: RMB1,779,973,000).

B RE AF & 8 A 2 R B A D
Y 3k H A R ¥ 66,031,000 9C (=
T 4R N R 48,092,000
J6) o $5.95% M AR5 E - H
by f5% % 25 JE MEVE AR - B K

Except for the amounts due to joint ventures and associates of
RMB66,031,000 (2022: RMB48,092,000) which are interest-
bearing at a rate of 5.95%, other balances are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

TR AR LR fE A -
d REEMETEEHANEB (d) Compensation of key management personnel of the
i Group
2023 2022
AR ¥ A R F ot
RMB’000 RMB’000
KA AR B AR R Short term employee benefits 11,985 24,117
F=E e E 3 K A4L & F| Pension scheme contributions and social
welfare 713 928
AT EEEMEAEN Total compensation paid to key
7 I 48 %H management personnel 12,698 25,045

o R A — P R O
T S ¥ R MY ks

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the

financial statements.

“EC=FER
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41. BB 2SR T H 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

T I OK & 4 4wl T OEL Y B A The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
EaTF - instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
—_FE_=%+_H=+—H 31 December 2023
4 Bl & B Financial assets
152 4 8 A &5 A
1 W 1 4 O W& REE At

Financial assets
at fair value

Financial assets through profit
at amortised cost or loss Total
AR T ARWF AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BN THEFF AN A M Financial assets at fair value through
B (P sk 20) profit or loss (note 20) = 2,701 2,701
B 5 WA ([ 3k 23) Trade receivables (note 23) 574,284 _ 574,284
il }\?EH R HAbMEY  Financial assets included in
FROE BCH A G RE R 4 prepayments, other receivables and
%F (it 5t 24) other assets (note 24) 17,361,685 - 17,361,685
JRE WSz e W s ) 2 T (Bff 3£ 40)  Due from related companies (note 40) 10,281,064 = 10,281,064
Z A Bl (W aE2s) Restricted cash (note 25) 3,187,254 - 3,187,254
B AR A7 5K (B 3E25) Pledged deposits (note 25) 131,395 = 131,395
B4 RB 4% B (M525) Cashand cash equivalents (note 25) 1,716,960 = 1,716,960
Mt Total 33,252,642 2,701 33,255,343
4 b A1 Financial liabilities
i B 45 1 A
W 1) 4 il £ 1
Financial
liabilities
at amortised cost
AR ¥ T
RMB’000
LB (R 1s) Lease liabilities (note 15) 24,319
& G AT 2 A N R A = E (B 3E 26) Trade and bills payables (note 26) 17,734,022
A H A E ASE 3 IE K E T2 9 4l Financial liabilities included in other payables and
A 1E (M 5E27) accruals (note 27) 11,735,326
Al R SR AT Je At A 3Kk (Fff 5% 29) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 29) 29,000,479
18 S 298 (M 5E30) Senior notes (note 30) 24,162,213
s Al 2 (B EE31) Corporate bonds (note 31) 4,953,741
K B A TE T ( [fﬁ 7 34) Perpetual capital securities (note 34) 1,391,908
JRE AT R B 2 ) B T (it 5 40) Due to related companies (note 40) 5,608,784
it Total 94,610,792

2 é EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

31 December 2022

4 & e Financial assets
52 48 B A BANTEFIA
B B 1 4 G 18 45 10 4 il A5
Financial assets
at fair value
Financial assets through profit
at amortised cost or loss Total
AR BT ARWBFI AR BT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ATEFEAH M S M  Financial assets at fair value through
EF (7 n£20 profit or loss (note 20) = 282,473 282,473
B 5 REAC IR (Ff 55 23) Trade receivables (note 23) 747,858 = 747,858
= )\ iU I,E HAb M  Financial assets included in
PRI R A A 4 A prepayments, other receivables and
B (P k24) other assets (note 24) 18,807,371 = 18,807,371
JAE WSz e B s ) 5 9B (Bff 3£ 40)  Due from related companies (note 40) 11,528,983 = 11,528,983
7 PR3 4 (i EE25) Restricted cash (note 25) 5,892,753 - 5,892,753
B 77 2K (B 3T 25) Pledged deposits (note 25) 86,851 = 86,851
B4 LB &% EY (f5k25) Cash and cash equivalents (note 25) 3,270,111 - 3,270,111
Mt Total 40,333,927 282,473 40,616,400
& AR Financial liabilities
Fic 4 85 B A
51 B 1Y 4 Rl & fE
Financial

liabilities at
amortised cost

AR¥® T
RMB’000
U A Ak (i sk s) Lease liabilities (note 15) 42,123
& 5 AT 3T T AT ZE 4 (B 5k 26) Trade and bills payables (note 26) 15,604,977
FT A L Ath M ASh BRIE B RE ST % B A 4l Financial liabilities included in other payables and
A (B35 27) accruals (note 27) 10,089,865
S R AT B At £5 2 (Fff 5% 29) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 29) 30,883,597
B 5 4% (5T 30) Senior notes (note 30) 23,859,544
s w2 (B EE31) Corporate bonds (note 31) 4,695,387
T E AR TR ( Kﬁ 7134) Perpetual capital securities (note 34) 1,311,845
JRE A5 B B 2 =) s IEL (B 5 40) Due to related companies (note 40) 6,129,358
Hast Total 92,616,696
—B=FFR
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42.

26

Sl THEBAFE A
{8 g B
e B T (AL 5028 - (AL 45 BB 5 0

fil T ELAh o A4 B T H B0 MR T
EHEAFEWT

42.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably

approximate to fair values, are as follows:

W THI {E 2 AR
Carrying amounts Fair values
—E = - S - - - S
2023 2022 2023 2022
AR¥FIL ARETET AR¥EFILT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
4 Bhg B Financial assets
¥ N PEFF A %5 89 Financial assets at fair
4 Rl value through profit or
loss 2,701 282,473 2,701 282,473
4 b AR Financial liabilities
B R AT R H A 53K Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 29,000,479 30,883,597 29,023,892 30,896,097
N E) & 2 Corporate bonds 4,953,741 4,695,387 2,516,379 1,381,289
5 e gk Senior notes 24,162,213 23,859,544 785,380 1,461,157
KB AR S Perpetual capital securities 1,391,908 1,311,845 19,506 66,414
Mt Total 59,508,341 60,750,373 32,345,157 33,804,957

B O A B e M EY
C A7 K - Z PRI BL &~ B 5
WoE H 5 RE A AR E B R A SR
%~ AT AT BOH At R YRR
T At 7 H) < R E - RPN A
JRE A5F Bk T B E Y #R W N & AlR AR
LA K% JRE Wit JRE A% IR Wk 2 ) R A 8
- (B BELFC R T (A o - T R
%5 T A 9 ) 301 0 PR i g -

A4 T A R TP el B AR B A
Mo ARMESMLAAFHEFE
A B AR Py o T s A B 4 1)
Bl B MEH - Aol A &
R 43 B 4 b OB 04 5 )
D TE 1B P Al 8 B0 T 2 A B -
il (L phy B 5 0 A S A o AR
P R AR BE A B O BRI &
B A A R AT T O T o

Rt EEEARAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, restricted cash, trade receivables, trade
and bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, and amounts due from/to related companies
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term

maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the chief financial officer. At each reporting date,
the finance department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation results are discussed with the audit

committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.
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31 December 2023

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used

to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance
risk for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31

December 2023 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of senior notes, perpetual capital securities and
corporate bonds, excluding Zhenro Bond V, are based on market
prices. The fair value of Zhenro Bond V has been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and

remaining maturities.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The fair value of unlisted fund investments is based on
the market approach by reference to quoted market prices,

maximising the use of observable market data where it is available.

“EC=FER
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42, @l T H A FEEA
%Hﬁﬁﬁ(w;

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

YNNI F Fair value hierarchy

TR RNAEHS B T ENANF The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
{H AT =g /% - of the Group’s financial instruments:

WAV EF B EE: Assets measured at fair value:

W _Z2 _=4#+"H=+—H As at 31 December 2023

6 H DA T Bvg st B 2 A PR

Fair value measurement using

WS @ HEAUEE ®HAATE
Z R AH WA BIE W ABE
(58 —#%) (B %) GE=%)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs At
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANR¥TFIL AR¥TrT AR¥Fx AR¥ETFI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
¥ N F{EFF A %5 Financial assets at fair value
P 4 Tl through profit or loss = 2,701 = 2,701
WwWoE - 4HFE+HA=+—H As at 31 December 2022
LT Bigst & 2 ATE
Fair value measurement using
WHHN Y mEARABIE EAARAHE
Z R AE WA BRSO BUR
(36 —#%) (26 —%R) (26 = %)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs ik
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANREFIT AR¥ETFIT AR¥TTLT ARKTIL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
N FF A48 25 Financial assets at fair value
Y 4 il through profit or loss 417 282,056 = 282,473

The Group had no financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil).

AEFMP T =F+_H ="
— H il M AF: o] 4% A 7 (B 5 &= 0 4
A (ZF 4 ) o

TAASAERE R > 55— 4R B — 4 2 [ During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
S A TE R R 4 RS
E B & Rl B P AR = 2 A
B (R T TR ) o

264

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2022: Nil).

EERBARAR
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Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
As at 31 December 2023

5 FH LT SR Gt & 2 A PR

Fair value measurement using

BT RER
Statements
R
31 December 2023

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

WY EAWBE SwAAWHE
Z HAE A B A KR
(% —#k) (58 —#%) (B=%)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs A5t
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR¥FL AR¥TFT AR¥EFT AR¥TFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
s E 4R T e Hifth  Interest-bearing bank and
i 3K other borrowings — 29,023,892 - 29,023,892
NGIK- g Corporate bonds 2,392,479 123,900 - 2,516,379
1B e 2 g Senior notes 785,380 - - 785,380
IK BB A B R Perpetual capital securities 19,506 — = 19,506
A Et Total 3,197,365 29,147,792 - 32,345,157
Wo_E -+ _H=+—H As at 31 December 2022
LT Bigs & 2 ATE
Fair value measurement using
HET Y EARWBIER  ERKAWE
ZHRAE AR A HR
(%6 —%) (% =) (55 =%%)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs Hawt
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANR¥TTx ARETFLE AR¥ETET AR¥FIL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FHE 81T e Hifth  Interest-bearing bank and
f 2K other borrowings - 30,896,097 = 30,896,097
N EE Corporate bonds 993,595 387,694 - 1,381,289
iR Senior notes 1,461,157 - - 1,461,157
K GG AT Perpetual capital securities 66,414 = = 66,414
M Total 2,521,166 31,283,791 — 33,804,957
SBO=FER
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

260

43. B4 p5 L B B BE H B R
B R

ALK EE M T A EEQHE
B K OBRAT 45 B ~ © 5 EWCEKIE LA
Je B 5y e FoAbREAT BOOH - 72 %
THRLGEM AREL - AEH
PR H A Mg E XA WE R
SRAT B HC A 30 - BRI AR - 3k
R EAFEFABRSZN SR T
o~ B W A R ARCIH R b R k3R
Vo ZEam T A EZEHMER
T A S ) ) R L

A £ B B OB E AR A R 2R B
7 R 2 B~ A T JEL B ~ 5 T L B
B i B < B o — M o AR 4R
P S EL L gy R LR DR S R o AR
B OR 5 A AT AR 5 9 A
A T o 3 2 Al I [
S Jel B PREOR > HMEA AN -

@ A=A B

A S T B R T S A R
JE\ B = 2 B B 3% T E 29
Jfv A A G2 T S AR AT B
il 15 BCA B o A< 42 Sl 4 i
P AT A 4 Rl T B 3 i R SRR
B o 7 4R B 6RO B R AT AR
FE BB R AS o

e S o S N
H > i 76 B A 5 A 52 & 4 5F
A B IE BLT SR AT M8 3k Y A
R ETFR H19% o B A 4E
A AS A BE Y R B H T A A
AN #) N R 41,560,000
JL( = E - T AR
44,606,000 7C) °

(b) A I B Bt

A4 [ T B 22 B BN L B e
% S A\ B 0y TR AR e B LB
fir 2 T BE 15 W LA Sk 2 B W
T8 Gy A o LAk > A H
T B e [ 4 il & A MO T
SRR R E R

Rt EEEARAE
Zhenro Properties Group Limited

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include cash and
bank balances, trade receivables, and trade and other payables, which
arise directly from its operations. The Group has other financial assets
and liabilities such as interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
senior notes, corporate notes, financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss, amounts with related companies and other
receivables. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to

raise finance for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk
management. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings as set out in note 29 to the financial
statements. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The Group manages its

interest cost using variable rate bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2023, if the interest rate of bank
borrowings had increased/decreased by 1% and all other
variables held constant, the profit before tax for the year of the

Group would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB41,560,000 (2022: RMB44,606,000).

(b) Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from transactions by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. In addition, the Group
has currency exposures from its financial assets and senior

notes.



5. 14 75 B 90 R

(b)

(c)

(#8)
A B JB\ B (4)

5 B R W R TE A
Al g R A S 8 0 1 L
TR KA R I R
£ T e 8 W) T A S 1%
B 3 ) 10 0 (e 1 1L
FON Ty R
% S5 T HE 36 HO B 2 (e 1 7
£ W 2 7] B 28 - (8 5 ) 2
B E 43 B -

S

(PN TS L
it A B 5t 38 T 4 5

(PN TS L
(PN TSP LY

QE:?
N— BTSRRI

Notes to Financial Statements
—— =4
31 December 2023

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continned)

(b)

2023

If the RMB weakens against US$
If the RMB strengthens against US$

2022

If the RMB weakens against US$
If the RMB strengthens against US$

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the US$
and RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax (arising from US$ and RMB
denominated financial instruments) and the Group’s equity (due

to changes in the fair value of forward currency contracts).

% JC I B e i v A1
EFCFE) B (A)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
USS$ rate before tax
% A R#F i
% RMB’000

-5% (1,200,764)
+5% 1,200,764

-5% (934,795)
+5% 934,795

fe FH L B3

A4 ] {5 B ME R AT K R ]
FZE=ZETHEHE ALK
M 2 B AR B DR R
METHREZFFHAERRF
BHELIET o oL > B UERIA
AR fFE X EE mA LR
TR 3 MR 2 JE B Sl AN K
W LA IR A B A R D) BE
Watzxmims > R&MH
BRI e A
LA TR -

(o)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. For transactions that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of the
Head of Credit Control.

“EC=FER
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43, %ij’%@ll&z”ﬂiﬁ o &

F'/ﬂ'i (45)
(c) f& M REBE (4)

B R B B e A 5 P o S B
TEREINR T -A=+—H
e M A 42 T 9 15 A4 B3R # ay
Y fE B R Koo R B
(J% 3 2 da ) R (B 9F
A A & R M JH A o
WA BB Ty E) J AR R B
Ve T BE Y B o BT 25 &
< il E Y MR T AR (E -

R-ZFZ=4#+"A=1+—H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continned)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 December. The amounts

presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2023

128 A 3
v B s 18 23 FE AR R R
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
BoRBR S BORBE BERR 8 % At
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

ARWTE ARBTLT ARWTTLT ARETT ARWTI
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

& T W 2K A Trade receivables = = = 574,284 574,284
*I‘)\?ﬁﬁ X JE ~ HAb Financial assets
JE WAk T B H At included in
B B 4 G E prepayments,
—IE# other receivables
and other assets
— Normal 17,361,685 — — - 17,361,685
JRE W B B /N 7] 3K Due from related
companies = = — 10,281,064 10,281,064
2 PR il B 4 Restricted cash 3,187,254 - - - 3,187,254
B %47 17 5k Pledged deposits 131,395 = = = 131,395
Bl KRBl &% EY Cashand cash
equivalents 1,716,960 - - - 1,716,960
st Total 22,397,294 - - 10,855,348 33,252,642

2 é 8 Rt EEEARAE
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43. M P & PR H B2 R 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

R ) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
© 15 R B (4) (c) Credit risk (Continued)
W oEFE -+ H=1+—H As at 31 December 2022
1218 A 3
5 & AT E B 1R
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
BoMEB MR B i o % A Et
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

AR TIT ARWTTLT ARETILE ARBTIT ARKTIE
RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

2 5y & K Trade receivables = - - 747,858 747,858
A TE AT K ~ HAth Financial assets
i Wi kT B At included in
O I 4 G prepayments,
—IE# other receivables
and other assets

— Normal 18,807,371 — - — 18,807,371
JRE Wi B W 2 ®] 5K JH Due from related
companies = = — 13,308,956 13,308,956
% BR il 3 4 Restricted cash 5,892,753 - - - 5,892,753
R Pledged deposits 86,851 = = = 86,851
Bl Bl Y Cashand cash
equivalents 3,270,111 = - — 3,270,111
At Total 28,057,086 - - 14,056,814 42,113,900
* 745 A PR TE B G B 1R g For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
E U E E R E il 5 approach for impairment, information based on the ECLs is disclosed in
B 5 W S K TE N B %k note 23 to the financial statements. There is no significant concentration
Bf k234 5% o A I R K (R of credit risk.
IE
Ok i FE A TE A B A 8 O The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other
e TE N oA & Y 4 R receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are
IR W H S 4 O R not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
FHRZESMEENER assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

JE B 0 R il R LA AR K
Bom o R R SE 4 E 2
ERERPHEATIER] -
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5. 3 B B 5 A

K

(#8)

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continned)

) iB & &k (d) Liquidity risk
74 R H AR R S R R The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
BT R H MR- HEA continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
&~ NElESF > ERZEED & interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, lease liabilities,
B S RS R T 15 2 TE AE 4 corporate bonds, senior notes and proceeds from asset-backed
Pl R A B R M 2 T securities. Cash flows are being closely monitored on an
7 o A 4 B RR A % U) B ongoing basis.
B i i o
2 A RN HOE W OR %A AR The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
AT BCRE S & Rl A AR end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
FE AT - undiscounted payments, is as follows:
®ER 3EAUAN 3E12AA 4R DL |k st
Less than 3to 12 Over
On demand 3 months months 1 year Total
ANR¥TFILT ANREETT ANR¥ETT AR¥® T AR¥ T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TR 31 December 2023
+=ZH=+—H
FhE R T R HAth  Interest-bearing bank
2K and other
borrowings 18,161,889 4,279,476 5,273,425 3,392,174 31,106,964
NGIE-E Corporate bonds 1,176,000 3,653 — 4,437,706 5,617,359
X% Senior notes 12,715,387 16,069,276 = — 28,784,663
K GG AT S Perpetual capital
securities 1,548,750 = = = 1,548,750
HE A H Lease liabilities - 6,913 9,688 12,746 29,347
Z o BEAT #H K Trade and bills
JE A S 9 payables 17,734,022 = = — 17,734,022
A H Aty B 4 3IE  Financial liabilities
H) < il & included in other
payables 11,563,413 1,131,487 932,319 372,082 13,999,301
JRE AF B ¥ /A W) ZRIH Due to related
companies 66,031 5,560,057 — — 5,626,088
st Total 62,965,492 27,050,862 6,215,432 8,214,708 104,446,494

EERBARAR
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continned)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows: (Continued)
Please refer to Note 2.1 for analysis of going concern basis of
preparation.
BER 3AMA 3E12fi A 14U B AT
Less than 3tol2 Over
On demand 3 months months 1 year Total

AREFILT ARHTIE ARHTT ARBTIT ARHTE
RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000

- S 31 December 2022
+=ZHA=+—H
whE 4R AT e Hifth  Interest-bearing bank
i 3K and other
borrowings 16,467,510 3,974,548 7,304,422 5,504,226 33,250,706
NFEMES Corporate bonds 1,113,000 — 3,697,481 — 4,810,481
B EE Senior notes 633,470 26,388,276 = — 27,021,746
KA E A S Perpetual capital
securities = 1,416,716 - _ 1,416,716
N =R Lease liabilities - 7,572 37,727 14,343 59,642
Z 5 MEST K IE K& Trade and bills
JE A SR 9 payables 15,604,977 - = — 15,604,977
A Aty B 4 3IE Financial liabilities
A 4l iR included in other
payables 9,720,392 795,558 1,222,204 943,277 12,681,431
JHE £F BE M 2N 5] 3K JE Due to related
companies 48,334 6,081,266 = - 6,129,600
st Total 43,587,683 38,663,936 12,261,834 6,461,846 100,975,299

Annuolﬁiﬁcﬁtﬁﬁi 2 7 —‘
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continned)

(e)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total equity. The Group includes, within net
debt, trade and bills payables, other payables and accruals,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, corporate bonds,
senior notes, perpetual capital securities, lease liabilities and
amounts due to related companies, less cash and cash
equivalents. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

RIYNE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
+=-A=+—H +TZA=+—H
AR ¥ T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5y WEAS 2 IE Je JRE A 2 4% Trade and bills payables 17,734,022 15,604,977
oA A S TE M E S Other payables and accruals 11,735,326 10,089,865
FI R AR AT B A 1 3K Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 29,000,479 30,883,597
NGIK €3 Corporate bonds 4,953,741 4,695,387
1B S Senior notes 24,162,213 23,859,544
IS <N Perpetual capital securities 1,391,908 1,311,845
HEBE Lease liabilities 24,319 42,123
JRE A<} I8 W > ) K JE Due to related companies 5,608,784 6,129,358
W:RERBEE%EEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents 1,716,960 3,270,111
B 15 4 Net debt 92,893,832 89,346,585
HE 7 HR AR Total equity 6,151,529 17,479,657
A R AR5 A Capital and net debt 99,045,361 106,826,242
EEAER Gearing ratio 94% 84%

EERBARAR
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 2 January 2024, the Company announced that the Company
entered into the Restructuring Support Agreement (“RSA”) with
AHG representing approximately 26.97% of the aggregate
outstanding principal amount.

For details, please refer to the

announcement of the Company dated 2 January 2024.

On 24 January 2024, the Company announced that, participating
creditors holding over 79% of the existing offshore debts have
acceded to the RSA. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 24 January 2024.

On 31 January 2024, the Company announced that the convening
hearing in respect of the restructuring schemes, at which an order
will be sought from the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China (the “Court”)
to convene the Scheme Meeting for the purpose of scheme creditors
considering and, if thought fit, approving (with or without
modification) the scheme, is scheduled to be heard before the Court
on 2 May 2024. For details, please refer to the announcement of the

Company dated 31 January 2024.

On 6 March 2024, the Company announced that the Company did
not expect to be pay the outstanding principal amount of the 2024
Notes II and the accrued and unpaid interest thereon upon maturity
on 10 March 2024. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 6 March 2024.

—m—=
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45. AN\ w] BBk I & 45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY
T R AR > A B AR 2 ] BB R

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

274

REERWMT - at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
R 4R IE A
2023 2022
AR ¥ F oL AR ¥TFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
Ik i B & NON-CURRENT ASSETS
WA S ERNTE Investments in joint ventures 1 1
E BN & ] Property, plant and equipment 7 8
HEHIE B A E Total non-current assets 8 9
i B B A CURRENT ASSETS
BHEe kB &% EY Cash and cash equivalents 2,797 4,649
TE AT F A~ HAth R Wi R A Prepayments, other receivables and other
B HoAh & 2 assets 15,169 14,939
JEE WAz 8 WEG N ) TE Due from related companies 16,112 41,811
JHE Wit Bt JB 2 =] #E Due from subsidiaries 26,333,468 27,288,884
S E &= Total current assets 26,367,546 27,350,283
i By £ 1] CURRENT LIABILITIES
w1 B SR AT B OH A £ 5k Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 1,824,769 1,866,971
HCAth A I I E S T Other payables and accruals 4,360,958 1,882,575
JE AT A WEG N ) S TE Due to related companies 83,617 48,092
JRE AT Ff JB 2 m] 3K IH Due to subsidiaries 2,158,545 2,180,520
5 e B Senior notes 24,434,118 24,126,674
S RN Perpetual capital securities 1,391,908 1,311,845
AT B A 6] Total current liabilities 34,253,915 31,416,677
i B £ NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (7,886,369) (4,066,394)
B K AL B £ £ TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES (7,886,361) (4,066,385)
=RERE Net liabilities (7,886,361) (4,066,385)
e 35 EQUITY
e A Share capital 282 282
foE A Reserves (7,886,643) (4,066,667)
O G 4k HE 25 4R RE Deficiency in assets/total equity (7,886,361) (4,066,385)

EERBARAR

Zhenro Properties Group Limited



N
= BIRS M

Notes to Financial Statements
—— =4
31 December 2023

45. Ao W) W 85K DL 3K ) 45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)
Bff 5% Note:
AN TR RE SE AR LA R A summary of the Company’s equity is as follows:
MESL U B REE AR
JeAs  MetydifE DR B R fitt fHi W IF Hast
Exchange Perpetual
Share Share Retained  fluctuation capital
capital premium profits reserve instruments Total
ANRWFLT ARBTIT ARETT AREFIT ARWFT ARHTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
i - Balance at 1 January
— H— H & % 2022 282 3,696,478  (4,435,808) 100,581 1,415,744 777,277
AF TR 4 T e B AR Total comprehensive
loss for the year - - (3,057,054) - 7,750 (3,049,304)
T K 48 AR 7B g Dividends to the holders
R NIRAT B of perpetual capital
securities - - - - (72,140) (72,140)
7 i B T K A AR Announcement of
I redemption of
perpetual capital
securities — — - - (1,351,354) (1,351,354)
i 54, I ) fot 5 Exchange fluctuation
reserve = - - (370,864) - (370,864)
= —— Balance at 31 December
+-A=+—B Rk 2022 and 1 January
“E=4—A—H 2023
11 &5 B 282 3,696,478 (7,492,862) (270,283) = (4,066,385)
AF TN A TH e 18 AR A Total comprehensive
loss for the year - - (3,691,358) - - (3,691,358)
[ 50, I8 Bl {38 A Exchange fluctuation
reserve = = = (128,618) = (128,618)
W E = Balance at 31 December
+ZA=+—H 2023
) &5 Bk 282 3,696,478  (11,184,220) (398,901) - (7,886,361)
46. BhE WS E 46. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
FEREeER X _WE=H -+ N The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
H 3t 7SI 15 1E ) 5% A B A a2 o the board of directors on 28 March 2024.

Annuolzliiozrtﬂ;ﬁi 2 7 6




T FEHE

Five Years’ Financial Summary

RETZAZ+—HIL4EE
Year ended 31 December

EROER ZFCC ZE A ZEERE ZFENF

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

ANR¥FiL ANREFL AREFT AR¥TFr ARKETIL

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

i 4 Revenue 38,774,935 25,895,478 36,992,368 36,126,089 32,557,660

R (B18) /HH (Loss)/Profit for the year (9,485,562)  (14,617,223) 1,195,513 3,558,934 3,093,984

INFIHEAT NEAGE  (Loss)/Profit for the year
R (EHE) / 5 Al attributable to owners
of the parent (8,467,942)  (12,877,046) 809,005 2,650,744 2,506,405
Rt+=ZH=+—H
As at 31 December

ZRI=Eg EF T ZE AR DR R ZE U

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

AR¥EFLE AREFT ARBEFLT ARBEFIL ARKEFIL

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

I By Non-current assets 18,602,851 20,954,039 27,030,605 22,145,787 17,701,352

i B Current assets 134,584,778 173,512,253 226,811,001 199,239,714 151,517,858

& A Total assets 153,187,629 194,466,292 253,841,606 221,385,501 169,219,210

IE i B & & Non-current liabilities 7,638,146 6,634,440 41,365,530 51,523,998 41,713,271

N N=R Current liabilities 139,397,954 170,352,195 171,533,565 132,258,549 96,445,950

A E A Total liabilities 147,036,100 176,986,635 212,899,095 183,782,547 138,159,221

HE 45 3R Total equity 6,151,529 17,479,657 40,942,511 37,602,954 31,059,989
ANFHEA ARG Total equity ateributable to

HWE 5 48 % owners of the parent (3,888,963) 4,758,934 19,354,196 19,576,267 16,396,527

2 7 EERBARAR
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